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PART I

Forward Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains certain “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.
These forward-looking statements involve certain known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors, many of which are beyond our control, and are not
limited to those discussed in Item 1A, “Risk Factors.” All statements that do not relate to historical or current facts are forward-looking statements. These
statements may include words such as “anticipate,” “estimate,” “expect,” “project,” “intend,” “plan,” “believe,” and other words and terms of similar meaning in
connection with any discussion of future operating or financial performance. In particular, these include statements relating to present or anticipated products and
markets, future revenues, capital expenditures, expansion plans, future financing and liquidity, personnel, and other statements regarding matters that are not
historical facts or statements of current condition.

Any or all forward-looking statements contained within this Annual Report on Form 10-K may turn out to be wrong. They can be affected by inaccurate
assumptions we might make, or by known or unknown risks and uncertainties. Many factors mentioned in the discussion below will be important in determining
future results. Consequently, we cannot guarantee any forward-looking statements. Actual future results may vary materially.

We undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except as
required by law. You are advised, however, to consult any further disclosures we make on related subjects in our filings with the U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC).

Item 1. Business.

Overview

SEI (NASDAQ: SEIC) is a leading global provider of investment processing, fund processing, and investment management business outsourcing solutions that
help corporations, financial institutions, financial advisors, and ultra-high-net-worth families create and manage wealth. As of December 31, 2008, through its
subsidiaries and partnerships in which the company has a significant interest, SEI administers $379.6 billion in mutual fund and pooled assets, manages $134.3
billion in assets, and operates from numerous offices worldwide.

Our wealth management business solutions include:
 

 •  Investment processing and investment operations outsourcing solutions for banks, trust companies, and investment managers;
 

 
•  Investment management programs to affluent individual investors and for institutional investors, including retirement plan sponsors and not-for-

profit organizations; and
 

 
•  Fund processing solutions for banks, investment management firms and investment companies that sponsor and distribute mutual funds, hedge funds

and alternative investments.

General Development of the Business

For over 35 years, SEI has been a leading provider of wealth management business solutions for the financial services industry.

We began doing business in 1968 by providing computer-based training simulations to train bank loan officers in credit lending practices.

1970’s

We developed an investment accounting system for bank trust departments in 1972, and became a leading provider of investment processing outsourcing services
to banks and trust institutions.
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1980’s

SEI became a public company in 1981. We entered the asset management business in 1982 and launched a series of money market mutual funds for bank clients.
Later in the decade, we expanded our services to bank clients by offering mutual fund accounting services, and investment operations outsourcing services.

1990’s

We introduced our “Manager-of-Managers” investment process, and offered these programs to investment advisors who manage wealth for their high-net-worth
clients. We entered the institutional investor market and began offering asset management programs to retirement plan sponsors and institutional investors in
selected global markets, including the United States, Canada, the United Kingdom, continental Europe, South Africa and East Asia.

2000’s

We delivered broader, more strategic solutions for clients and markets, including a complete life and wealth platform for operating an investment advisory
business, a total operational outsourcing solution for investment managers, a fully-integrated pension management system for retirement plan sponsors and a
complete life and wealth solution for ultra-high-net-worth families. We introduced Global Wealth Services, a next generation business solution integrating
investment processing technology, operating processes and investment management programs.

Strategy

We seek to achieve growth in earnings and shareholder value by strengthening our position as a provider of global wealth management solutions. To achieve this
objective, we have implemented these strategies:

Create broader solutions for wealth service firms. Banks, investment managers and financial advisors seek to enter new markets, expand their service
offerings, provide a differentiated experience to their clients, improve efficiencies, reduce risks, and better manage their businesses. We are developing next
generation business solutions integrating technology, operating processes, and financial products designed to help these institutions better serve their clients
and provide opportunities to improve their business success.

Help institutional investors manage retirement plans and operating capital. Retirement plan sponsors, not-for-profit organizations and other institutional
investors strive to meet their financial objectives while reducing business risk. We deliver customized investment management solutions that enable
investors to make better decisions about their investments and to manage their assets more effectively.

Help affluent individual investors manage their life and wealth goals. These investors demand a holistic wealth management experience that focuses on
their life goals and provides them with an integrated array of financial services that includes substantially more than traditional wealth management
offerings. We help these investors identify their goals and offer comprehensive life and wealth advisory services including life planning, investments and
other financial services.

Expand into global markets. Global markets are large and present significant opportunities for growth. We are evolving U.S. business models for the global
wealth management marketplace, focusing on the needs of institutional investors, private banks, investment advisors and affluent individual investors.

Fundamental Principles

We are guided by these fundamental principles in managing the business and adopting these growth strategies:
 

 
•  Achieve organic growth in revenue and earnings. We seek to grow the business by providing additional services to clients, adding new clients,

introducing new products, and adapting products for new markets.
 

 
•  Forge long-term client relationships. We strive to achieve high levels of customer satisfaction and to forge close and long lasting client relationships.

We believe these relationships enable us to market additional services, and acquire knowledge and insights that fuel the product development
process.

 

 
•  Invest in product development. We continually enhance products and services to keep pace with industry developments, regulatory requirements, and

the emerging needs of markets and clients. We believe investments in research and development give us a competitive advantage in our markets.
 

 
•  Adopt business models which generate recurring revenues and positive cash flows. Recurring revenues generate predictable cash flows that serve as a

source of funds for continuing operations, investments in new products, common stock repurchases, and dividend payments.
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•  Leverage investments across the business. We design and implement product solutions and business process capabilities to serve the needs of

multiple markets, potentially offering operating efficiencies that can benefit corporate profitability.
 

 
•  Create value for shareholders. The objective of achieving long-term sustainable growth in revenues and earnings strongly influences the

management of the business. This philosophy guides corporate management practices, strategic planning activities, and employee compensation
practices.

Products and Services

Investment Processing

Investment processing solutions include computer processing services, software services, business process outsourcing services, securities valuation and trade
execution services. We offer these outsourcing solutions to banks and trust institutions that provide wealth management services to their private and institutional
investors. Investment advisors also use these investment processing solutions, together with our investment management programs, to provide wealth
management services to their investors.

These solutions include TRUST 3000®, a comprehensive trust accounting and investment system that provides securities processing and investment accounting
for all types of domestic and global securities, and support for multiple account types, including personal trust, corporate trust, institutional trust, and non-trust
investment accounts.

In 2007, we introduced Global Wealth Services, a next generation business solution that integrates investment processing technology, operating processes and
investment management programs. Global Wealth Services provides the strategic infrastructure to help private banks grow and keep pace with a rapidly changing
wealth management industry.

Enhancing the Global Wealth Services solution is the Global Wealth Platform, an investment accounting and securities processing system with capabilities that
include global securities processing, trade-date and multi-currency accounting and reporting. The Global Wealth Platform offers enhanced client experience
capabilities and improved operating efficiencies, and enables us to enter new markets in the United Kingdom, continental Europe and the United States. The
platform is designed around the client and portfolio management processes. This enables banks to institutionalize their client processes around an investor’s
investment objectives, facilitating a transition to model-based portfolio management, providing an improved client experience, while minimizing the expense
associated with investment operations and reducing risk.

Revenues from investment processing services are earned as monthly fees from contracted services including software licenses, information processing, and
investment operations. Revenues are primarily earned based upon the number of trust accounts being serviced. Revenues may also be earned for contracted
project-oriented services related to client implementations. These revenues are recognized in Information processing and software servicing fees on the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations. Securities valuation and trade execution fees are recognized as Transaction-based and trade execution fees
on the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations. In addition, as we deploy our Global Wealth Services solution, we will attempt to price our
investment processing services as a percentage of assets under management and administration.

Investment Management Programs

Investment management programs consist of money market, fixed-income and equity mutual funds, alternative investment portfolios and separate accounts. We
serve as the administrator and investment advisor for many of these products. We provide these programs primarily through investment advisory firms, including
investment advisors and banks, or directly to institutional or individual investors.

We have expanded these investment management programs to include other consultative, operational and technology components, creating comprehensive
solutions tailored to the needs of a specific market. These components may include investment strategies, consulting services, administrative and processing
services and technology tools.

Investors in our investment programs typically follow a customized investment strategy and invest in a globally diversified portfolio that consists of multiple
classes and investment styles, constructed according to our disciplined investment process. Our investment process is based on five principles: asset allocation
and appropriate diversification, both of which are important to investment performance; portfolio construction that consists of multiple managers with
complementary approaches to achieve diversification of risk and returns; manager selection, where SEI acts as a manager-of-managers, selecting some of the best
style-specific money managers from a global network of money managers; continuous portfolio management, to ensure each manager’s investment approach
remains consistent with the objectives of the portfolio; and tax management, for an emphasis on after-tax returns.
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As of December 31, 2008, we managed $96.6 billion in total assets, net of $37.7 billion in assets managed by LSV Asset Management (LSV). Our assets under
management include $67.7 billion invested in our fixed-income and equity funds or through separately managed account programs, $18.2 billion invested in our
liquidity funds and $10.7 billion invested in our collective trust fund programs.

Revenues from investment management programs are primarily earned as a contractual percentage of net assets under management. These revenues are
recognized in Asset management, administration and distribution fees on the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Fund Processing

Fund processing solutions include a full range of administration and distribution support services to mutual funds, collective trust funds, hedge funds, fund of
funds, private equity funds and other types of investment funds. Administrative services include fund accounting, trustee and custodial support, legal support,
transfer agency and shareholder servicing. Distribution support services range from market and industry insight and analysis to identifying distribution
opportunities.

We offer these fund administration and distribution services to U.S. banks, investment management firms and investment companies that sponsor and distribute
mutual funds and other U.S.-regulated investments. We also offer these services to investment managers worldwide that sponsor and distribute alternative
investments, including hedge funds, fund of funds, private equity funds, and other investment vehicles. We also offer operational outsourcing solutions for the
administration and management of separately managed account programs, as well as total operational outsourcing solutions for investment management firms.

As of December 31, 2008, we administered $245.3 billion in non-SEI mutual funds and other pooled assets.

Revenues from fund processing are primarily earned based upon a contractual percentage of net assets under administration. These revenues are recognized in
Asset management, administration and distribution fees on the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Business Segments

Business segments are generally organized around our target markets. Financial information about each business segment is contained in Note 14 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements. Our business segments are:

Private Banks – provides investment processing and investment management programs to banks and trust institutions worldwide and independent wealth
advisers located in the United Kingdom;

Investment Advisors – provides investment management programs to affluent investors through a network of independent registered investment advisors,
financial planners and other investment professionals in the United States;

Institutional Investors – provides investment management programs and administrative outsourcing solutions to retirement plan sponsors and not-for-profit
organizations worldwide;

Investment Managers – provides investment processing, fund processing and operational outsourcing solutions to investment managers, fund companies
and banking institutions located in the United States and to investment managers worldwide of alternative asset classes such as hedge funds, fund of funds,
and private equity funds;

Investments in New Businesses – provides investment management programs to ultra-high-net-worth families residing in the United States through the SEI
Wealth Network®; and

LSV Asset Management – is a registered investment advisor that provides investment advisory services to institutions, including pension plans and
investment companies.
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The percentage of consolidated revenues generated by each business segment for the last three years was:
 
   2008  2007  2006 
Private Banks   33% 30% 31%
Investment Advisors   18% 19% 19%
Institutional Investors   16% 15% 14%
Investment Managers   11% 10% 10%
Investments in New Businesses   1% 1% 1%
LSV   21% 25% 25%

   
 

  
 

  
 

  100% 100% 100%

Private Banks

The Private Banks segment delivers investment processing services and investment management programs worldwide to banks and trust institutions and
independent wealth advisers in the United Kingdom.

Our investment processing services enable banks and trust institutions to reduce risk, improve quality, and gain operational efficiency thus enabling them to focus
on growing their business and serving client needs. Investment processing solutions are delivered via two primary business models: the Global Wealth
Technology Services (GWTS) model and the Global Wealth Services (GWS) model. In both models, we own, maintain and operate the software applications and
information processing facilities.

Banks using our GWTS model outsource investment processing technology software and computer processing but retain responsibility for investment operations,
client administration, and investment management. Clients operate our GWTS solution remotely while fully supported by our data center using dedicated
telecommunications networks. The GWTS model includes a dedicated relationship team that supports our client’s business. We assist our clients with strategically
reevaluating their systems and process needs as their businesses change.

The GWS model is an extension of our GWTS solution. It was designed for private banks and other trust organizations that prefer to outsource their entire
investment operation. With the GWS solution, we assume the entire back-office processing function. The GWS model includes: investment processing; account
access and reporting; audit, compliance and regulatory support data generation; custody and safekeeping of assets; income collections; securities settlement; and
other related trust activities.

New clients undergo a business transformation process which can take a few months for smaller institutions and up to 15 months or more for larger institutions.
During the transformation process, we collaborate with new clients to understand their strategic goals and objectives. During this transformation, systems,
operations, and business processes are evaluated and optimized to meet client objectives. We typically earn a one-time implementation fee for these business
transformation services.

Client contracts have initial terms that are generally three to seven years in length. At December 31, 2008, we had significant relationships with approximately
125 banks and trust institutions in the United States, including trust departments of 9 of the 20 largest U.S. banks.

The Global Wealth Services solution will be further enhanced through the Global Wealth Platform. Our target markets for the enhanced Global Wealth Services
solution primarily include private banks and independent wealth advisers in the United Kingdom as well as community, regional and national private banks in the
United States. We believe the enhanced Global Wealth Services solution enabled by the new infrastructure will improve the client experience and place our clients
in a superior position to serve the changing needs of their clients.

Our principal competitors in the investment processing business for this segment include Odyssey Technologies, Metavante Corporation, SunGard Data Systems
Inc. and Temenos Group AG. We also consider “in-house” solutions to be a form of competition. Many large financial institutions develop, operate and maintain
proprietary investment and trust accounting systems.

Our investment management programs for banks and distribution partners are offered worldwide. At December 31, 2008, there were approximately 305
investment management clients worldwide. We also had single-product relationships with approximately 185 additional banks and trust institutions. The principal
competitors for this business are Dimensional Fund Advisors, Federated Investors, Inc., LPL Financial Corporation, Russell Investment Group, a subsidiary of
The Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance Company, and investment manager of manager programs offered by other firms. We also consider “in-house” internal
asset management capabilities to be a form of competition.
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Investment Advisors

The Investment Advisors segment offers wealth management solutions to registered investment advisors, many of whom are affiliated with or are registered as
independent broker-dealers, financial planners, and life insurance agents located throughout the United States. These wealth management solutions include our
investment management programs and back-office investment processing outsourcing services. We also help advisors manage and grow their businesses by
giving them access to our marketing support programs, business assessment assistance and recommended management practices. Our solutions aim to help
investment advisors reduce risk, improve quality, and gain operational efficiency to devote more of their resources to servicing their clients.

Advisors are responsible for the investor relationship which includes creating financial plans, implementing investment strategies and educating and servicing
their customers. Advisors may customize portfolios to include separate account managers as well as SEI-sponsored mutual funds. Our wealth and investment
programs are designed to be attractive to affluent or high-net-worth individual investors with over $250 thousand of investable assets and small to medium-sized
institutional plans.

We continually enhance our offering to meet the emerging needs of our advisors and their end clients. For example, in 2008, we completed the rollout of our new
proposal generation software for advisors and introduced a new statement format to our end investors.

Although we have agreements with over 6,000 financial advisors, our business is based primarily on approximately 1,100 clients who, at December 31, 2008, had
at least $5.0 million each in customer assets invested in our mutual funds and separately managed accounts. Revenues are earned largely as a percentage of
average assets under management.

The principal competition for our investment management products is from other money managers and mutual fund companies. In the advisor distributor channel,
the principal competitors include AssetMark Investment Services Inc., Brinker Capital, EnvestNet Asset Management, Inc., Fidelity Investments, Lockwood
Advisors, Inc., a subsidiary of The Bank of New York Mellon, and other broker-dealers.

Institutional Investors

The Institutional Investors segment offers investment management programs and administrative outsourcing solutions for retirement plan sponsors and not-for-
profit organizations globally. Clients can outsource their entire investment management needs and the administration for defined benefit, defined contribution,
funded welfare and non-qualified deferred compensation plans, as well as the administration of endowment and foundation asset pools.

The outsourcing program provides a strategic platform integrating the Manager-of-Managers investment process, plan administration services, and consulting
services. Plan administration services include trustee, custodial, benefit payment services, record-keeping services, and donor administration. Consulting services
include actuarial services, asset liability modeling, and the customization of an asset allocation plan that is designed to meet long-term objectives.

By outsourcing retirement plan services, we believe clients benefit from an investment approach built around an investment plan designed to meet the client’s
long-term business and plan objectives and an investment process that removes the responsibility of manager selection. This approach is designed to reduce
business risk, provide ongoing due diligence, and increase operational efficiency.

Fees are primarily earned as a percentage of average assets under management. At December 31, 2008, we had relationships with approximately 550 institutional
investor clients. The principal competitors for this segment are Frank Russell Company, a subsidiary of The Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance Company, and
Northern Trust Corporation.

Investment Managers

The Investment Managers segment provides investment managers with a suite of back and middle-office investment processing services associated with operating
an investment fund or account. We offer managers based in the United States support for traditional investment products such as mutual funds, exchange-traded
funds, institutional and separate accounts, and provide outsourcing services including accounting, administration, reconciliation, investor servicing and client
reporting. In addition, we provide many of the same services to investment managers located worldwide who manage alternative investments such as hedge
funds, funds of funds, and private equity funds. We believe our fund and investment processing outsourcing solutions help investment managers reduce risk,
improve accuracy and efficiency, and receive tools and information to better manage their business.
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Contracts for our fund and investment processing services generally have terms ranging from one to five years. Fees are primarily earned as a percentage of
average assets under management and administration. At December 31, 2008, we had relationships with approximately 180 investment management companies
and alternative investment managers. Our principal competitors for this segment include PFPC Worldwide Inc., a member of the PNC Financial Services Group,
Inc., Citco, and State Street Bank and Trust Company.

Investments in New Businesses

The Investments in New Businesses segment represents other business ventures intended to expand our investment solutions to include ultra-high-net-worth
families who reside in the United States. The family wealth management solution offers flexible family-office type services through a highly personalized
solution while utilizing the Manager-of-Managers investment process.

The principal competitors for the family wealth solution are diversified financial services providers focused on the ultra-high-net-worth market.

LSV Asset Management

LSV is a registered investment advisor that provides investment advisory services to institutions, including pension plans and investment companies. LSV is a
value-oriented, contrarian money manager offering a deep-value investment alternative utilizing a proprietary equity investment model to identify securities
generally considered to be out of favor by the market. LSV is currently the specialist advisor to a number of our equity mutual funds. In addition, LSV is a
portfolio manager to a portion of our global investment products. At December 31, 2008, LSV managed approximately $37.7 billion in total assets, of which $1.1
billion were assets in our mutual funds.

Research and Development

We are devoting significant resources to research and development, including expenditures for new technology platforms, enhancements to existing technology
platforms, and new investment products and services. We spent approximately $117.5 million in 2008, $141.9 million in 2007, and $139.1 million in 2006, of
which we capitalized approximately $56.2 million in 2008, $61.4 million in 2007, and $73.3 million in 2006 relating to the development of new technology
platforms. Total research and development expenditures as a percentage of revenues were 11.9 percent in 2008, 13.9 percent in 2007, and 15.7 percent in 2006.
All percentages exclude the revenues of LSV.

The majority of our research and development spending is related to building our Global Wealth Platform (GWP). GWP combines our proprietary applications
with those built by third-party providers, and integrates them into a single technology solution, providing a common user experience. In order to achieve this, we
developed enterprise technology architecture to support component acquisition, integration, operation, and communication. This integration supports straight-
through business processing and enables the transformation of front, middle and back-office operations.

The solution will serve European and U.S. markets. GWP provides the technology platform for the business solutions now being marketed to private banks and
independent wealth adviser organizations in the United Kingdom and continental Europe. The TRUST 3000® platform does not meet certain requirements of
European markets such as trade date reporting, trade date investment accounting, and multi-lingual reporting. In U.S. markets, we believe the demand for the
advanced capabilities of the new platform will enable us to market our services to global wealth managers and existing clients in the Private Banks segment and
improve the services we offer in the Investment Advisors segment.

GWP will eventually be used at some level by all business segments, except LSV. The front-end components will be used by us and by our clients to manage
customer administration and portfolio management. The back-office components will streamline all investment-related activities and will eliminate manual
processes and perform trade order execution and settlement activities.
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Marketing and Sales

Our business solutions are directly marketed to potential clients in our target markets. We employ approximately 100 sales representatives who operate from
offices located throughout the United States, Canada, the United Kingdom, continental Europe, South Africa, Asia and other locations.

Customers

In 2008, no single customer accounted for more than ten percent of revenues in any business segment.

Personnel

At February 20, 2009, we had approximately 2,200 full-time and 60 part-time employees. None of our employees is unionized. Management considers employee
relations to be generally good.

Regulatory Considerations

Our principal wholly-owned subsidiaries are SEI Investments Distribution Co., or SIDCO, SEI Investments Management Corporation, or SIMC, SEI Private
Trust Company, or SPTC, and SEI Investments (Europe) Limited, or SIEL. SIDCO is a broker-dealer registered with the SEC under the Securities and Exchange
Act of 1934 and is a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority. SIMC is an investment advisor registered with the SEC under the Investment
Advisers Act of 1940. SPTC is a limited purpose federal thrift chartered and regulated by the United States Office of Thrift Supervision. SIEL is an investment
manager and financial institution subject to regulation by the Financial Services Authority of the United Kingdom. In addition, various SEI subsidiaries are
subject to the jurisdiction of regulatory authorities in Canada, the Republic of Ireland and other foreign countries. The Company has a minority ownership interest
in LSV, which is also an investment advisor registered with the SEC.

SIDCO and SIMC are subject to various federal and state laws and regulations that grant supervisory agencies, including the SEC, broad administrative powers.
In the event of a failure to comply with these laws and regulations, the possible sanctions that may be imposed include the suspension of individual employees,
limitations on the permissibility of SIDCO, SIMC, SEI, and our other subsidiaries to engage in business for specified periods of time, the revocation of applicable
registration as a broker-dealer or investment advisor, as the case may be, censures, and fines. SPTC and SEI Trust Company, a state chartered trust company, are
subject to laws and regulations imposed by federal and state banking authorities. In the event of a failure to comply with these laws and regulations, restrictions,
including revocation of applicable banking charter, may be placed on the business of these companies. Additionally, the securities and banking laws applicable to
us and our subsidiaries provide for certain private rights of action that could give rise to civil litigation. Any litigation could have significant financial and non-
financial consequences including monetary judgments and the requirement to take action or limit activities that could ultimately affect our business.

Compliance with existing and future regulations and responding to and complying with recent regulatory activity affecting broker-dealers, investment advisors,
investment companies and their service providers and financial institutions could have a significant impact on us. We have responded and are currently
responding to various regulatory examinations, inquiries and requests. As a result of these examinations, inquiries and requests, we review our compliance
procedures and business operations and make changes as we deem necessary.

We offer investment and banking products that also are subject to regulation by the federal and state securities and banking authorities, as well as foreign
regulatory authorities, where applicable. Existing or future regulations that affect these products could lead to a reduction in sales of these products.

Our bank clients are subject to supervision by federal and state banking authorities concerning the manner in which such clients purchase and receive our
products and services. Our plan sponsor clients and our subsidiaries providing services to those clients are subject to supervision by the Department of Labor and
compliance with employee benefit regulations. Investment advisor and broker-dealer clients are regulated by the SEC and state securities authorities. Existing or
future regulations applicable to our clients may affect our clients’ purchase of our products and services.

In addition, see the discussion of governmental regulations in Item 1A “Risk Factors” for a description of the risks that proposed regulatory changes may present
for our business.
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Available Information

We maintain a website at www.seic.com and make available free of charge through the Investors section of this website our annual reports on Form 10-K,
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and all amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Exchange Act as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with, or furnish it to, the SEC. We include our website in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K only as an inactive textual reference and do not intend it to be an active link to our website. The material on our website is not part of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

We believe that the risks and uncertainties described below are those that impose the greatest threat to the sustainability of our business. However, there are other
risks and uncertainties that exist that may be unknown to us or, in the present opinion of our management, do not currently pose a material risk of harm to us. The
risk and uncertainties facing our business, including those described below, could materially adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial
condition and liquidity.

Our revenues and earnings are affected by changes in capital markets. A majority of our revenues are earned based on the value of assets invested in investment
products that we manage or administer. Significant fluctuations in securities prices may materially affect the value of these assets and may also influence an
investor’s decision to invest in and maintain an investment in a mutual fund or other investment product. As a result, our revenues and earnings derived from
assets under management and administration could be adversely affected.

A majority of the securities held by our investment products are valued using quoted prices from active markets gathered by external pricing services. Securities
for which market prices are not readily available are valued in accordance with procedures established by the Funds’ Board of Trustees and monitored by a Fair
Value Committee designated by the Funds’ Board of Trustees. These procedures may utilize unobservable inputs that are not gathered from any active markets
and involve considerable judgment. If these valuations prove to be inaccurate, our revenues and earnings from assets under management could be adversely
affected.

We are exposed to product development risk. We continually strive to increase revenues and meet our customers’ needs by introducing new products and services.
As a result, we are subject to product development risk, which may result in loss if we are unable to develop and deliver fully functional products to our target
markets that address our clients’ needs and that are developed on a timely basis and reflect an attractive value proposition. Our spending related to developing
new products is for the purpose of enhancing our competitive position in the industry. A significant portion of this spending has been capitalized. In the event that
we fail to develop products or services at an acceptable cost or on a timely basis or if we fail to deliver functional products and services which are of sound,
economic value to our clients and our target markets, or an inability to support the product in a cost-effective manner, we could suffer significant financial loss.

We intend to implement enhancements and upgrades to the Global Wealth Platform through a series of releases. Future releases may include enhancements that
could replace significant components that currently exist in the platform. If this occurs, we may incur significant costs due to the requirement to immediately
expense the remaining net book value of previously capitalized development costs of those components that were replaced.

We are dependent upon third-party service providers in our operations. We utilize numerous third-party service providers in our operations, in the development of
new products, and in the maintenance of our proprietary systems. A failure by a third-party service provider could expose us to an inability to provide contractual
services to our clients in a timely basis. Additionally, if a third-party service provider is unable to provide these services, we may incur significant costs to either
internalize some of these services or find a suitable alternative.

During the past several months, the financial services industry has faced an extremely difficult economic environment. Many of the challenges posed by this
environment have raised serious concerns related to the financial health of banks. We utilize the services of banks in our operations. Although we have
undertaken measures to reduce the potential disruption to our operations and the delivery of services to our clients in the event that any of these banks should fail,
our revenues and earnings could be significantly affected if the financial health of certain banks continues to deteriorate or if they become insolvent.

Liquidity issues in the credit markets may affect our earnings and liquidity resources. Certain of our money market funds hold senior notes issued by structured
investment vehicles which have ceased making payments on its outstanding notes on the scheduled maturity dates. We entered into support agreements to protect
the shareholders of our money market funds from the liquidity risk associated with these securities. The amount of our obligation under these agreements and the
corresponding charge against our earnings is dependent upon prevailing conditions
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in the credit markets that affect the value of structured investment vehicles, on the creditworthiness of the structured investment vehicle securities and the overall
asset levels of our money market funds. Additionally, in the event the fund realizes a loss from the sale or disposition of a structured investment vehicle, we
would be required to pay an amount to the funds of our obligation that could negatively impact our liquidity resources.

Poor fund performance may affect our revenues and earnings. Our ability to maintain our existing clients and attract new clients may be negatively affected if the
performance of our mutual funds and other investment products, relative to market conditions and other comparable competitive investment products, is lower.
Investors may decide to place their investable funds elsewhere which would reduce the amount of assets we manage resulting in a decrease in our revenues.

Consolidation within our target markets may affect our business. Merger and acquisition activity between banks and other financial institutions could reduce the
number of existing and prospective clients. Consolidation activities may also cause larger institutions to internalize some or all of our services. These factors may
negatively impact our ability to generate future growth in revenues and earnings.

The Company and our clients are subject to extensive governmental regulation. Our various business activities are conducted through entities which may be
registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) as an investment advisor, a broker-dealer, a transfer agent, an investment company or with the
United States Office of Thrift Supervision or state banking authorities as a trust company. Our broker-dealer is also a member of the Financial Industry
Regulatory Authority and is subject to its rules and oversight. In addition, various subsidiaries of the Company are registered with, and subject to the oversight of,
regulatory authorities primarily in the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland. Many of our clients are subject to substantial regulation by federal and state
banking, securities or insurance authorities or the Department of Labor. Compliance with existing and future regulations and responding to and complying with
recent regulatory activity affecting broker-dealers, investment advisors, investment companies and their service providers and financial institutions could have a
significant impact on us. We have responded and are currently responding to various regulatory examinations, inquiries and requests. As a result of these
examinations, inquiries and requests, we review our compliance procedures and business operations and make changes as we deem necessary.

We offer investment and banking products that also are subject to regulation by the federal and state securities and banking authorities, as well as foreign
regulatory authorities, where applicable. Existing or future regulations that affect these products could lead to a reduction in sales of these products. Directed
brokerage payment arrangements offered by us are also subject to the SEC and other federal regulatory authorities. Changes in the regulation of directed
brokerage or soft dollar payment arrangements or strategic decisions of our clients regarding these arrangements could affect sales of some services, primarily our
brokerage services.

As a result of the recent economic and political developments, there has been an unusual amount of speculation about governmental regulation of financial
institutions and financial products. Changes in laws or regulations and changes in the identity or policies of the regulators having jurisdiction over our regulated
subsidiaries, products or clients could have a material impact on our markets, customers, solutions, revenues and costs.

We are exposed to systems and technology risks. Through our proprietary systems, we maintain and process data for our clients that is critical to their business
operations. An unanticipated interruption of service may have significant ramifications, such as lost data, damaged software codes, or inaccurate processing of
transactions. As a result, the costs necessary to rectify these problems may be substantial.

We are exposed to data security risks. A failure to safeguard the integrity and confidentiality of client data and our proprietary data from the infiltration by an
unauthorized user that is either stored on or transmitted between our proprietary systems or to other third party service provider systems may lead to
modifications or theft of critical and sensitive data pertaining to us or our clients. The costs incurred to correct client data and prevent further unauthorized access
to our data or client data could be extensive.

We are dependent upon third party approvals. Many of the investment advisors through which we distribute our investment offerings are affiliated with
independent broker-dealers or other networks, which have regulatory responsibility for the advisor’s practice. As part of the regulatory oversight, these broker-
dealers or networks must approve the use of our investment products by affiliated advisors within their networks. Failure to receive such approval, or the
withdrawal of such approval, could adversely affect the marketing of our investment products.

We are exposed to operational risks. Operational risk generally refers to the risk of loss resulting from our operations, including, but not limited to, improper or
unauthorized execution and processing of transactions, deficiencies in our operating systems, business disruptions and inadequacies or breaches in our internal
control processes. We operate different businesses in diverse markets and are reliant on the ability of our employees and
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systems to process large volumes of transactions often within short time frames. In the event of a breakdown or improper operation of systems, human error or
improper action by employees, we could suffer financial loss, regulatory sanctions or damage to our reputation. In order to mitigate and control operational risk,
we continue to enhance policies and procedures that are designed to identify and manage operational risk.

Changes in, or interpretation of, accounting principles could affect our revenues and earnings. We prepare our consolidated financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A change in these principles can have a significant effect on our reported results and may even retroactively affect
previously reported results.

Changes in, or interpretations of, tax rules and regulations may adversely affect our effective tax rates. Unanticipated changes in our tax rates could affect our
future results of operations. Our future effective tax rates could be adversely affected by changes in tax laws or the interpretation of tax laws. We are subject to
possible examinations of our income tax returns by the Internal Revenue Service and state and foreign tax authorities. We regularly assess the likelihood of
outcomes resulting from these examinations to determine the adequacy of our provision for income taxes, however, there can be no assurance that the final
determination of any examination will not have an adverse effect on our operating results or financial position.

Currency fluctuations could negatively affect our future revenues and earnings as our business grows globally. We operate and invest globally to expand our
business into foreign markets. Our foreign subsidiaries use the local currency as the functional currency. As these businesses evolve, our exposure to changes in
currency exchange rates may increase. Adverse movements in currency exchange rates may negatively affect our operating results, liquidity and financial
condition.

We rely on our executive officers and senior management. Most of our executive officers and senior management personnel do not have employment agreements
with us. The loss of these individuals may have a material adverse affect on our future operations.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

None.

Item 2. Properties.

Our corporate headquarters is located in Oaks, Pennsylvania and consists of nine buildings situated on approximately 90 acres. We own and operate the land and
buildings, which encompass approximately 486,000 square feet of office space and 34,000 square feet of data center space. We lease other offices which
aggregate 60,000 square feet. We also own a 3,400 square foot condominium that is used for business purposes in New York, New York.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

On September 30, 2004, SIDCO was named as a defendant in a putative consolidated amended class action complaint (the “PBHG Complaint”) filed in the
United States District Court for the District of Maryland titled “Stephen Carey v. Pilgrim Baxter & Associates, LTD, et. al.” The PBHG Complaint was
purportedly made on behalf of all persons that purchased or held PBHG mutual funds during the period from November 1, 1998 to November 13, 2003 and
related generally to various market timing practices allegedly permitted by the PBHG Funds. The suit named as defendants some 36 persons and entities,
including various persons and entities affiliated with Pilgrim Baxter & Associates, Ltd., various PBHG Funds, various alleged market timers, various alleged
facilitating brokers, various clearing brokers, various banks that allegedly financed the market timing activities, various distributors/underwriters and others. The
PBHG Complaint alleged that SIDCO was the named distributor/underwriter from November 1998 until July 2001 for various PBHG funds in which market
timing allegedly occurred during that period. The PBHG Complaint generally alleged that the prospectus for certain PBHG funds made misstatements and
omissions concerning market timing practices in PBHG funds. The PBHG Complaint alleged that SIDCO violated Sections 11 and 12(a)(2) of the Securities Act
of 1933, Section 10(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and Rule 10b-5 thereunder, and Sections 34(b) and 36(a) of the Investment Company Act of 1940,
and that SIDCO breached its fiduciary duties, engaged in constructive fraud and aided and abetted the breach by others of their fiduciary duties. The PBHG
Complaint did not name SIDCO or any of its affiliates as a market timer, facilitating or clearing broker or financier of market timers. The PBHG Complaint
sought unspecified compensatory and punitive damages, disgorgement and restitution. In 2006, the plaintiffs submitted a proposed form of order dismissing
SIDCO from the action, but the Court has not yet acted on the proposed order.
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Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

There were no matters submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of 2008.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

Information about our executive officers is contained in Item 10 of this report and is incorporated by reference into this Part I.
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PART II
 
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities.

Price Range of Common Stock and Dividends:

Our common stock is traded on The Nasdaq Global Select Market® (NASDAQ) under the symbol “SEIC.” The following table shows the high and low sales
prices for our common stock as reported by NASDAQ and the dividends declared on our common stock for the last two years. Our Board of Directors intends to
declare future dividends on a semiannual basis.
 
2008   High   Low   Dividends
First Quarter   $32.49  $22.99  $ —  
Second Quarter    26.93   22.84   .08
Third Quarter    24.99   16.14   —  
Fourth Quarter    23.77   11.64   .08
 
2007   High   Low   Dividends
First Quarter   $32.26  $28.63  $ —  
Second Quarter    32.64   28.23   .07
Third Quarter    29.64   22.45   —  
Fourth Quarter    33.12   27.02   .07

As of January 30, 2009, we estimate that we had approximately 510 shareholders of record.

For information on our equity compensation plans, refer to Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements and Item 12 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Comparison of Cumulative Total Return of Common Stock, Industry Index and Nasdaq Market Index:
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities:

Our Board of Directors has authorized the repurchase of up to $1.53 billion of our common stock. Currently, there is no expiration date for our common stock
repurchase program.

Information regarding the repurchase of common stock during the three months ended December 31, 2008 is:
 

Period

  Total Number
of Shares

Purchased

  Average
Price Paid
per Share

  

Total Number of
Shares Purchased
as Part of Publicly

Announced
Program

  

Approximate Dollar
Value of Shares
that May Yet Be

Purchased
Under the Program        

October 1 – 31, 2008   773,000  $ 14.96  773,000  $ 87,539,000
November 1 – 30, 2008   312,000   14.83  312,000   82,921,000
December 1 – 31, 2008   25,000   15.38  25,000   82,536,000

          

Total   1,110,000  $ 14.93  1,110,000  
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data.
(In thousands, except per-share data)

This table presents selected consolidated financial information for the five-year period ended December 31, 2008. This data should be read in conjunction with
the financial statements and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” included in this Annual Report on Form
10-K.
 
Year Ended December 31,   2008   2007   2006 (A)(B)   2005   2004
Revenues   $1,247,919  $1,369,028  $1,175,749  $773,007  $692,269
Total expenses    751,570   775,053   677,298   557,915   482,411

    
 

   
 

   
 

       

Income from operations    496,349   593,975   498,451   215,092   209,858
Other (expense) income    (271,375)  (184,435)  (139,695)  80,117   55,273

    
 

   
 

   
 

       

Income before income taxes    224,974   409,540   358,756   295,209   265,131
Income taxes    85,720   149,731   121,766   106,865   96,110

    
 

   
 

   
 

       

Net income    139,254   259,809   236,990   188,344   169,021
    

 
   

 
   

 
       

Basic earnings per common share   $ 0.73  $ 1.32  $ 1.20  $ 0.94  $ 0.82
Shares used to calculate basic earnings per common share    192,057   196,120   197,364   200,742   206,798

    
 

   
 

   
 

       

Diluted earnings per common share   $ 0.71  $ 1.28  $ 1.17  $ 0.91  $ 0.80
Shares used to calculate diluted earnings per common share    195,233   202,231   203,266   206,276   211,732

    
 

   
 

   
 

       

Cash dividends declared per common share   $ .16  $ .14  $ .12  $ .11  $ .10
    

 
   

 
   

 
       

Financial Position as of December 31,        
Cash and cash equivalents   $ 416,643  $ 360,921  $ 286,948  $130,128  $216,966
Total assets   $1,341,715  $1,252,365  $1,079,705  $657,147  $615,475
Long-term debt (including current portion)   $ 31,532  $ 51,971  $ 80,638  $ 14,389  $ 23,945
Shareholders’ equity   $ 766,004  $ 756,383  $ 630,512  $421,688  $403,942
 

(A) Beginning in 2006, we consolidated the accounts of both LSV and LSV Employee Group with the amount of ownership of the other existing partners
reflected as minority interest. In prior periods, our proportionate share in the earnings of LSV earnings was reported in Equity in earnings of unconsolidated
affiliate which was a component of other income (See Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements).

 

(B) Beginning in 2006, we adopted the provisions of SFAS 123(R) “Share-Based Payment.”
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
(In thousands, except per-share data)

This discussion reviews and analyzes the consolidated financial condition at December 31, 2008 and 2007, the consolidated results of operations for the years
ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006, and other factors that may affect future financial performance. This discussion should be read in conjunction with the
Selected Financial Data included in Item 6 of this Annual Report and the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
included in Item 8 of this Annual Report.

Overview

Our Business and Business Segments

We are a leading global provider of investment processing, fund processing, and investment management business outsourcing solutions that help corporations,
financial institutions, financial advisors, and ultra-high-net-worth families create and manage wealth. Investment processing fees are earned as monthly fees for
contracted services, including computer processing services, software licenses, and trust operations services, as well as transaction-based fees for providing
securities valuation and trade-execution. Fund processing and investment management fees are earned as a percentage of average assets under management or
administration. As of December 31, 2008, through our subsidiaries and partnerships in which we have a significant interest, we administer $379.6 billion in
mutual fund and pooled assets, manage $134.3 billion in assets, and operate from numerous offices worldwide.

Our reportable business segments are:

Private Banks – provides investment processing and investment management programs to banks and trust institutions worldwide and independent wealth
advisers located in the United Kingdom and accounts for 33 percent of consolidated revenues in 2008;

Investment Advisors – provides investment management programs to affluent investors through a network of independent registered investment advisors,
financial planners and other investment professionals in the United States and accounts for 18 percent of consolidated revenues in 2008;

Institutional Investors – provides investment management programs and administrative outsourcing solutions to retirement plan sponsors and not-for-profit
organizations worldwide and accounts for 16 percent of consolidated revenues in 2008;

Investment Managers – provides investment processing, fund processing and operational outsourcing solutions to investment managers, fund companies
and banking institutions located in the United States and to investment managers worldwide of alternative asset classes such as hedge funds, fund of funds,
and private equity funds and accounts for 11 percent of consolidated revenues in 2008;

Investments in New Businesses – provides investment management programs to ultra-high-net-worth families residing in the United States through the SEI
Wealth Network®. This segment accounts for one percent of consolidated revenues in 2008; and

LSV Asset Management – is a registered investment advisor that provides investment advisory services to institutions, including pension plans and
investment companies. This segment accounts for 21 percent of consolidated revenues in 2008.
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Results of Operations

Revenues, Expenses, Income from operations and Income before income taxes by business segment for the year ended 2008 compared to the year ended 2007,
and for the year ended 2007 compared to the year ended 2006 are:
 
         Percent

Change 
    Percent

Change Year Ended December 31,   2008   2007    2006   
Revenues:       

Private Banks   $ 408,500  $ 413,922  (1%)  $ 367,449  13%
Investment Advisors    223,164   259,288  (14%)   225,716  15%
Institutional Investors    198,154   199,593  (1%)   164,962  21%
Investment Managers    147,968   143,375  3%   118,964  21%
Investments in New Businesses    6,865   7,205  (5%)   7,537  (4%)
LSV    263,268   345,645  (24%)   291,121  19%

    
 

   
 

    
 

 

Total revenues    1,247,919   1,369,028  (9%)   1,175,749  16%
Expenses:       

Private Banks    326,661   330,923  (1%)   279,089  19%
Investment Advisors    122,231   124,942  (2%)   111,907  12%
Institutional Investors    112,866   121,365  (7%)   106,377  14%
Investment Managers    101,078   101,401  —     90,799  12%
Investments in New Businesses    15,795   19,670  (20%)   22,891  (14%)
LSV (2)    164,783   213,926  (23%)   178,727  20%

    
 

   
 

    
 

 

Total expenses    843,414   912,227  (8%)   789,790  16%
Income from business segments:       

Private Banks    81,839   82,999  (1%)   88,360  (6%)
Investment Advisors    100,933   134,346  (25%)   113,809  18%
Institutional Investors    85,288   78,228  9%   58,585  34%
Investment Managers    46,890   41,974  12%   28,165  49%
Investments in New Businesses    (8,930)  (12,465) 28%   (15,354) 19%
LSV    98,485   131,719  (25%)   112,394  17%

    
 

   
 

    
 

 

Total income from business segments    404,505   456,801  (11%)   385,959  18%
    

 
   

 
    

 
 

Corporate overhead expenses    (38,955)  (42,045) (7%)   (38,842) 8%
LSV Employee Group (1)    (7,280)  (7,281) —     (7,281) —   
Minority interest reflected in segments (2)    138,079   186,500  (26%)   158,615  18%

    
 

   
 

    
 

 

Income from operations    496,349   593,975  (16%)   498,451  19%
    

 
   

 
    

 
 

Other expense, net    (271,375)  (184,435) 47%   (139,695) 32%
    

 
   

 
    

 
 

Income before income taxes   $ 224,974  $ 409,540  (45%)  $ 358,756  14%
 

(1) Primarily relates to amortization costs of identifiable intangible assets.
 

(2) For the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, includes $135,251, $181,591 and $153,381, respectively, of minority interest of the other partners
of LSV.
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Asset Balances

This table presents assets of our clients, or of our clients’ customers, for which we provide management or administrative services. These assets are not included
in our balance sheets because we do not own them.
 
Asset Balances                 
(In millions)   As of December 31,  
         Percent

Change 
    Percent

Change    2008   2007    2006   
Private Banks:          

Equity and fixed-income programs   $ 10,573  $ 21,160  (50%)  $ 16,806  26%
Collective trust fund programs    1,145   1,007  14%   1,251  (20%)
Liquidity funds    9,194   8,886  3%   8,513  4%

               

Total assets under management   $ 20,912  $ 31,053  (33%)  $ 26,570  17%
Client proprietary assets under administration    10,622   14,235  (25%)   14,738  (3%)

               

Total assets   $ 31,534  $ 45,288  (30%)  $ 41,308  10%
Investment Advisors:          

Equity and fixed-income programs   $ 21,631  $ 36,378  (41%)  $ 34,096  7%
Collective trust fund programs    2,606   2,295  14%   2,480  (7%)
Liquidity funds    3,436   2,079  65%   1,421  46%

               

Total assets under management   $ 27,673  $ 40,752  (32%)  $ 37,997  7%
Institutional Investors:          

Equity and fixed-income programs   $ 34,966  $ 44,833  (22%)  $ 37,720  19%
Collective trust fund programs    942   897  5%   1,081  (17%)
Liquidity funds    4,582   3,629  26%   3,371  8%

               

Total assets under management   $ 40,490  $ 49,359  (18%)  $ 42,172  17%
Investment Managers:          

Equity and fixed-income programs   $ 8  $ 24  (67%)  $ 30  (20%)
Collective trust fund programs    5,974   6,651  (10%)   8,675  (23%)
Liquidity funds    869   325  167%   215  51%

               

Total assets under management   $ 6,851  $ 7,000  (2%)  $ 8,920  (22%)
Client proprietary assets under administration    234,628   215,124  9%   170,344  26%

               

Total assets   $241,479  $222,124  9%  $179,264  24%
Investments in New Businesses:          

Equity and fixed-income programs   $ 519  $ 929  (44%)  $ 805  15%
Liquidity funds    153   74  107%   53  40%

               

Total assets under management   $ 672  $ 1,003  (33%)  $ 858  17%
LSV:          

Equity and fixed-income programs   $ 37,714  $ 67,599  (44%)  $ 64,970  4%
Consolidated:          

Equity and fixed-income programs   $ 105,411  $170,923  (38%)  $154,427  11%
Collective trust fund programs    10,667   10,850  (2%)   13,487  (20%)
Liquidity funds    18,234   14,993  22%   13,573  10%

               

Total assets under management   $134,312  $196,766  (32%)  $181,487  8%
Client proprietary assets under administration    245,250   229,359  7%   185,082  24%

               

Total assets under management and administration   $379,562  $426,125  (11%)  $366,569  16%
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Assets under management are total assets of our clients or their customers invested in our equity and fixed-income investment programs, collective trust fund
programs, and liquidity funds for which we provide asset management services. Assets under management and administration are total assets of our clients or
their customers for whom we provide administrative services, including client proprietary fund balances for which we provide administration and/or distribution
services.

General Overview

Recent events in 2008 had unprecedented effects on the capital markets and greatly impacted the values of our assets under management and administration.
During most of 2008, the equity markets declined steadily but then rapidly deteriorated beginning in September and throughout the remainder of the year. The
S&P 5001 and the Dow Jones Industrial Average2 declined by over 35 percent and 30 percent, respectively, in 2008. Both measures declined by approximately 20
percent in the fourth quarter. Asset management, administration and distribution fees trended downward in 2008, following the decline of the capital markets.
New client activity in our Institutional Investors and Investment Managers segments served to offset some of the devaluation in our assets under management and
administration caused by the capital markets.

The lack of confidence in the capital markets also drove investors to seek highly-liquid, stable investments, such as money market funds, U.S. Treasury securities
and alternative investments such as commodities. Our revenues were negatively impacted by this trend as some clients transferred their assets from our higher
margin investment products, such as equity and fixed-income funds, into our lower margin investment products, such as money market funds. This tendency was
especially true for our assets under management of U.S. investors in our Investment Advisors segment. Our revenues were also negatively impacted by
withdrawals of assets from our investment products entirely by international investors in our Private Banks segment.

Volatility in the capital markets in 2007 was driven mainly by the onset of the subprime mortgage crisis in the later half of the year. The gains achieved in the first
half of 2007 were largely offset by the decline in equity prices from fears of a broadening economic slowdown which led to negative returns in the fourth quarter.
For the year, the S&P 500 and Dow Jones Industrial Average reported only modest gains. The appreciation in market values throughout most of 2007 increased
the value of the assets we manage and administer thereby increasing our base revenues from existing clients. Even with the poor fourth quarter in 2007, our
revenues increased relative to prior year comparable periods. Cash flows into our funds exceeded redemptions during 2007 from new and existing clients. The
capital markets in 2007 were significantly different than 2008. This trend is evident in our revenues as well.

In late 2007, we entered into Capital Support Agreements with several of our money market funds. Among other money market instruments, these funds held
senior notes issued by structured investment vehicles (SIV or SIVs) which failed to make payments on their outstanding notes on the scheduled maturity dates.
Prolonged illiquidity in the credit markets during 2008 significantly reduced the market value of the collateral underlying the SIV securities owned by our money
market funds, which greatly increased our obligation under the Capital Support Agreements (See “Money Market Fund Support” later in this discussion).

Of primary importance to our strategic initiatives is the successful deployment of the Global Wealth Platform. The initial version of the platform was delivered in
July 2007. Our plan is to provide additional significant functionality for the platform through a series of releases that are expected to offer a complete global
investment processing solution to private banks and non-bank wealth management firms. Our efforts in 2008 were primarily focused on major investment
processing enhancements and building the operational infrastructure necessary to support the platform and our clients. The additional functionality built during
2008 was placed into service through a large release in January 2009.

Significant Items Impacting Our Financial Results in 2008

Revenues decreased $121.1 million, or nine percent, to $1.25 billion in 2008 compared to 2007. Net income declined $120.6 million, or 46 percent, to $139.3
million and diluted earnings per share dropped to $0.71 per share in 2008 compared to $1.28 per share in 2007. We believe the following items were significant to
our business during 2008:
 

 
•  The steady deterioration in the capital markets coupled with the severe decline in the fourth quarter caused our Asset management, administration

and distribution fees to decrease $136.0 million, or 12 percent, despite new business activity in our Institutional Investors and Investment Managers
segments. Our assets under management decreased $62.5 billion in 2008, of which $29.9 billion pertained to assets managed by LSV.

 
1 S&P is a trademark of Standard & Poor’s, a division of the McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc., which is not affiliated with SEI Investments.
 
2 Dow Jones Industrial Average is a trademark of Dow Jones & Company, which is not affiliated with SEI Investments.
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•  The decline in the value of our assets under management was partially mitigated by new business activity in our Institutional Investors segment. The
global adoption of our integrated pension and endowment solution in our target markets generated net new client asset funding during 2008 of
approximately $5.2 billion. Assets under administration in the Investment Managers segment increased $19.5 billion. The majority of this increase
was due to asset funding from new and existing clients of our hedge fund and separately managed accounts solutions.

 

 

•  Our earnings during 2008 were adversely affected by a non-cash charge of $148.9 million related to the ongoing support we are providing in the form
of the Capital Support Agreements for two of our money market funds that hold senior notes issued by SIVs. Prolonged illiquidity in the credit
markets caused a significant decline in market value of the collateral underlying the SIVs which increased our obligation under the Capital Support
Agreements. We also recognized a loss of $9.3 million in 2008 from the decline in fair value of SIV securities purchased directly from the one of our
funds. Total charges in 2008 from the Capital Support Agreements and the SIV securities were $158.2 million (See “Money Market Fund Support”
later in this discussion).

 

 

•  Our percentage ownership of LSV remained at approximately 43 percent. Our proportionate share in the earnings of LSV in 2008 was $98.5 million,
a decrease of $33.2 million, or 25 percent, from 2007 levels. Their revenues decreased 24 percent primarily because of significant market
depreciation in the value of the assets they manage. LSV’s assets under management were $37.7 billion at December 31, 2008, as compared to $67.6
billion the year prior, a decrease of 44 percent.

 

 

•  We continued to invest in the Global Wealth Platform and its operational infrastructure. During 2008, we capitalized $55.9 million for significant
enhancements and new functionality for the platform, as compared to $61.4 million in 2007. The initial release of the Global Wealth Platform was
placed into service in July 2007 with an estimated useful life of 15 years. We recognized approximately $14.7 million in amortization expense in
2008, an increase of $7.8 million over 2007. The amortization expense for the platform is primarily recognized in the Private Banks and Investment
Advisors segments. In addition, we incurred higher costs for maintenance and support services in 2008 due to the release of the platform in July
2007.

 

 

•  Compensation, benefits and other personnel costs decreased $40.3 million in 2008 as compared to 2007. Our personnel costs, which mainly consist
of salaries, incentive compensation and sales compensation, decreased $28.8 million. Our incentive compensation programs are tied to predetermined
performance goals at the corporate and business segment levels. The actual amount of bonuses paid for the year is based on actual performance as
compared to these targets. Incentive compensation decreased significantly in 2008 because of the substantial reduction in our revenues and the
impact of the SIV-related charges against our earnings. Sales compensation expense in 2008 decreased, mainly in our Private Banks, Investment
Advisors and LSV segments, due partly from current economic conditions which have extended our sales cycles and slowed new business activity.

 

 
•  Our stock-based compensation costs decreased $12.2 million in 2008. This decrease was primarily due to stock options vesting in 2007 and changes

in our estimates of when unvested stock options would vest, net of an increase in expense associated with new grants in late 2007 and 2008 (See
“Stock-Based Compensation” later in this discussion).

 

 
•  We continued our stock repurchase program during 2008 and purchased approximately 5,778,000 shares at an average price of approximately $22

per share for a total cost of $129.6 million.
 

 
•  Our 2008 effective tax rate was 38.1 percent as compared to 36.6 percent in 2007. The increase in our tax rate was due to a higher than usual state tax

rate. The tax benefit associated with the deduction for the SIV-related losses is uncertain due to net operating loss carryforward limitations by
Pennsylvania state tax law.

Significant Items Impacting Our Financial Results in 2007

Revenues increased $193.3 million, or 16 percent, to $1.37 billion in 2007 compared to 2006. Net income increased $22.8 million, or 10 percent, to $259.8
million and diluted earnings per share improved to $1.28 per share in 2007 compared to $1.17 per share in 2006. We believe the following items were significant
to our business during 2007:
 

 

•  Revenue growth across all of our segments was primarily driven by higher asset-based fees from market appreciation through the first three quarters
of 2007 and late 2006. Favorable capital market conditions increased the value of assets we manage or administer for our existing clients, resulting in
an increase in our base revenues. These market conditions also generated improved profits and operating margins in our Investment Advisors,
Institutional Investors and Investment Managers segments.
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•  Sales of new business in our Institutional Investors and Investment Managers segments as well as positive cash receipts in 2007 and late 2006 from

new and existing advisor relationships in our Investment Advisors segment contributed to the increase in our revenues and profits.
 

 
•  The LSV segment also contributed significantly to the increase in our revenues and profits. Our proportionate share in the earnings of LSV was

$131.7 million in 2007, compared to $112.4 million in 2006, an increase of $19.3 million, or 17 percent. The increase was due to the growth in assets
under management from capital market appreciation and funding from new and existing clients.

 

 

•  The Global Wealth Platform was placed into service in 2007. Amortization of previously capitalized software development costs of $217.8 million
began in the third quarter and will continue to be amortized evenly over a period of 15 years. We incurred an additional $6.9 million in amortization
expense in 2007 due to the release of the platform, primarily recognized in the Private Banks and Investment Advisors segments. We capitalized a
total of $61.4 million in software development costs in 2007, as compared to $73.3 million during 2006, as a larger portion of our costs were incurred
from maintenance and support of the platform as we enter the operational stage of the project.

 

 
•  Our consolidated operating margins were negatively impacted by increased spending for the development of the necessary infrastructure to deliver

and support new company strategies and solutions. A substantial portion of these costs relate to personnel and third-party service providers.
 

 
•  We recorded a non-cash charge of $25.1 million in the fourth quarter 2007 related to agreements that provide capital support to money market funds

holding investments that are exposed to liquidity and credit risk (See “Money Market Fund Support” later in this discussion).
 

 
•  We continued our stock repurchase program during 2007 and purchased approximately 7,161,000 shares at an average price of approximately $29

per share for a total cost of $205.1 million.
 

 
•  Our effective tax rate was 36.6 percent for 2007 compared to 33.9 percent in 2006. The 2006 effective tax rate benefited from a one-time favorable

state legislative change and state tax planning.

Forward Looking Information and Risk Factors

Certain information contained in this discussion is or may be considered forward-looking. Forward-looking statements relate to future operations, strategies,
financial results or other developments. Forward-looking statements are based upon estimates and assumptions that involve certain risks and uncertainties, many
of which are beyond our control or are subject to change. Although we believe our assumptions are reasonable, they could be inaccurate. Our actual future
revenues and income could differ materially from our expected results. We have no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements.

Among the risks and uncertainties which may affect our future operations, strategies, financial results or other developments are those risks described in Item 1A
“Risk Factors” of this Annual Report. The following items are, in our opinion, anticipated to occur in the next 12 to 18 months:
 

 

•  As stated earlier, the majority of our revenues are based on the value of our assets under management and administration which are affected by
changes in the capital markets. The rapid decline in the capital markets in late 2008 significantly decreased the value of assets we manage and
administer for our existing clients thereby reducing our base revenues. Also, the current economic environment has slowed decision making in some
of our target markets. We are actively engaged with new prospects in our target markets but expect the current economic environment will make it
difficult to generate substantial new client activity. If these unfavorable market conditions continue and consumer confidence remains low, we expect
lower revenues and extended sales cycles throughout 2009. We are working diligently to manage our expenses by taking a number of actions to
reduce expenses across the company. Included in these actions are direct expense reductions, elimination of non-strategic activities, process
improvements as well as a reduction in our global workforce. We expect to incur one-time costs associated with the workforce reduction in the first
quarter of 2009. Despite our cost containment efforts, we expect the sharp decline in the level of assets we manage or administer for our clients and
the extended sales cycles will result in an overall reduction in our revenues, earnings and our cash flow from operations.
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•  We have taken appropriate measures to protect our clients and shareholders of our money market funds from the illiquidity issues in the credit
markets through our Capital Support Agreements. Future capital commitments and corresponding charges against our earnings for the obligations
under these agreements will depend upon prevailing conditions in the credit markets as they impact the market value of the collateral underlying the
SIV securities held by our funds. The market value of the SIV securities is based on estimates and assumptions that could be wrong. Also, the Capital
Support Agreements expire in November 2009 and there is no expectation that they will be extended. It is likely that we will purchase the remaining
SIV securities held by our funds at the remaining par value. The purchase of any individual SIV security could occur at any time prior to the
expiration date and as early as the first quarter 2009. After our purchase of the SIV securities, we could either sell the securities or take our
proportionate share of the underlying collateral of the SIV securities that have restructured. Our intention will be to liquidate our SIV holdings at a
price we believe is reasonable based on current market conditions. However, the actual amount that we would receive from a liquidation may be
significantly less than the current market value of the SIV securities. We will make every effort to effectively manage our risk of loss and liquidity
exposure. As of February 20, 2009, our total risk of loss is $336.5 million, which is the remaining par value of all SIV securities either held by our
funds or on our balance sheet. While we can not accurately predict the ultimate outcome, we believe our current available cash on hand, the capacity
for borrowings from our credit facility, and our positive cash flows provide us the capital strength to effectively manage this issue in the best interests
of our clients and our shareholders.

 

 

•  We will continue to invest in the Global Wealth Platform and its operational infrastructure because it is an important part of our future. We anticipate
that development expenditures in 2009 will be less than those incurred in 2008. We will implement enhancements and upgrades to the Global Wealth
Platform through a series of releases. The capitalized development costs associated with these releases will be amortized over the remaining useful
life of the platform. We implemented a new release in early 2009 that will increase our level of amortization expense by $4.1 million in 2009. As we
continue to progress through the project, we will incur increased costs for maintenance and support of the platform. These costs will be expensed as
incurred. Future releases may include enhancements that could replace significant components that currently exist in the platform. If this occurs, we
would immediately expense the remaining net book value of previously capitalized development costs of those components that were replaced. The
remaining net book value of these costs required to be expensed could be material to our earnings.

 

 

•  Beginning in 2006, we consolidated the accounts of both LSV and LSV Employee Group because of the unsecured guaranty provided to the lenders
to LSV Employee Group for their term loan to finance the purchase of an eight percent interest in LSV. As of December 31, 2008, our direct
ownership in LSV was approximately 43 percent. We also have an indirect eight percent interest in LSV because of our guaranty to the lenders to
LSV Employee Group. The two interests combined are greater than 50 percent. Assuming there are no other changes to our relationship with LSV or
LSV Employee Group, we would prospectively discontinue consolidating the accounts of LSV if our direct interest in LSV decreases so that our
combined interest is less than 50 percent or the term loan of LSV Employee Group is paid in full. LSV would be presented as a single net investment
amount on our financial statements after deconsolidation.

 

 
•  We have recently finalized current federal and state income tax audits. The conclusion of these audits will allow us to recognize certain tax benefits

as discrete items during the first quarter of 2009. We expect these benefits to be significant and, therefore, we anticipate our effective tax rate for the
first quarter 2009 will be below the rate for the comparable period in 2008.

 

 
•  We will continue to transform our company from one that is product and services based to one that is solutions based. Each of our business segments

has developed a new business model that will gradually move our clients to our new business solutions. We will continue to implement our new
business model for each segment.

 

 

•  We expect merger and acquisition activity among banks and other financial services firms to be prevalent as these firms confront the ongoing
economic environment. In addition, consolidation activities by banks and other financial services firms may cause larger institutions to internalize
some or all of our outsourcing services. Large bank clients in our Private Banks segment have announced mergers in 2008. Although the final
outcome of these announced mergers as they relate to our services is not yet fully known, these activities may negatively impact our revenues and
earnings.
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Money Market Fund Support

In late 2007, we entered into Capital Support Agreements with the SEI Daily Income Trust Prime Obligation Fund (the SDIT PO Fund), the SEI Daily Income
Trust Money Market Fund (the SDIT MM Fund), and the SEI Liquid Asset Trust Prime Obligation Fund (the SLAT PO Fund) (each a Fund or, together, the
Funds). We are the advisor to the Funds. The sub-advisor to the Funds is Columbia Management, which is the primary investment management division of Bank
of America Corporation. Many of our clients are investors in the Funds. SDIT PO Fund is rated AAA and Aaa by Standards & Poor’s Corporation (S&P) and
Moody’s Investor Services Inc. (Moody’s), respectively, and the SDIT MM Fund is rated Aaa by Moody’s. The SLAT PO Fund is not rated by S&P or Moody’s.

Among other money market instruments, the Funds hold senior notes issued by SIVs. SIVs issue commercial paper and other debt securities and use the proceeds
to purchase bonds and other long-term debt instruments that are used to collateralize the obligations of the vehicle. The senior notes are collateralized by
residential mortgage-backed securities, commercial mortgage-backed securities, corporate collateralized debt obligations and collateralized debt obligations of
asset-backed securities. Some of the SIVs ceased making payments on their outstanding notes on the scheduled maturity dates.

In October 2007, S&P stated that it would place any mutual fund that had an AAA rating and owned certain SIV securities on credit watch with negative
implications unless the fund was provided credit support having an A-1 short-term rating by S&P. Although we were not obligated to provide the credit support
required by S&P, in order to avoid a credit watch by S&P on the SDIT PO Fund, and to address the needs of our customers who require an S&P AAA rating of
the SDIT PO Fund, we entered into the Capital Support Agreements to satisfy S&P’s requirement. We entered into similar agreements with the SDIT MM and
SLAT PO Funds.

Since the time we entered into the Capital Support Agreements in late 2007, significant illiquidity issues persisted in the credit markets which caused the market
values of the collateral underlying the SIV securities to decline. This triggered ratings downgrades on the SIV securities from the principal rating agencies which
required us to post additional capital support to the SDIT PO Fund in order for it to maintain a AAA rating by S&P. In late 2008, we amended the Capital Support
Agreements with the SDIT PO Fund and the SLAT PO Fund. We also amended our credit facility to increase the aggregate amount available for borrowings up to
$300.0 million (See Liquidity and Capital Resources section later in this discussion and Note 8 to the Consolidated Financial Statements).

On September 30, 2008, we purchased the Gryphon (formerly Cheyne) notes directly from the SDIT MM Fund. The Gryphon notes were the last remaining SIV
securities held by this Fund. The cash purchase price paid to the SDIT MM Fund of $15.3 million was equal to the amortized cost of the Gryphon notes. The
market value on that date was $8.7 million and as of December 31, 2008 was $5.7 million. The total loss recognized through December 31, 2008 was $9.3
million. The Gryphon notes were received by the SDIT MM Fund in exchange for the Cheyne notes through a restructuring in July 2008. We have received cash
distributions on the Gryphon notes since our purchase of the notes in September 2008. The Capital Support Agreement with the SDIT MM fund was allowed to
lapse after the purchase of the Gryphon notes.

On November 5, 2008, we amended the Capital Support Agreement that was entered into on November 8, 2007 with the SDIT PO Fund. The Amended and
Restated Capital Support Agreement (the SDIT PO Amended Agreement) requires us to provide additional support to the SDIT PO Fund. The SDIT PO
Amended Agreement provides that if the SDIT PO Fund realizes payments or sales proceeds from the ultimate disposition of any of the specified SIV securities
which are less than its amortized cost, we will be required to provide capital to the SDIT PO Fund equal to the amount by which the amortized cost of the
specified SIV securities exceeds the amount realized from the sale or other disposition of the SIV securities. Also, we must maintain collateral in the form of a
letter of credit and/or a segregated cash account equal to the difference between the amortized cost value and the market value of the specified SIV securities plus
an amount equal to ten percent of the market value of the specified SIV securities. The SDIT PO Amended Agreement is scheduled to expire on November 6,
2009.

On November 28, 2008, we amended the Capital Support Agreement that was entered into on December 3, 2007 with the SLAT PO Fund. The Amended and
Restated Capital Support Agreement (the SLAT PO Amended Agreement) requires us to commit capital to the SLAT PO Fund subject to an aggregate limit of
$30.0 million if the fund realizes payments or sales proceeds from the ultimate disposition of any specified SIV securities held by the Fund which are less than the
amortized cost of the specified SIV securities. Upon the sale or other disposition of the SIV securities, the amount of required capital commitment would be the
least of the following amounts: (i) the amount, if any, by which the amortized cost of the SIV securities exceeds the amount realized from the sale or other
disposition of the SIV securities; (ii) the amount, if any, necessary to restore the net asset value per share of the Fund to $0.9950, or (iii) the remaining amount of
the aggregate limit of the Capital Support Agreement applicable to the Fund, taking into account all prior contributions. Under the SLAT PO Amended
Agreement, we must maintain collateral in the form of a letter of credit and/or segregated cash account equal to the aggregate limit of committed capital. The
SLAT PO Amended Agreement is scheduled to expire on November 6, 2009.
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In the event we are required to commit capital to either Fund, we will not receive any consideration from the Fund, in the form of shares of the Fund or any other
form, for the contributed capital. If the market value of the SIV securities is less than its amortized cost (and in the case of the SLAT PO Fund, the aggregate net
asset value of the SLAT PO Fund is less than $0.9950), then, even though the loss has not been realized through the sale or other disposition of the SIV securities,
we will be obligated to commit the required amount of capital for the amount that the market value of the SIV securities are less than its amortized cost (or in the
case of the SLAT PO Fund, the net asset value is at least $.9950). However, in this case, we would not be required to pay the capital contribution to the Funds. As
of December 31, 2008, the amount of our obligation to commit capital to the Funds was $174.0 million, but this amount was not required to be paid since the
Funds did not realize any loss from the sale of the SIV securities. The amount of our obligations recognized is reflected in Net loss from investments on the
Consolidated Statements of Operations.

The following table summarizes our obligations from the Amended Capital Support Agreements as of December 31, 2008.
 
         For the Year 2008   Cumulative

   
Par Value of

Securities   
Support
Amount   

Gross
Charge   

After-Tax
Charge   

Gross
Charge   

After-Tax
Charge

Capital Support Agreement (1)   $ 257,737  $ 257,737  $ 121,885  $ 75,447  $ 147,007  $ 90,997
Capital Support Agreement (2)    68,109   30,000   26,976   16,698   26,976   16,698

                        

Total   $ 325,846  $ 287,737  $ 148,861  $ 92,145  $ 173,983  $ 107,695
 

(1) Pertains to SDIT PO Fund
 

(2) Pertains to SLAT PO Fund

The obligations under the Amended Capital Support Agreements are secured by letters of credit of a third party bank rated A-1 by S&P. The letters of credit were
issued under our existing credit facility that provides for borrowings up to $300.0 million. The letters of credit have a term of one year. As of December 31, 2008,
we have $190.0 million of letters of credit outstanding (See Liquidity and Capital Resources section later in this discussion).

All SIV securities that remain on the books of the two Funds covered by the Amended Capital Support Agreements are in technical default. The Funds currently
hold five SIV securities, three of which have already restructured. Gryphon is the largest SIV security held by the Funds. As of February 20, 2009, the aggregate
par value of the Gryphon notes represent 74 percent of the total par value of all SIV securities held by the SDIT PO Fund and 11 percent of the total par value of
all SIV securities held by the SLAT PO Fund. The next largest SIV security held by the Funds is Stanfield Victoria. Stanfield Victoria is currently in receivership
and has not yet fully restructured. The ultimate outcome of the restructuring is currently unknown. As of February 20, 2009, the aggregate par value of Stanfield
Victoria represents the remaining 26 percent of the total par value of all SIV securities held by the SDIT PO Fund and 24 percent of the total par value of all SIV
securities held by the SLAT PO Fund. Gryphon and Stanfield Victoria represent 86 percent of the total par value of the SIV securities held, in aggregate, by the
Funds. No other SEI-sponsored fund holds any SIV securities.

According to the terms of the Amended Capital Support Agreements, we are required to purchase any SIV securities held by the Funds which have not completed
restructuring by April 1, 2009. We anticipate that the SIV securities that have not restructured as of February 20, 2009 may not complete restructuring by
March 31, 2009 and; therefore, we expect that we will be required to purchase these SIV securities.

Our total risk of loss from SIV securities is limited to the aggregate remaining par value held by the Funds and on our balance sheet. As of February 20, 2009, the
aggregate par value of these securities totaled $336.5 million. We do not engage in any lending activities or any other activity that exposes us to a risk of loss
associated with the illiquidity issues in the credit markets.
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The following table summarizes our obligations from the Amended Capital Support Agreements as of February 20, 2009.
 

            

First Quarter
to date

February 20, 2009   

Cumulative
as of

February 20, 2009

   
Par Value of

Securities   
Support
Amount   

Required
Collateral   

Gross
Charge   

After-
Tax

Charge   
Gross

Charge   
After-Tax
Charge

Capital Support Agreement (1)   $ 254,275  $254,275  $160,024  $2,545  $ 1,782  $149,552  $ 92,779
Capital Support Agreement (2)    67,373   30,000   30,000   1,781   1,247   28,757   17,945

                            

Total   $ 321,648  $284,275  $190,024  $4,326  $ 3,029  $178,309  $110,724
 

(1) Pertains to SDIT PO Fund
 

(2) Pertains to SLAT PO Fund

When we entered into the Capital Support Agreements, the Funds became variable interest entities and we were considered to have a significant variable interest
in the Funds. Therefore, we needed to determine if we were the primary beneficiary according to the provisions established in FIN 46(R). Our analysis concluded
that we were not the primary beneficiary because the support we provide under the Capital Support Agreements would not absorb a majority of the variability
created by the assets of the Funds. As a result, we were not required to consolidate the accounts of the Funds into our Consolidated Financial Statements. We
perform this analysis at each reconsideration event (See Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements).

The Amended Capital Support Agreements are considered derivative contracts in accordance with applicable accounting guidance and are categorized as Level 3
liabilities as specified by SFAS No. 157 (SFAS 157), “Fair Value Measurements” (See Fair Value Measurements section later in this discussion). These Level 3
liabilities comprise 53 percent of our total current liabilities at December 31, 2008. The fair value of the derivative contracts approximates the value of our actual
obligation at December 31, 2008. The value of the Capital Support Agreements will be determined at least quarterly. In the event payments are not required to be
paid to the Funds, such expense may be reversed in a subsequent period.

Our future obligation under the Amended Capital Support Agreements is affected by a number of factors including, but not limited to, prevailing conditions in the
credit markets as they impact the value of the SIV securities owned by the Funds, the creditworthiness of the SIV securities and the overall asset level of the
SLAT PO Fund. A change in the net asset value of the SLAT PO Fund is dependent upon net investments or redemptions in the Fund and the net asset value of
the portfolio assets of the Funds. Changes in these amounts, including changes in portfolio assets resulting from mark-to-market adjustments, will affect the per
share net asset value of the Funds. The fair market value of the SIV securities is derived from current market prices or, in the event no market price exists, from
external valuation sources (See Fair Value Measurements section later in this discussion).

The market value of the SIV securities has the most significant impact on the amount of our obligation under the Capital Support Agreements. Our obligation can
fluctuate on a daily basis. The following table, based on actual values as of February 20, 2009, is included to give an indication of the impact of a one percent
movement in the value of securities issued by SIVs held by the Funds on our obligation under the Capital Support Agreements:
 

   

Hypothetical
Change
In Value

Capital Support Agreement for SDIT PO Fund   $ 2,543
Capital Support Agreement for SLAT PO Fund (1)    604

    

  $ 3,147
 

(1) Assumes no change in the value of the portfolio assets of the Fund.
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Stock-Based Compensation

Our stock based compensation consists of stock option grants to board members, senior management and key employees. We believe that stock based
compensation serves as an important means of aligning the interest of management and employees with the interests of our shareholders. The 2007 Equity
Compensation plan became effective June 1, 2007 and provides for the grant of incentive stock options, non-qualified stock options and stock appreciation rights
of up to 20 million shares of common stock. Upon the effective date of the 2007 Equity Compensation Plan, our 1998 Equity Compensation plan was terminated.
No options are available for grant under the 1998 Plan and any grants outstanding under the 1998 Plan continue in effect under the terms of the grant and the
applicable plan. Currently, our stock based compensation consists of only non-qualified stock options. For more information on our option plans, see Note 10 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements and Item 12 of this Annual Report.

We account for stock based compensation in accordance with SFAS 123(R). Under the fair value recognition provisions of this statement, stock-based
compensation cost is measured at the grant date based on the fair value of the award and is recognized as expense over the requisite service period, which is the
vesting period. We currently use the Black-Scholes option pricing model to determine the fair value of stock options. The determination of the fair value of stock-
based payment awards on the date of grant using an option-pricing model is affected by our stock price as well as various other assumptions. These assumptions
include our expected stock price volatility over the term of the awards, actual and projected employee stock option exercise behaviors, risk-free interest rate and
expected dividends. We are required to estimate forfeitures at the time of grant and revise those estimates in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from
those estimates. We currently base our expectations for these assumptions from historical data. These expectations are subject to change in future periods.

All outstanding stock options have performance based vesting provisions that tie the vesting of stock options to our financial performance. Our stock options vest
at a rate of 50 percent when a specified diluted earning per share target is achieved, and the remaining 50 percent when a second, higher specified diluted earnings
per share target is achieved. Stock options granted prior to 2006 fully vest after seven years from the date of grant. Beginning in 2006, the seven year vesting
trigger was eliminated and, as a result, options do not vest due to the passage of time but solely as a result of achievement of the financial vesting targets.
Earnings per share targets are calculated exclusive of stock-based compensation expense, net of tax. The diluted earnings per share targets are established at time
of grant and are measured annually on December 31. The amount of stock-based compensation expense is based upon our estimates of when we believe the
earnings per share targets may be achieved. If our estimate of the attainment of the earnings per share targets proves to be inaccurate, the remaining amount of
stock-based compensation expense could be accelerated, spread out over a longer period, or reversed. This may cause volatility in the recognition of stock-based
compensation expense in future periods and could materially affect our net income and net income per share.

In 2008 and 2007, we recognized approximately $16.0 million and $28.2 million, respectively, in stock-based compensation expense, a decrease of $12.2 million.
This decrease consisted of the following components:
 

   

Change in
Stock-Based

Compensation
Expense  

Stock-based compensation expense recognized in 2007 for grants that vested in December 2007   $ (13,516)
Stock-based compensation cost recognized in 2008 for grants made in December 2007    5,521 
Change in management’s estimate in 2008 of expected vesting of stock options for grants that were outstanding at

December 31, 2007    (4,450)
Stock-based compensation expense recognized in 2008 for grants made in 2008    449 
Other    (189)

    
 

  $ (12,185)
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Based upon our current estimate of how many options will vest and when they will vest, we estimate that stock-based compensation expense will be recognized
according to the following schedule:
 

Year

  Stock-Based
Compensation

Expense
  
  

2009   $ 20,478
2010    19,153
2011    11,613
2012    11,432
2013    5,106
2014    2,861
2015    2,861
2016    1,572

    

  $ 75,076

Business Segments

Private Banks
 

Year Ended December 31,   2008   2007   
Percent
Change  2006   

Percent
Change 

Revenues:          
Investment processing and software servicing fees   $225,994  $220,604  2%  $204,224  8%
Asset management, administration & distribution fees    129,466   153,312  (16%)   128,301  19%
Transaction-based and trade execution fees    53,040   40,006  33%   34,924  15%

               

Total revenues   $408,500  $413,922  (1%)  $367,449  13%

Revenues decreased $5.4 million, or one percent, in 2008 compared to 2007. Revenues during 2008 were primarily affected by:
 

 
•  Decreased investment management fees from existing international clients due to lower assets under management caused by declining capital

markets and negative cash flows;
 

 •  Decreased non-recurring investment processing fees in our GWS solution due to lower implementation fees; partially offset by
 

 •  Increased trade execution fees due to significant volatility in the capital markets during the fourth quarter; and
 

 •  Increased recurring investment processing fees in our GWS and GWTS solutions.

Revenues increased $46.5 million, or 13 percent, in 2007 compared to 2006. Revenues during 2007 were primarily affected by:
 

 
•  Increased assets under management caused by favorable capital market conditions and additional asset funding from existing international

investment management clients;
 

 •  Implementation fees related to the merger of two existing clients of our GWTS solution in 2007; and
 

 •  An increase in revenues in our GWS solution from cross-sales of other services to existing clients; partially offset by
 

 
•  A decrease in non-recurring revenues in our GWTS solution due to a one-time buyout fee of $4.7 million of an existing contract in 2006 and from

implementation fees earned in 2006 from client acquisitions.
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Operating margins were 20 percent in 2008 and 2007. Operating income decreased $1.2 million, or one percent, in 2008 compared with 2007. Operating income
in 2008 was primarily affected by:
 

 •  A decrease in revenues;
 

 •  Increased non-capitalized spending for technology, infrastructure buildout, and personnel associated with the Global Wealth Platform;
 

 
•  A full year of amortization expense related to the Global Wealth Platform as compared to a partial year in 2007 due to the mid-year release date of

the platform; and
 

 •  Increased direct expenses associated with the increased trade execution fees; partially offset by
 

 •  Decreased direct expenses associated with the lower investment management fees;
 

 •  Decreased stock-based and incentive-based compensation expenses; and
 

 •  Decreased sales compensation expenses due to the reduced amount of sales of new business.

Operating margins were 20 percent in 2007 as compared to 24 percent in 2006. Operating income decreased $5.4 million, or six percent, in 2007, compared with
2006. Operating income during 2007 was primarily affected by:
 

 •  Increased direct expenses associated with higher levels of assets from new and existing international investment management clients;
 

 •  Increased personnel expenses and other operational costs necessary to deliver business outsourcing solutions to existing clients;
 

 •  Increased non-capitalized technology spending and infrastructure buildout related to the Global Wealth Platform; and
 

 •  Amortization expense related to the release of the Global Wealth Platform at the beginning of the third quarter of 2007; partially offset by
 

 •  An increase in revenues.

Investment Advisors

Revenues decreased $36.1 million, or 14 percent, in 2008 compared with 2007. Revenues during 2008 were primarily affected by:
 

 •  Decreased investment management fees from existing clients due to lower assets under management caused by declining capital markets;
 

 
•  Decreased investment management fees from negative net cash flows and client-directed shifts from our equity and fixed-income programs to our

liquidity products; and
 

 •  A decrease in the average basis points earned on assets due to client-directed shifts to liquidity products.

Revenues increased $33.6 million, or 15 percent, in 2007 compared with 2006. Revenues during 2007 were primarily affected by:
 

 
•  Increased investment management fees from existing clients due to higher assets under management caused by favorable capital market conditions

and positive cash receipts from new and existing advisor relationships.

Operating margins were 45 percent in 2008 and 52 percent in 2007. Operating income decreased $33.4 million, or 25 percent, in 2008 compared with 2007.
Operating income in 2008 was primarily affected by:
 

 •  A decrease in revenues;
 

 •  Increased non-capitalized technology spending related to the Global Wealth Platform;
 

 
•  A full year of amortization expense related to the Global Wealth Platform as compared to a partial year in 2007 due to the mid-year release date of

the platform;
 

 •  Increased costs in our operations associated with the higher volume of investment transactions due to increased market volatility; partially offset by
 

 •  Decreased stock-based and incentive-based compensation expenses; and
 

 •  Decreased sales compensation expenses due to the reduced amount of sales of new business.

Operating margins were 52 percent in 2007 as compared to 50 percent in 2006. Operating income increased $20.5 million, or 18 percent, in 2007 compared with
2006. Operating income during 2007 was primarily affected by:
 

 •  An increase in revenues;
 

 •  The write-off of the front-end component of the SEI Advisor Desktop for $3.4 million during the second quarter of 2006; partially offset by
 

 •  Increased personnel costs for our investment advisors business and investment management operations;
 

 •  Increased non-capitalized technology spending related to the Global Wealth Platform;
 

 •  Amortization expense related to the release of the Global Wealth Platform at the beginning of the third quarter of 2007.
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Institutional Investors

Revenues decreased $1.4 million, or one percent, in 2008 compared with 2007. Revenues during 2008 were primarily affected by:
 

 
•  Decreased investment management fees from existing clients due to lower assets under management caused by declining capital markets and client

losses as well as unfavorable foreign currency fluctuations in revenues from our international clients; partially offset by
 

 •  Asset funding from new sales of our retirement and not-for-profit solutions; and
 

 •  Asset funding from existing clients.

Revenues increased $34.6 million, or 21 percent, in 2007 compared with 2006. Revenues during 2007 were primarily affected by:
 

 •  Asset funding from new sales of our retirement and not-for-profit solutions;
 

 •  Asset funding from existing clients; and
 

 •  Increased assets under management from existing clients caused by favorable capital market conditions.

Operating margins were 43 percent in 2008 and 39 percent in 2007. Operating income increased $7.0 million, or nine percent, in 2008 compared with 2007.
Operating income during 2008 was primarily affected by:
 

 •  Decreased stock-based and incentive-based compensation expenses; and
 

 •  Decreased direct expenses related to the decrease in revenues; partially offset by
 

 •  A decrease in revenues.

Operating margins were 39 percent in 2007 and 36 percent in 2006. Operating income increased $19.6 million, or 34 percent, in 2007 compared with 2006.
Operating income during 2007 was primarily affected by:
 

 •  An increase in revenues; less
 

 •  Increased direct expenses associated with the increase in revenues;
 

 
•  Increased personnel costs, including stock-based compensation expenses, for our international institutional business and investment management

operations; and
 

 •  Increased sales compensation expenses related to sales of new business.

Investment Managers

Revenues increased $4.6 million, or three percent, in 2008 compared with 2007 and $24.4 million, or 21 percent, in 2007 compared with 2006. Revenues during
2008 and 2007 were primarily affected by:
 

 •  Asset funding from existing clients of hedge fund and separately managed accounts solutions;
 

 •  Cash flows from new clients, primarily hedge fund clients; partially offset by
 

 •  Client losses, primarily traditional fund administration clients; and
 

 
•  Negative cash flows from existing clients, primarily from hedge fund clients, due to lower valuations due to capital market declines as well as client

redemptions.

Operating margins were 32 percent in 2008, 29 percent in 2007 and 24 percent in 2006. Operating income increased $4.9 million, or 12 percent, in 2008
compared with 2007, and $13.8 million, or 49 percent, in 2007 compared with 2006. Operating income during 2008 and 2007 was primarily affected by:
 

 •  An increase in revenues; and
 

 •  Decreased stock-based and incentive-based compensation expenses; partially offset by
 

 •  Increased personnel, mainly salary, and other costs for our investment manager operations.

LSV

Revenues decreased $82.4 million, or 24 percent, in 2008 compared with 2007. Revenues during 2008 were primarily affected by:
 

 •  Decreased assets under management from declining capital markets.

Revenues increased $54.5 million, or 19 percent, in 2007 compared with 2006. Revenues during 2007 were primarily affected by:
 

 •  Increased assets under management from the growth in assets from new and existing clients and capital market appreciation.

Operating margins were 37 percent in 2008 and 38 percent in 2007. Our earnings from LSV decreased $33.2 million, or 25 percent, in 2008 compared with 2007.
Operating income during 2008 was primarily affected by:
 

 •  A decrease in revenues.

Operating margins were 38 percent in 2007 and 39 percent in 2006. Our earnings from LSV increased $19.3 million, or 17 percent, in 2007 compared with 2006.
Operating income during 2007 was primarily affected by:
 

 •  An increase in revenues.
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Other

Corporate overhead expenses
 

Year Ended December 31,   2008   2007   
Percent
Change  2006   

Percent
Change 

Corporate overhead expenses   $38,955  $42,045  (7%)  $38,842  8%

Corporate overhead expenses primarily consist of corporate units such as executive management, accounting, regulatory compliance, workforce development and
other general administrative costs not directly associated with a reportable business segment. The decrease in these expenses in 2008 was primarily due to lower
incentive compensation and stock-based compensation expenses and other discretionary costs. The increase in corporate overhead expenses in 2007 was primarily
due to costs and resources associated with our corporate compliance program and employee development programs.

Other Income and Expense Items

Other income and expense items on the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations consist of:
 

Year Ended December 31,   2008   2007   
Percent
Change  2006   

Percent
Change 

Net loss from investments   $(158,018) $ (25,395) N/A  $ (2,378) N/A 
Interest and dividend income    13,740   18,596  (26%)   13,521  38%
Interest expense    (3,418)  (4,709) (27%)   (5,464) (14%)
Other income    5,577   2,952  89%   1,588  86%
Minority interest    (129,256)  (175,879) (27%)   (146,962) 20%

    
 

   
 

    
 

 

Total other income and expense items, net   $(271,375) $(184,435) 47%  $(139,695) 32%

Net loss from investments

Net loss from investments consists of:
 
Year Ended December 31,   2008   2007   2006  
Losses from Capital Support Agreements   $(148,861) $(25,122) $ —   
Net realized gain from sales of marketable securities    2,515   772   2,302 
Decrease in fair value of financial instruments    (9,692)  (1,089)  (1,521)
Other-than-temporary declines in market value    (1,961)  —     (1,979)
Other (losses) gains    (19)  44   (1,180)

    
 

   
 

   
 

Net loss from investments   $(158,018) $(25,395) $(2,378)

Losses from Capital Support Agreements include non-cash charges pertaining to our obligation to provide capital support to our money market funds that hold
SIV securities (See “Money Market Fund Support” earlier in this discussion).

We elected to apply the fair value option under SFAS 159 to certain securities acquired in 2008. SFAS 159 requires these securities be reported at their fair value
and any unrealized gains and losses be recognized in current period earnings. The net amount of all unrealized losses on these securities for which we have
elected the fair value option is reflected in Decrease in fair value of financial instruments on the above table. These securities are classified as Trading Securities
on our Consolidated Balance Sheet and primarily include: a) the last remaining SIV securities that were held by our SDIT MM Fund; b) seed money investment
in a LSV–sponsored mutual fund; and c) futures contracts purchased to hedge our investment in the LSV-sponsored fund.
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As of December 31, 2008, the market value of the SIV security purchased from the SDIT MM Fund was $5.7 million and the cost basis was $15.0 million
resulting in an unrealized loss of $9.3 million. The value of this SIV security is dependent on the market value of the underlying collateral which involves
assumptions and estimates. This SIV security is classified as a Level 3 security in the fair value hierarchy (See Fair Value Measurements section later in this
discussion).

Our seed money investment in the LSV-sponsored mutual fund is intended to facilitate the startup of the fund. This mutual fund is a U.S. dollar denominated fund
that invests primarily in securities of Canadian and Australian companies as well as various other global securities. The underlying securities held by the fund are
translated into U.S. dollars within the fund. In order to provide some protection for our original investment in this fund, we purchased equity and currency futures
contracts as part of an economic hedging strategy to minimize our exposure to price and currency risk. We hold equity futures contracts with a notional value of
$4.1 million that are expected to hedge the price risk associated with movements of certain Canadian, Australian and global indices. We also purchased currency
futures contracts with a notional value of $2.7 million that are expected to hedge the currency risk associated with movements of the U.S. dollar against the
Canadian and Australian dollars since the underlying securities of the fund are predominately denominated in those currencies. The fair value of the futures
contracts are netted against the fair value of the investment in the LSV-sponsored fund. Changes in the fair value of the LSV-sponsored fund and the related
futures contracts are recognized in Net loss from investments on the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations.

In consideration of a hypothetical change in the value of the LSV-sponsored fund, a change in the value of our futures contracts are expected to substantially
offset the gains or losses associated with the investment and minimize the impact to our earnings.

We have investments in two SEI-sponsored mutual funds which primarily invest in fixed-income securities, including debt securities issued by municipalities and
mortgage-backed securities. The market value of these securities has steadily decreased since the initial purchase in 2007. In August 2008, we concluded that the
earnings potential and near term prospects of some of the issuers of the underlying securities held in the funds are uncertain and that it was unlikely the
investments will fully recover from a loss position in the foreseeable future. Due to these factors, we recorded an impairment charge of $2.0 million during the
third quarter of 2008 and classified this charge as an Other-than-temporary decline in market value. Subsequently, the market value of these securities declined an
additional $3.3 million by December 31, 2008. We did not record an other-than-temporary impairment charge at December 31, 2008 due to our assessment of
several factors including the volatility in the capital markets, the short duration of time since the impairment charge recorded in August 2008 and our ability and
intent to hold onto these securities for a sufficient period to allow for a recovery. We will closely monitor the market value of these securities and may record an
other-than-temporary impairment charge at a future date.

The other-than-temporary decline in market value of $2.0 million in 2006 related to an investment in a SEI-sponsored mutual fund that had been in an unrealized
loss position for an extended period of time. The market value of this investment eventually increased. We liquidated our entire holdings in this investment and
realized a gain in 2008.

Other losses in 2007 and 2006 include write-downs of approximately $0.5 million in 2007 and $1.5 million in 2006, respectively, related to an investment in a
private company. The write down in 2007 represented the remaining balance of the investment in the company.

Interest and dividend income

Interest and dividend income is earned based upon the amount of cash that is invested daily. The decrease in interest income in 2008 compared to 2007 was due to
a decline in interest rates and lower cash balances. The increase in 2007 was due to higher overall cash balances and interest rates as compared to those in 2006.

Interest expense

Interest expense in 2008 includes the borrowings of LSV Employee Group and fees for our lines of credit. Interest expense for the debt associated with LSV
Employee Group was approximately $2.3 million in 2008, $3.8 million in 2007 and $4.4 million in 2006. The decline in interest expense in 2008 compared to
2007 is due to the lower amount of outstanding debt of LSV Employee Group and the inclusion of interest expenses associated with our Senior Notes in 2007. We
made a voluntary payment for the remaining balance on our Senior Notes in August 2007. The decrease in interest expense in 2007 compared to 2006 is due to
lower balances of outstanding debt.
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Other income

Other income in 2008 relates to an adjustment for interest costs associated with borrowings in prior years at a time when various capital projects were underway.
We incorrectly expensed all interest costs rather than capitalizing these costs as part of the cost basis of these capital projects (See Note 1 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements).

Minority interest

Minority interest primarily includes the amount owned by other shareholders or partners of LSV and LSV Employee Group in which we have a significant or
controlling interest. The accounts of these entities are included in our consolidated financial statements.

Income Taxes

Our effective tax rate was 38.1 percent in 2008, 36.6 percent in 2007 and 33.9 percent in 2006. The 2008 effective tax rate is higher than prior years due to state
tax impact relating to the expense associated with the Capital Support Agreements. For Pennsylvania state tax purposes, we are required to defer the tax deduction
on this expense until cash payment is made. This deferred deduction gives rise to a deferred tax asset, which generally provides future tax savings. However, the
usage of this asset is substantially limited due to Pennsylvania’s net operating loss carryforward rules. Therefore, we cannot deduct this expense because the
future benefit of this deduction is uncertain.

Fair Value Measurements

The fair value of our financial assets and liabilities is determined in accordance with the fair value hierarchy established in SFAS 157. The fair value of most of
our financial assets are determined using Level 1 or Level 2 inputs and consist mainly of investments in equity or fixed-income mutual funds that are quoted daily
and Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA) securities that are single issuer pools that are valued based on current market data of similar assets.
Our Level 3 financial assets and liabilities consist mainly of SIV securities and the Capital Support Agreements. The Capital Support Agreements are considered
derivative liabilities for accounting purposes, for which the fair value is based principally on changes in the fair value of SIV securities held by our money market
funds.

The underlying collateral of the SIV securities is mainly comprised of asset-backed securities and collateralized debt obligations. Recent liquidity issues
surrounding collateralized debt obligations and asset-backed securities has greatly affected the fair value of SIV securities. Given the lack of any reliable market
data on the SIV securities owned by us or held by our money market funds, the fair value of these SIV securities is determined using a net asset value approach
which considers the value of the underlying collateral. We utilize external pricing services that incorporate market data, where available, or through the use of
matrix pricing or other acceptable measures. The valuation methodology used by these service providers considers various characteristics of the underlying
collateral including, but not limited to, the issuer, collateral attributes, prepayment speeds, and credit ratings. The underlying collateral that lack any market data
are grouped by sector and valued using the most recent quoted price, which may be longer than one year, and adjusting that price by the percentage change in the
respective sector using relative benchmarks. Prices for the SIV securities as well as the underlying collateral are subject to internal reviews that consider broker
quotes, current market observations and other analyses to verify the fair value. In the event a market transaction does exist, we will evaluate the circumstances
surrounding the transaction in order to assess if the price used represents the fair value according to the guidance in SFAS 157. In our opinion, the price of SIV
securities used in recent transactions were from distressed sales and did not represent the implied fair value of the SIV securities held by us or by our money
market funds.
 

Page 33 of 97



The table below presents a reconciliation for all of our financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis using significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3) for the period from January 1, 2008 to December 31, 2008:
 

   
Trading Securities

Issued by SIVs   
Other Trading

Securities   
Capital Support

Agreements  
Balance, January 1, 2008   $ —    $ —    $ (25,122)
Purchases, issuances and settlements, net    15,034   1,971   —   
Total gains (losses) (realized/unrealized):     

Included in earnings    (9,321)  (274)  (148,861)
Included in other comprehensive income    —     —     —   

Transfers in and out of Level 3    —     —     —   
    

 
   

 
   

 

Balance, December 31, 2008   $ 5,713  $ 1,697  $ (173,983)

Liquidity and Capital Resources
 

Year Ended December 31,   2008   2007   2006  
Net cash provided by operating activities   $ 284,728  $ 361,457  $ 346,170 
Net cash used in investing activities    (86,299)  (96,058)  (118,016)
Net cash used in financing activities    (142,707)  (191,426)  (71,334)

    
 

   
 

   
 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents    55,722   73,973   156,820 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year    360,921   286,948   130,128 

    
 

   
 

   
 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year   $ 416,643  $ 360,921  $ 286,948 

Cash requirements and liquidity needs are primarily funded through our cash flow from operations and our capacity for additional borrowing. At December 31,
2008, our unused sources of liquidity consisted of cash and cash equivalents and the amount available under our credit facility. Cash and cash equivalents of
$416.6 million includes $60.5 million at December 31, 2008 from LSV, of which we have a 43 percent partnership interest (See Note 2 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements). Our cash and cash equivalents include accounts managed by our subsidiaries and minority-owned subsidiaries that are used in their
operations or to cover specific business and regulatory requirements. The availability of this cash for other purposes beyond the operations of these subsidiaries
may be limited. The actual amount of cash and cash equivalents that is free and available for other general corporate purposes is reduced by these cash accounts.

We have capacity for additional borrowings through a five year unsecured senior revolving credit facility with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., individually and as
agent and a syndicate of other lenders. We have no reason to believe that any of the participating lenders will be unable to honor their respective commitments
relating to all of the terms of the credit facility. The credit facility became effective in July 2007 and initially provided for borrowings up to $200.0 million. Three
amendments to the credit facility were executed in 2008. The primary changes to the credit facility from the amendments included: 1) an increase of $100.0
million in the total aggregate borrowing amount to $300.0 million with an option for an additional increase of $100.0 million to $400.0 million under certain
conditions; 2) an allowance for the incurrence of the contingent obligation represented by the Amended Capital Support Agreements; 3) the exclusion of
purchases of SIV securities held by SDIT PO and SLAT PO of up to $346.0 million and purchases of GNMA securities to satisfy applicable regulatory
requirements of SPTC, our wholly-owned subsidiary, of up to $100.0 million from the calculation of certain investments; and 4) an increase in the allowable
leverage ratio for the additional contingent obligations required under the Amended Capital Support Agreements. These amendments were completed as part of
our effort to manage our SIV exposure for the benefit of our clients and ultimately for our shareholders (See “Money Market Fund Support” earlier in this
discussion).

The availability of the credit facility is subject to the compliance with certain covenants set forth in the agreement. Currently, our ability to borrow from the credit
facility is not limited by any covenant of the agreement. Of all of the covenants, we believe satisfying the leverage ratio could be the most difficult in the future.
The leverage ratio is calculated as consolidated indebtedness divided by earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization and other items as defined by
the covenant during the last four quarters (EBITDA). The amount of consolidated
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indebtedness according to the terms of the covenant include the capital commitment under the Capital Support Agreements and the outstanding debt of LSV
Employee Group. We must maintain at all times prior to and including September 30, 2009, a ratio of consolidated indebtedness of not more than 2.25 times the
amount of EBITDA, at all times from October 1, 2009 through and including December 31, 2009, not more than 2.00 times EBITDA, and at all times thereafter,
not more than 1.75 times EBITDA. As of December 31, 2008, our leverage ratio is 1.10 times EBITDA. Although we expect this ratio to increase in 2009 if
unfavorable market conditions persist, we do not anticipate that this covenant or any covenant of the credit facility will restrict our ability to borrow from the
credit facility.

The obligations under the Amended Capital Support Agreements are secured by letters of credit of a third party bank rated A-1 by S&P. The letters of credit were
issued under the credit facility. The letters of credit have a term of one year with various expiration dates beyond the expiration date of the Amended Capital
Support Agreements. In the event that capital must be provided to the Funds or we have to purchase any of the SIV securities, we may at our discretion utilize the
credit facility or use our available cash on hand. However, so long as the letters of credit remain outstanding, the amount available under the credit facility will be
reduced by the total amount of the letters of credit. As of February 20, 2009, we had $195.0 million of letters of credit outstanding. Therefore, only the remaining
$105.0 million of the credit facility is unrestricted and may be used for general purposes.

Cash flows from operations decreased $76.7 million in 2008 compared to 2007 and increased $15.3 million in 2007 compared to 2006. The decrease in 2008 was
primarily due to the decline in net income and the net change in working capital accounts. Our working capital accounts were primarily affected by lower
expected payments for incentive compensation in 2008 compared to 2007, lower accounts receivable balances from the decline in revenues and the change in
deferred taxes in 2008 due to the non-cash charge related to the Amended Capital Support Agreements. The increase in cash flows in 2007 was primarily caused
by the increase in net income.

We have long-term contractual agreements with banks and other financial institutions, especially within our Private Banks segment. These banks and financial
institutions continue to meet the scheduled payment terms under these contracts. We have no reason to believe that these clients will be unable to satisfy current
and future obligations. Additionally, the Investment Managers segment has contractual agreements with managers of hedge funds. There have been recent
concerns and issues within the hedge fund industry. We believe our clients are stable and well-respected managers that will continue to remain viable entities over
the long-term. These firms continue to meet all of their obligations. Our clients continue to meet their current financial obligations with us. We do not have any
significant collectibility issues regarding our receivables as of December 31, 2008 and we have not received any indications that we should anticipate significant
collectibility issues regarding our receivables in the near term.

Net cash used in investing activities includes:
 

 

•  The capitalization of costs incurred in developing computer software. We will continue the development of the Global Wealth Platform, placed in
service in 2007, through a series of releases to expand the functionality of the platform. The costs associated with these enhancements will be
capitalized. We capitalized $52.0 million of software development costs in 2008 as compared to $61.4 million in 2007. The decrease in capitalized
costs was primarily due to increased maintenance and support for the operation of the platform in 2008, which is not eligible for capitalization (See
Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements);

 

 

•  Purchases, sales and maturities of marketable securities. We had cash outflows of $61.6 million for purchases of marketable securities in 2008 as
compared to cash outflows of $73.4 million in 2007. Inflows from sales and maturities of marketable securities were $60.7 million and $68.9 million
in 2008 and 2007, respectively. Cash outflows for marketable securities in 2008 were primarily for the purchase of GNMA securities purchased to
satisfy applicable regulatory requirements of SPTC, U.S. Treasury securities purchased by SIDCO, and the SIV securities purchased from the SDIT
MM Fund (See Notes 6 and 7 to the Consolidated Financial Statements). Purchases of marketable securities in 2007 mainly comprised investments
for the start-up of new investment products; and

 

 

•  Capital expenditures. Our capital expenditures in 2008 primarily include new computer-related equipment associated with our investment processing
platforms. In 2007, capital expenditures also included costs related to the expansion of our corporate headquarters, which was completed in 2007.
During the second quarter 2008, we initiated a new expansion project at our corporate headquarters. Total costs for this project are expected to be at
least $13.4 million, of which $2.7 million was spent in 2008. Work on the expansion project has been temporarily suspended. The completion of the
project is estimated to occur within one year from the resumption date of the project.
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Net cash used in financing activities includes:
 

 
•  Principal payments of our debt. Principal payments in 2008 are comprised solely of payments made by LSV Employee Group for amounts included

in our debt. LSV Employee Group made principal payments of $20.4 million in 2008 and $19.7 million in 2007. We made a voluntary principal
payment of $5.0 million for the remaining balance of our Senior Notes in 2007.

 

 
•  Dividend payments. Cash dividends paid were $28.9 million or $.15 per share in 2008, $25.7 million or $.13 per share in 2007 and $22.7 million or

$.12 per share in 2006. Our Board of Directors declared a cash dividend of $.08 per share on December 16, 2008. The dividend was paid on
January 22, 2009 for $15.3 million.

 

 

•  The repurchase of our common stock. Our Board of Directors has authorized the repurchase of up to $1.5 billion worth of our common stock.
Through January 31, 2009, we repurchased approximately 254.8 million shares of our common stock at a cost of $1.4 billion and had $82.5 million
of authorization remaining for the purchase of our common stock under this program. Currently, there is no expiration date for our common stock
repurchase program. The following table lists information regarding repurchases of our common stock during 2008, 2007, and 2006:

 

Year   

Total Number
of Shares

Repurchased   

Average Price
Paid per

Share   
Total Cost

(in thousands)
2008   5,778,000  $ 22.44  $ 129,633
2007   7,161,000   28.64   205,085
2006   4,689,000   23.40   109,734

We believe our operating cash flow, available borrowing capacity, and existing cash and cash equivalents should provide adequate funds for ongoing operations;
our obligations with respect to the Capital Support Agreements, continued investment in new products and equipment; our common stock repurchase program;
and future dividend payments.

Significant Arrangement

On January 24, 2006, we entered into a Guaranty and Collateral Agreement with LSV Employee Group, LaSalle Bank National Association and certain other
lenders. We entered into the agreement in order to facilitate the acquisition of certain partnership interests of LSV by LSV Employee Group. Additional
information pertaining to the agreement is presented in Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Contractual Obligations and Contingent Obligations

As of December 31, 2008, the Company is obligated to make payments in connection with its lines of credit, debt obligations, operating leases, maintenance
contracts and other commitments in the amounts listed below. The contractual obligation table below excludes $4,067 of the Company’s FIN 48 liabilities
because the Company cannot make a reasonable estimate of the timing of the related cash payment. The Company has no unrecorded obligations other than the
items noted in the following table:
 

   Total   2009   2010   
2011 to

2012   
2013 and

Thereafter
Line of credit and long-term debt (a)(b)   $36,278  $ 9,919  $ 7,579  $18,780  $ —  
Operating leases and maintenance agreements (c)    38,253   11,778   7,981   6,744   11,750
Other commitments (d)    11,723   11,723   —     —     —  

                    

Total   $86,254  $33,420  $15,560  $25,524  $ 11,750
 

(a) Amounts include estimated commitment fees for our credit facility and fronting fees for our letters of credit. See Note 8 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

 

(b) Amounts include the long-term debt of LSV Employee Group. See Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
 

(c) See Note 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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(d) Amount includes the FIN 48 liabilities that are classified as a current liability on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. The actual cash payment
associated with these commitments may differ. See Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

In November 2008, we amended the Capital Support Agreements with the SDIT PO Fund and the SLAT PO Fund. These amended agreements provide that if
either of the Funds realize payments or sales proceeds from the ultimate disposition of specified SIV securities which are less than its amortized cost, we will be
required to provide capital to the Fund equal to the amount by which the amortized cost of the specified SIV security exceeds the amount realized from the sale or
other disposition of the SIV securities (See “Money Market Fund Support” earlier in this discussion).

Critical Accounting Policies

The accompanying consolidated financial statements and supplementary information were prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States. Our significant accounting policies are discussed in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Inherent in the application of many of
these accounting policies is the need for management to make estimates and judgments in the determination of certain revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities.
Materially different financial results can occur as circumstances change and additional information becomes known. We believe that the following accounting
policies require extensive judgment by our management to determine the recognition and timing of amounts recorded in our financial statements.

Revenue Recognition:

Revenues are recognized in the periods in which the related services are performed provided that persuasive evidence of an agreement exists, the fee is fixed or
determinable, and collectibility is reasonably assured. Cash received by us in advance of the performance of services is deferred and recognized as revenue when
earned. Our principal sources of revenues are: (1) asset management, administration and distribution fees calculated as a percentage of the total average daily net
assets under management or administration; (2) information processing and software servicing fees that are recurring in nature and earned based upon the number
of trust accounts being serviced and non-recurring project fees that are earned based upon contractual agreements related to client implementations; and
(3) transaction-based fees for providing securities valuation and trade-execution services. The majority of our revenues are based on contractual arrangements.
Certain portions of our revenues require management’s consideration of the nature of the client relationship in determining whether to recognize as revenue the
gross amount billed or net amount retained after payments are made to vendors for certain services related to the product or service offering.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts:

We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of some of our clients to make their scheduled payments. The
allowance for doubtful accounts is based on the total amount of outstanding receivables and an aging analysis at each balance sheet date. Other factors are
considered in determining the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts, such as historical trends, the financial condition of our clients and other factors
that may be deemed appropriate. Based upon this analysis, the allowance for doubtful accounts is adjusted to an amount that is sufficient to cover expected losses
from doubtful accounts.

Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities:

The fair value of our financial assets and liabilities are determined in accordance with the fair value hierarchy established in SFAS 157, “Fair Value
Measurements.” SFAS 157 defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal
or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. The fair value hierarchy of
SFAS 157 requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs when measuring fair value and classifies those inputs into three levels:

Level 1 – Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities without adjustment;

Level 2 – Observable inputs other than level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets, quoted prices in markets that are not active, or other inputs that are
observable or can be corroborated by observable market data; and

Level 3 – Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and are significant to the fair value of those assets or liabilities.
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The use of Level 3 inputs to determine the fair value of our financial assets and liabilities requires consider judgment by management. Our Level 3 financial
assets and liabilities consist of SIV securities we own and the Capital Support Agreements, which are largely dependent on the fair value of the SIV securities
held by our money market funds (See Fair Value Measurements section earlier in this discussion).

We review our investments in marketable securities on a quarterly basis with regard to impairment. Factors considered in determining other-than-temporary
impairment are significant or prolonged declines in the fair value of our investments, our ability and intent to retain the investment for a period sufficient to allow
the value to recover, and the financial condition of the investment. After considering these factors, if we believe that a decline is other-than-temporary, the
carrying value of the investment is written down to its fair value through current period earnings.

Computer Software Development Costs:

We utilize internally developed computer software as part of our product offering. In the development of a new software product, substantial consideration must
be given by management to determine whether costs incurred are research and development costs, or internal software development costs eligible for
capitalization. Management must consider a number of different factors during their evaluation of each computer software development project that includes
estimates and assumptions. Costs considered to be research and development are expensed as incurred. After meeting specific requirements, internal software
development costs are capitalized as incurred. The capitalization and ongoing assessment of recoverability of software development costs requires considerable
judgment by management with respect to certain external factors, including, but not limited to, technological and economic feasibility, and estimated economic
life. Amortization of capitalized software development costs begins when the product is ready for its intended use. Capitalized software development costs are
amortized on a product-by-product basis using the straight-line method over the estimated economic life of the product or enhancement.

We evaluate the carrying value of our capitalized software when circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. The review of capitalized
software for impairment requires significant assumptions about operating strategies, underlying technologies utilized, and external market factors. Our capitalized
software was developed using mainstream technologies that are industry standards and are based on technology developed by multiple vendors that are significant
industry leaders. External market factors include, but not limited to, expected levels of competition, barriers to entry by potential competitors, stability in the
target market and governmental regulations. In 2008, we determined that no events or change in circumstances had occurred that would indicate that our
capitalized software development costs were impaired.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets:

The goodwill and intangible assets on our Consolidated Balance Sheets were generated from the purchase of partnership interest by LSV Employee Group of
LSV. Under the provisions of SFAS 142, we perform assessments for impairment of goodwill at least annually or more frequently if an event occurs or
circumstances change that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of a reporting unit below its carrying amount. The impairment assessment is
performed using a two-step, fair value based test. The first step is to compare the fair value of the reporting unit to its carrying amount, including goodwill. If the
carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value, the second step is performed. The second step requires an allocation of fair value to the individual
assets and liabilities using a purchase price allocation in order to determine the implied fair value of goodwill. If the implied fair value of goodwill is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognized. We estimate the fair value of the LSV reporting unit primarily based upon an earnings multiple approach. This
approach requires an estimate of future expected cash flows from the LSV reporting unit which involves significant assumptions by management. This approach
has been consistently applied since inception of the goodwill.

A review of the carrying value of our intangible assets is performed during our assessment of goodwill since both were generated by LSV Employee Group’s
purchase of an interest in LSV. For purposes of recognizing and measuring an impairment loss, a long-lived asset shall be grouped with other assets and liabilities
at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely independent. It is impossible to distinguish between the cash flows generated by goodwill and
intangible assets and therefore the impairment analysis of the intangible assets are grouped with all of the other assets of LSV, including goodwill. To date, we
have not recognized any impairment charge pertaining to our goodwill or intangible assets.
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Income Tax Accounting:

We use the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method, income tax expense is recognized for the amount of taxes payable or
refundable for the current year. In addition, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences
between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities, and for operating losses and tax credit carryforwards. Management must make assumptions,
judgments and estimates to determine our current provision for income taxes and also our deferred tax assets and liabilities and any valuation allowance to be
recorded against a deferred tax asset.

Our assumptions, judgments and estimates relative to the current provision for income taxes take into account current tax laws, our interpretation of current tax
laws and possible outcomes of current and future audits conducted by foreign and domestic tax authorities. We have established reserves for income taxes to
address potential exposures involving tax positions that could be challenged by tax authorities. Although we believe our assumptions, judgments and estimates are
reasonable, changes in tax laws or our interpretation of tax laws and the resolution of any future tax audits could significantly impact the amounts provided for
income taxes in our consolidated financial statements.

Our assumptions, judgments and estimates relative to the value of a deferred tax asset take into account predictions of the amount and category of future taxable
income, such as income from operations or capital gains income. Actual operating results and the underlying amount and category of income in future years could
render our current assumptions, judgments and estimates of recoverable net deferred taxes inaccurate. Any of the assumptions, judgments and estimates
mentioned above could cause our actual income tax obligations to differ from our estimates, thus materially impacting our financial position and results of
operations.

Stock-Based Compensation:

Stock-based compensation cost is measured at the grant date based on the fair value of the award and is recognized as expense over the requisite service period,
which is the vesting period. We currently use the Black-Scholes option pricing model to determine the fair value of stock options. The determination of the fair
value of stock-based payment awards on the date of grant using an option-pricing model is affected by our stock price as well as various other assumptions. These
assumptions include our expected stock price volatility over the term of the awards, actual and projected employee stock option exercise behaviors, risk-free
interest rate and expected dividends. We are required to estimate forfeitures at the time of grant and revise those estimates in subsequent periods if actual
forfeitures differ from those estimates. The amount of stock-based compensation expense that is recognized in a given period is dependent upon management’s
estimate of when the earnings per share targets are expected to be achieved. If this estimate proves to be inaccurate, the remaining amount of stock-based
compensation expense could be accelerated, spread out over a longer period, or reversed. We currently base our expectations for these assumptions from historical
data and other applicable factors. These expectations are subject to change in future periods.

The assessment of critical accounting policies is not meant to be an all-inclusive discussion of the uncertainties to financial results that can occur from the
application of the full range of our accounting policies. Materially different financial results could occur in the application of other accounting policies as well.
Also, materially different results can occur upon the adoption of new accounting standards.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007) (SFAS 141R), “Business Combinations,” which replaces SFAS No.141, “Business
Combinations.” SFAS 141R will change how to account for business acquisitions. SFAS 141R requires the assets acquired, the liabilities assumed and any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree at the acquisition date to be measured at their fair values as of that date, with limited exceptions. SFAS 141R makes various
other amendments intended to provide additional guidance or to confirm existing guidance. SFAS 141R will become effective for us beginning in the first quarter
of 2009. Early adoption is not permitted. We are currently evaluating the impact SFAS 141R will have on our consolidated financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160 (SFAS 160), “Noncontrolling Interest in Consolidated Financial Statements, an amendment of Accounting
Research Bulletin No.51.” SFAS 160 establishes accounting and reporting standards that require the ownership interests in subsidiaries not held by the parent to
be clearly identified, labeled and presented in the consolidated statement of financial position within equity, but separate from the parent’s equity. This statement
also requires the amount of consolidated net income attributable to the parent and to the non-controlling interest to be clearly identified and presented on the face
of the consolidated statement of income. Changes in a parent’s ownership interest while the parent retains its controlling financial interest must be accounted for
consistently, and when a subsidiary is deconsolidated, any retained non-controlling equity investment in the former subsidiary must be initially measured at fair
value. The gain or loss on the deconsolidation of the subsidiary is measured using the fair value of any non-controlling equity investment. SFAS 160 also requires
entities to provide
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sufficient disclosures that clearly identify and distinguish between the interests of the parent and the interests of the non-controlling owners. SFAS 160 will
become effective for us beginning in the first quarter of 2009. Early adoption is not permitted. We are currently evaluating the impact SFAS 160 will have on our
consolidated financial statements but we do not believe it will have a significant impact upon adoption.

In March 2008, the FASB issued FASB Statement No. 161 (SFAS 161), “Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.” SFAS 161 requires
companies with derivative instruments to disclose information that should enable financial-statement users to understand how and why a company uses derivative
instruments, how derivative instruments and related hedged items are accounted for under FASB Statement No. 133 “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities” and how derivative instruments and related hedged items affect a company’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows. SFAS
161 will become effective for us beginning in the first quarter of 2009. We are currently evaluating the impact SFAS 161 will have on our consolidated financial
statements but we do not believe it will have a significant impact upon adoption.

In April 2008, the FASB issued FSP 142-3 (FSP 142-3), “Determination of the Useful Life of Intangible Assets.” FSP 142-3 amends the factors that should be
considered in developing renewal or extension assumptions used to determine the useful life of a recognized intangible asset under FASB Statement No. 142
(SFAS 142), “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” The intent of this new guidance is to improve the consistency between the useful life of a recognized
intangible asset under SFAS 142 and the period of expected cash flows used to measure the fair value of the asset under other accounting pronouncements. FSP
142-3 will become effective for us beginning in the first quarter of 2009. We are currently evaluating the impact, if any, that FSP 142-3 will have on our
consolidated financial statements but we do not believe it will have a significant impact upon adoption.

In October 2008, the FASB issued FSP FAS 157-3 (FSP FAS 157-3), “Determining the Fair Value of a Financial Asset When the Market for That Asset Is Not
Active.” FSP FAS 157-3 clarifies the application of SFAS 157 in a market that is not active and provides an example to illustrate key considerations in
determining the fair value of a financial instrument when the market for that financial asset is not active. FSP 157-3 was effective upon issuance, including prior
periods for which financial statements have not been issued. The adoption of FSP FAS 157-3 did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial
statements.

In December 2008, the FASB issued FSP FAS 140-4 and FIN 46(R)-8 (FSP 140-4 and FIN 46R-8), “Disclosures by Public Entities (Enterprises) about Transfers
of Financial Assets and Interests in Variable Interest Entities.” FSP 140-4 and FIN 46R-8 requires additional disclosures related to variable interest entities in
accordance with SFAS 140 and FIN 46R. These disclosures include significant judgments and assumptions, restrictions on assets, risks and the affects on
financial position, financial performance and cash flows. This FSP became effective for the first reporting period ending after December 15, 2008. We adopted
FSP 140-4 and FIN 46R-8 as of December 31, 2008. Disclosures required by FSP 140-4 and FIN 46R-8 are included in Note 1 to our consolidated financial
statements. The adoption of FSP 140-4 and FIN 46R-8 did not have any financial impact on our consolidated financial statements.

See the discussion of New Accounting Pronouncements in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

Interest Rate Risk - Our exposure to changes in interest rates primarily relates to our investment portfolio. Our excess cash is principally invested in short-term,
highly liquid financial instruments, mainly money market funds, with a substantial portion of such investments having initial maturities of three months or less.
The holdings in our investment portfolio most sensitive to interest rate risk include Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA) securities and a short-
term mutual fund principally invested in securities of U.S. and foreign commercial banks and government agencies. We place our investments in financial
instruments that meet high credit quality standards. While changes in interest rates could decrease interest income, we do not believe that we have a material
exposure to changes in interest rates. We do not undertake any specific actions to cover our exposure to interest rate risk and are not a party to any interest rate
risk management transactions.

Additionally, LSV Employee Group entered into two interest rate swap agreements to convert its floating rate long-term debt to fixed rate debt. These swaps have
a total notional value of $30.5 million. Payments are made every 90 days and the termination dates of the swaps are March 2009 and January 2011. The net effect
from the interest rate swaps on the Company’s earnings was minimal.

Foreign Currency Risk – We transact business in the local currencies of various foreign countries, principally Canada, Ireland, the United Kingdom and South
Korea. The total of all of our foreign operations accounts for approximately 11 percent of total consolidated revenues. Also, most of our foreign operations match
local currency revenues with local currency costs. Due to these reasons, we do not, at this time, hedge against foreign operations.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

Index to Financial Statements:
 
   Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm   43
Consolidated Balance Sheets — December 31, 2008 and 2007   44
Consolidated Statements of Operations — For the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006   46
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income — For the years ended December  31, 2008, 2007, and 2006   47
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows — For the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006   49
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements   51
Schedule II — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves — For the years ended December  31, 2008, 2007, and 2006   83

All other schedules are omitted because they are not applicable, or not required, or because the required information is included in the Consolidated Financial
Statements or notes thereto.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
of SEI Investments Company:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of operations, of shareholders’ equity and comprehensive
income, and of cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of SEI Investments Company and its subsidiaries (“the Company”) at
December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
2008 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement schedule
listed in the accompanying index presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated
financial statements. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2008, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO). The Company’s management is responsible for these financial statements and financial statement schedule, for maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in Management’s Report
on Internal Control over Financial Reporting under Item 9A. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements and on the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting based on our integrated audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits of
the financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as
we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
February 24, 2009
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In thousands)   

SEI Investments Company
and Subsidiaries

December 31,   2008   2007
Assets     
Current Assets:     
Cash and cash equivalents   $ 416,643  $ 360,921
Restricted cash    14,000   10,250
Receivables from regulated investment companies    28,364   38,198
Receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $2,656 and $3,032 (Note 4)    179,845   236,911
Deferred income taxes, net    84,830   17,310
Securities owned (Note 6)    —     16,777
Other current assets    15,989   14,567

        

Total Current Assets    739,671   694,934
        

Property and Equipment, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization of $142,240 and $126,591 (Note 4)    148,124   143,516
        

Capitalized Software, net of accumulated amortization of $52,113 and $34,915    270,606   231,684
        

Investments Available for Sale (Note 6)    75,380   77,169
        

Trading Securities (Note 6)    11,313   —  
        

Goodwill (Notes 2 and 3)    22,842   22,842
        

Intangible Assets, net of accumulated amortization of $23,523 and $15,864 (Notes 2 and 3)    52,518   60,177
        

Other Assets, net    21,261   22,043
        

Total Assets   $ 1,341,715  $ 1,252,365

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In thousands, except par value)   

SEI Investments Company
and Subsidiaries

December 31,   2008   2007
Liabilities
and Shareholders’ Equity    
Current Liabilities:    
Current portion of long-term debt   $ 7,200  $ 8,000
Accounts payable    12,308   8,690
Accrued liabilities (Note 4)    134,776   186,902
Capital Support Agreements (Note 7)    173,983   25,122
Payable to regulated investment companies    97   601
Deferred revenue    1,530   1,052

    
 

   

Total Current Liabilities    329,894   230,367
    

 
   

Long-term Debt    24,332   43,971
    

 
   

Deferred Income Taxes    104,548   73,600
    

 
   

Other Long-term Liabilities (Note 13)    4,067   11,895
    

 
   

Minority Interest    112,870   136,149
    

 
   

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 12)    
Shareholders’ Equity:    
Series Preferred stock, $.05 par value, 50 and 60 shares authorized; no shares issued and outstanding    —     —  
Common stock, $.01 par value, 750,000 shares authorized; 191,195 and 194,375 shares issued and outstanding    1,912   1,944
Capital in excess of par value    485,721   445,474
Retained earnings    289,682   298,975
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income, net    (11,311)  9,990

    
 

   

Total Shareholders’ Equity    766,004   756,383
    

 
   

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity    $1,341,715   $1,252,365

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
 

Page 45 of 97



Consolidated Statements of Operations
(In thousands, except per-share data)

  SEI Investments Company
and Subsidiaries  

 
Year Ended December 31,   2008   2007   2006  
Revenues:     

Asset management, administration and distribution fees   $ 955,399  $1,091,424  $ 918,142 
Information processing and software servicing fees    229,807   230,301   213,066 
Transaction-based and trade execution fees    62,713   47,303   44,541 

    
 

   
 

   
 

Total revenues    1,247,919   1,369,028   1,175,749 
Expenses:     

Commissions and fees    171,972   176,523   147,835 
Compensation, benefits and other personnel    309,870   350,150   315,502 
Consulting, outsourcing and professional fees    103,789   94,642   77,753 
Data processing and computer related    44,602   42,189   37,755 
Facilities, supplies and other costs    74,378   74,413   69,306 
Depreciation and amortization    46,959   37,136   29,147 

    
 

   
 

   
 

Total expenses    751,570   775,053   677,298 
Income before interest, taxes, minority interest and other items    496,349   593,975   498,451 
Net loss from investments    (158,018)  (25,395)  (2,378)
Interest and dividend income    13,740   18,596   13,521 
Interest expense    (3,418)  (4,709)  (5,464)
Other income    5,577   2,952   1,588 
Minority interest    (129,256)  (175,879)  (146,962)

    
 

   
 

   
 

Net income before income taxes    224,974   409,540   358,756 
Income taxes    85,720   149,731   121,766 

    
 

   
 

   
 

Net income   $ 139,254  $ 259,809  $ 236,990 
    

 
   

 
   

 

Basic earnings per common share   $ 0.73  $ 1.32  $ 1.20 
    

 
   

 
   

 

Diluted earnings per common share   $ 0.71  $ 1.28  $ 1.17 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income
(In thousands)

  SEI Investments Company
and Subsidiaries  

 

   Common Stock   
Capital In
Excess of
Par Value  

 

Retained
Earnings  

 

Accumu-
lated
Other

Compre-
hensive
Income
(Loss)  

 Total
Share-

holders’
Equity  

 Compre-
hensive
Income
(Loss)     Shares   Amount       

Balance, December 31, 2005   98,580  $ 986  $268,608  $ 148,127  $ 3,967  $ 421,688  
Comprehensive income:         

Net income   —     —     —     236,990   —     236,990  $236,990 
Foreign currency translation   —     —     —     —     2,771   2,771   2,771 
Unrealized net losses on investments, net of income taxes of $465   —     —     —     —     108   108   108 
Reclassification adjustment for losses realized in net income, net

of income taxes of $442   —     —     —     —     792   792   792 
          

 

Total comprehensive income         $240,661 
          

 

Purchase and retirement of common stock   (2,345)  (23)  (6,389)  (103,322)  —     (109,734) 
Issuance of common stock under the employee stock purchase plan   63   —     2,504   —     —     2,504  
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock options   2,655   27   42,131   —     —     42,158  
Stock-based compensation   —     —     24,811   —     —     24,811  
Tax benefit on stock options exercised   —     —     32,150   —     —     32,150  
Dividends declared ($.24 per share)   —     —     —     (23,726)  —     (23,726) 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

 

Balance, December 31, 2006   98,953  $ 990  $363,815  $ 258,069  $ 7,638  $ 630,512  
Comprehensive income:         

Net income   —     —     —     259,809   —     259,809  $259,809 
Foreign currency translation   —     —     —     —     2,728   2,728   2,728 
Unrealized net gains on investments,net of income taxes of $89   —     —     —     —     —     —     —   
Reclassification adjustment for losses realized in net income, net

of income taxes of $220   —     —     —     —     (376)  (376)  (376)
          

 

Total comprehensive income         $262,161 
          

 

Stock dividend   98,155   982   —     (982)  —     —    
Purchase and retirement of common stock   (5,227)  (52)  (14,520)  (190,512)  —     (205,084) 
Issuance of common stock under the employee stock purchase plan   90   —     2,908   —     —     2,908  
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock options   2,404   24   41,377   —     —     41,401  
Stock-based compensation   —     —     28,195   —     —     28,195  
Tax benefit on stock options exercised   —     —     23,699   —     —     23,699  
Dividends declared ($.14 per share)   —     —     —     (27,409)  —     (27,409) 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

 

Balance, December 31, 2007   194,375  $1,944  $445,474  $ 298,975  $ 9,990  $ 756,383  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income
(In thousands)   

SEI Investments Company
and Subsidiaries

    
 

   Common Stock   
Capital In
Excess of
Par Value  

 

Retained
Earnings  

 

Accumu-
lated
Other

Compre-
hensive
Income
(Loss)  

 Total
Share-

holders’
Equity  

 Compre-
hensive
Income
(Loss)     Shares   Amount       

Balance, December 31, 2007   194,375  $1,944  $445,474  $ 298,975  $ 9,990  $ 756,383  
Comprehensive income:         

Net income   —     —     —     139,254   —     139,254  $139,254 
Foreign currency translation   —     —     —     —     (18,961)  (18,961)  (18,961)
Unrealized net losses on investments, net of income taxes of

$1,522   —     —     —     —     (2,484)  (2,484)  (2,484)
Reclassification adjustment for gains realized in net income, net

of income taxes of $107   —     —     —     —     144   144   144 
          

 

Total comprehensive income         $ 117,953 
          

 

Purchase and retirement of common stock   (5,778)  (58)  (11,666)  (117,911)  —     (129,635) 
Issuance of common stock under the employee stock purchase plan   144   1   2,830   —     —     2,831  
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock options   2,454   25   25,601   —     —     25,626  
Stock-based compensation   —     —     16,010   —     —     16,010  
Tax benefit on stock options exercised   —     —     7,472   —     —     7,472  
Dividends declared ($.16 per share)   —     —     —     (30,636)  —     (30,636) 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

 

Balance, December 31, 2008   191,195  $1,912  $485,721  $ 289,682  $ (11,311) $ 766,004  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(In thousands)

  SEI Investments Company
and Subsidiaries  

 
Year Ended December 31,   2008   2007   2006  
Cash flows from operating activities:     
Net income   $ 139,254  $ 259,809  $236,990 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:     

Depreciation and amortization    46,959   37,136   29,147 
Distribution from unconsolidated affiliate    —     —     16,940 
Undistributed earnings of minority interests    129,256   175,879   146,962 
Payments to partners of LSV    (144,399)  (147,313)  (88,779)
Provision for losses on receivables    (376)  302   1,210 
Stock-based compensation    16,010   28,195   24,811 
Gain on partial sale of unconsolidated affiliate    —     —     (267)
Gain on sale of joint venture    —     (2,952)  —   
Deferred income tax (benefit) expense    (34,727)  420   12,520 
Net realized losses from investments    7,196   274   399 
Write-off of capitalized software    —     —     5,694 
Capitalized interest    (5,577)  —     —   
Other-than-temporary declines in market value    1,961   —     1,979 
Change in other long-term liabilities    (7,828)  11,895   —   
Other    (26,193)  (7,652)  (6,667)
Change in current assets and liabilities:     

Decrease (increase) in:     
Receivables from regulated investment companies    9,834   (598)  (7,042)
Receivables    56,527   (29,299)  (44,759)
Other current assets    (1,422)  (2,253)  (2,153)

Increase (decrease) in:     
Accounts payable    3,618   1,571   2,163 
Capital Support Agreements    148,861   25,122   —   
Payable to regulated investment companies    (504)  343   54 
Accrued expenses    (54,200)  10,132   16,649 
Deferred revenue    478   446   319 

    
 

   
 

   
 

Total adjustments    145,474   101,648   109,180 
    

 
   

 
   

 

Net cash provided by operating activities   $ 284,728  $ 361,457  $346,170 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(In thousands)   

SEI Investments Company
and Subsidiaries

 
Year Ended December 31,   2008   2007   2006  
Cash flows from investing activities:     

Additions to restricted cash    (3,750)  —     —   
Additions to property and equipment    (26,326)  (32,969)  (32,870)
Additions to capitalized software    (51,976)  (61,350)  (73,252)
Purchases of marketable securities    (61,648)  (73,364)  (80,683)
Prepayments and maturities of marketable securities    33,779   26,258   29,946 
Sales of marketable securities    26,924   42,598   33,980 
Cash paid for purchase of joint venture    (3,302)  —     —   
Cash received from sale of joint venture    —     3,116   —   
Cash received from consolidation of LSV    —     —     5,268 
Other    —     (347)  (405)

    
 

   
 

   
 

Net cash used in investing activities    (86,299)  (96,058)  (118,016)
Cash flows from financing activities:     

Payments on long-term debt    (20,439)  (28,667)  (16,551)
Purchase and retirement of common stock    (129,251)  (205,084)  (107,398)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock    28,457   44,309   43,169 
Tax benefit on stock options exercised    7,472   23,699   32,150 
Payment of dividends    (28,946)  (25,683)  (22,704)

    
 

   
 

   
 

Net cash used in financing activities    (142,707)  (191,426)  (71,334)
    

 
   

 
   

 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents    55,722   73,973   156,820 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year    360,921   286,948   130,128 

    
 

   
 

   
 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year   $ 416,643  $ 360,921  $ 286,948 
Interest paid   $ 3,629  $ 5,009  $ 4,398 
Income taxes paid   $ 126,269  $ 126,356  $ 79,821 

Non-cash financing activities (1)     
Dividends declared but not paid   $ 15,297  $ 13,607  $ 11,881 

 

(1) See Note 1 for other non-cash financing activity related to LSV Employee Group.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(all figures are in thousands except per-share data)

  SEI Investments Company
and Subsidiaries  

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Nature of Operations

SEI Investments Company (the Company), a Pennsylvania corporation, provides investment processing, fund processing, and investment management
business outsourcing solutions to corporations, financial institutions, financial advisors, and ultra-high-net-worth families in the United States, Canada, the
United Kingdom, continental Europe, and other various locations throughout the world. Investment processing solutions utilize the Company’s proprietary
software system to track investment activities in multiple types of investment accounts, including personal trust, corporate trust, institutional trust, and non-
trust investment accounts, thereby allowing banks and trust companies to outsource trust and investment related activities. Revenues from investment
processing solutions are recognized in Information processing and software servicing fees on the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations,
except for fees earned associated with trade execution services.

The fund processing solution offers a full range of administration and distribution support services to mutual funds, collective trust funds, hedge funds,
fund of funds, private equity funds and other types of investment funds. Administrative services include fund accounting, trustee and custodial support,
legal support, transfer agency and shareholder servicing. Distribution support services range from market and industry insight and analysis to identifying
distribution opportunities. Revenues from fund processing solutions are recognized in Asset management, administration and distribution fees on the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Investment management programs consist of mutual funds, alternative investments and separate accounts. These include a series of money market, equity,
fixed-income and alternative investment portfolios, primarily in the form of registered investment companies. The Company serves as the administrator and
investment advisor for many of these products. Revenues from investment management programs are recognized in Asset management, administration and
distribution fees on the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Principles of Consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries and entities in which it holds a controlling
financial interest. The Company determines whether it has a controlling financial interest either by its decision-making ability through voting interests in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 94, “Consolidation of All Majority-Owned Subsidiaries,” or by the extent of the
Company’s participation in the economic risks and rewards of the entity through variable interests pursuant to the revised interpretation of Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Interpretation No. 46 (FIN 46), “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.” The Company provides for minority
interests in consolidated entities for which the Company’s controlling financial interest is less than 100 percent. The Company’s principal subsidiaries are
SEI Investments Distribution Co. (SIDCO), SEI Investments Management Corporation (SIMC), SEI Private Trust Company (SPTC) and SEI Investments
(Europe) Limited (SIEL). All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Variable Interest Entities

The Company has involvement with various variable interest entities (VIE or VIEs). These VIEs consist of LSV Employee Group, two SEI-sponsored
money market funds, and other investment products in the form of Cayman Island investment companies (Cayman companies) and collective investment
trusts.

The Company provided an unsecured guaranty with the lenders of LSV Employee Group in order to facilitate the acquisition of partnership interest in LSV.
It was determined that LSV Employee Group is a VIE because the partners of LSV Employee Group do not have any equity at risk because the Company
guaranteed the loan. The Company determined it was the primary beneficiary through its guaranty of the debt (See Note 2).

 
Page 51 of 97



The Company entered into Capital Support Agreements with some of its money market funds to protect the money market fund shareholders from
absorbing the credit losses associated with senior notes issued by structured investment vehicles (SIV or SIVs). At the time the Company provided the
Capital Support Agreements, the funds became VIEs; however, management concluded the Company was not the primary beneficiary. Management
compared the credit risk absorbed through the Capital Support Agreements due to the SIV securities and the interest rate and credit risk associated with the
non-SIVs absorbed by the money market funds shareholders to determine if the Company’s risk represented the majority. This analysis determined that the
interest rate and credit risk absorbed by the money market fund shareholders was more variable than the credit risk absorbed by the Company. Therefore,
the Company is not bearing more than 50 percent of the expected losses on the money market funds and the Company is not the primary beneficiary (See
Note 7).

Other variable interest entities are in the form of Cayman companies and collective investment trusts established for the purpose of offering alternative
investment products to clients. Clients of the Company are the equity holders in all of these VIEs. The Company governs all decision making authority of
the Cayman companies and the collective investment trusts. The Company has no equity investment in the Cayman companies or the collective investment
trusts. As a result, the Company has no variable interest in these entities and, therefore, is not the primary beneficiary.

Management’s Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Out of Period Adjustments

During the three month period ended December 31, 2008, the Company recorded an adjustment related to interest costs associated with borrowings in prior
years when the Company was involved with various capital projects. The Company incorrectly expensed all interest costs rather than capitalizing these
costs as part of the cost basis of these capital projects. The Company did not have any interest costs in 2008 eligible for capitalization. The Company does
not believe these prior period adjustments were quantitatively or qualitatively material to the financial results for any of its previously issued annual or
interim financial statements through September 30, 2008. Had these errors been recorded in the proper periods, Net income would increase by $41 in 2007
and increase by $3,699 for years prior to 2006. Retained earnings on January 1, 2006 would increase by $3,265. As a result, the Company did not restate
any previously issued annual or interim financial statements. The net impact of the adjustments was an increase in Net income before taxes of $5,577 and
an increase in Net income of $3,453 ($.02 diluted earnings per share) in the fourth quarter 2008. These non-cash adjustments were recognized in Other
income on the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations and did not have any effect on any of the Company’s business segments.

Revenue Recognition

The Company’s principal sources of revenues are: (1) asset management, administration and distribution fees earned based upon a contractual percentage
of net assets under management or administration; (2) information processing and software servicing fees that are either recurring and primarily earned
based upon the number of trust accounts being serviced or non-recurring and based upon project-oriented contractual agreements related to client
implementations; and (3) transaction-based fees for providing securities valuation and trade-execution services. The majority of the Company’s revenues
are based on contractual arrangements. Revenues are recognized in the periods in which the related services are performed provided that persuasive
evidence of an agreement exists, the fee is fixed or determinable, and collectibility is reasonably assured. Cash received by the Company in advance of the
performance of services is deferred and recognized as revenue when earned. Reimbursements received for out-of-pocket expenses incurred are recorded as
revenue. Certain portions of the Company’s revenues require management’s consideration of the nature of the client relationship in determining whether to
recognize as revenue the gross amount billed or net amount retained after payments are made to suppliers for certain services related to the product or
service offering.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers investment instruments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents
include $282,155 and $185,536 at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, primarily invested in SEI-sponsored open-ended money market mutual
funds. Cash includes $60,515 and $82,374 at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, from LSV.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash includes $14,000 and $10,000 at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, segregated in special reserve accounts for the benefit of
SIDCO customers in accordance with certain rules established by the Securities and Exchange Commission for broker-dealers. Restricted cash at
December 31, 2007 includes $250 segregated for regulatory purposes related to trade-execution services conducted by SIEL.

Allowances for Doubtful Accounts

The Company provides an allowance for doubtful accounts equal to the estimated uncollectible amounts. The Company’s estimate is based on historical
collection experience and a review of the current status of trade accounts receivable.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which potentially expose the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash equivalents and trade receivables.
Cash equivalents are principally invested in short-term money market funds or placed with major banks and high-credit qualified financial institutions.
Cash deposits maintained with institutions are in excess of federally insured limits. Concentrations of credit risk with respect to our receivables are limited
due to the large number of clients and their dispersion across geographic areas. No single group or customer represents greater than ten percent of total
accounts receivable.

Property and Equipment

Property and Equipment are recorded at cost. Expenditures for major additions and improvements are capitalized and minor replacements, maintenance,
and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. Construction in progress includes the cost of construction and other direct costs attributable to the
construction. When property and equipment are retired or disposed of, the related cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and
any resulting gain or loss is included in the results of operations for the respective period. Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives using the
straight line method for financial statement purposes. No provision for depreciation is made for construction in progress until such time as the relevant
assets are completed and put into service. The Company uses other depreciation methods, generally accelerated, for tax purposes where appropriate.
Buildings and building improvements are depreciated over 25 to 39 years. Equipment, purchased software and furniture and fixtures have useful lives
ranging from three to five years. Amortization of leasehold improvements is computed using the straight line method over the shorter of the remaining
lease term or the estimated useful lives of the improvements.

Marketable Securities

The Company’s non-broker-dealer subsidiaries account for investments in marketable securities pursuant to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(SFAS) No. 115 (SFAS 115), “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities.” Management determines the appropriate classification of
investments in marketable securities at the time of purchase and reevaluates such designation at each balance sheet date. Debt and equity securities
classified as available-for-sale are reported at fair value as determined by the most recently traded price of each security at the balance sheet date.
Unrealized gains and losses, net of income taxes, are reported as a separate component of comprehensive income. SIDCO, the Company’s broker-dealer
subsidiary, reports changes in fair value of marketable securities through current period earnings due to specialized accounting practices related to broker-
dealers in securities. The Company has elected the fair value option under SFAS 159 for all of its trading securities and the amount on the accompanying
Consolidated Balance Sheet represents the fair value of all trading securities. Unrealized gains and losses from the change in fair value of these securities
are recognized in current period earnings. The specific identification method is used to compute the realized gains and losses on all of the Company’s
marketable securities (See Note 6).
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The Company evaluates the realizable value of its marketable securities on a quarterly basis. In the event that the carrying value of an investment exceeds
its fair value and the decline in value is determined to be other-than-temporary, an impairment charge is recorded and a new cost basis for the investment is
established. Factors considered in determining other-than-temporary declines in value include the duration and extent to which the fair value has been less
than the carrying value; the ability of the investment to recover to its original cost, and the Company’s intent and ability to retain the investment for a
period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

The Company accounts for its derivatives in accordance with SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” SFAS
No. 138, “Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities – an amendment of FASB Statement No. 133,” and SFAS
No. 149, “Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.”

All derivatives, whether designated for hedging relationships or not, are required to be recorded on the consolidated balance sheet at fair value. The value
of the derivative is derived from reference to an underlying variable or combination of variables such as equity, credit, or interest rate prices and indices. In
order to qualify for hedge accounting, a derivative must be considered highly effective at reducing the risk associated with the exposure being hedged. In
order to receive hedge accounting treatment, all hedging relationships must be formally documented at the inception of the hedge, and the hedges must be
highly effective in offsetting changes to the value of the hedged asset. Any ineffectiveness must be reported in current period earnings. If it is determined
that a derivative is not highly effective, hedge accounting is discontinued. As of December 31, 2008, the Company did not apply hedge accounting to any
of its derivatives.

Capitalized Software

The Company accounts for software development costs in accordance with the guidance established in Statement of Position 98-1 (SOP 98-1),
“Accounting for the Cost of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use,” for development costs associated with software products to be
provided in a hosting environment. As required by SOP 98-1, the Company capitalizes the costs incurred during the application development stage, which
includes direct external and internal costs to design the software configuration and interfaces, coding, installation, and testing. Costs incurred during the
preliminary project along with post-implementation stages are expensed as incurred. Costs associated with significant enhancements are capitalized while
costs incurred to maintain existing product offerings are expensed as incurred. The capitalization of software development costs requires considerable
judgment by management with respect to certain external factors, including, but not limited to, technological and economic feasibility, and estimated
economic life. The Company evaluates the carrying value of capitalized software development costs when circumstances indicate the carrying value may
not be recoverable. The review of capitalized software development costs for impairment requires significant assumptions about operating strategies,
underlying technologies utilized, and external market factors. External market factors include, but not limited to, expected levels of competition, barriers to
entry by potential competitors, stability in the target market and governmental regulations. In 2008, the Company determined that no events or change in
circumstances had occurred that would indicate that capitalized software development costs were impaired. Therefore, the Company did not recognize any
impairment charges for any of its capitalized software development costs in 2008. The Company capitalized $56,162, $61,350, and $73,252 of software
development costs in accordance with SOP 98-1 during 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively. Amounts capitalized in 2008 include $4,186, net of $382 in
accumulated amortization, consisting of an out-of-period adjustment for interest costs on outstanding borrowings of the Company for the years 2002
through 2007.

Amortization of capitalized software development costs begins when the product is ready for its intended use. Capitalized software development costs are
amortized on a product-by-product basis using the straight-line method over the estimated economic life of the product or enhancement, which is primarily
3 to 15 years, with a weighted average remaining life of approximately 13.3 years. Amortization expense was $16,980, $9,680, and $4,214 in 2008, 2007,
and 2006, respectively, and is included in Depreciation and amortization expense on the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations.

The Company placed the initial version of the Global Wealth Platform into service in July 2007 and has subsequently implemented enhancements and
upgrades to the platform through a series of releases. The total amount of capitalized software development costs related to the platform placed into service
and being amortized as of December 31, 2008 was $224,343. The Global Wealth Platform has an estimated useful life of 15 years. Amortization expense
related to the platform was $14,727 and $6,859 in 2008 and 2007, respectively.
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In 2006, the Company determined that the front-end component of the SEI Advisor Desktop did not fully satisfy the expected functionality requirements
and would require additional investment. Management decided to discontinue any further development work for this front-end component and wrote-off
$3,429 of previously capitalized software development costs. Additionally, $2,265 of previously capitalized software development costs related to other
discontinued projects associated with the Global Wealth Platform were written-off in 2006.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

In February 2007, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 159 (SFAS 159), “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities.” SFAS 159 permits companies to choose to measure certain financial instruments and certain other items at fair value. The standard
requires that unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair value option has been elected be reported in earnings. SFAS 159 was effective for the
Company on January 1, 2008. The Company elected not to apply the fair value option to any of its financial instruments on the date the standard became
effective and, therefore, SFAS 159 had no impact on its consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows. The Company has subsequently
applied the fair value option to certain financial instruments acquired after the effective date of SFAS 159.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157 (SFAS 157), “Fair Value Measurements,” which defines fair value, establishes guidelines for
measuring fair value and expands disclosures regarding fair value measurements. SFAS 157 does not require any new fair value measurements but rather
eliminates inconsistencies in guidance found in various prior accounting pronouncements. SFAS 157 was effective for the Company on January 1, 2008.
However, in February 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (FSP) FAS 157-2 which delayed the effective date of SFAS 157 for all nonfinancial
assets and nonfinancial liabilities, except those that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis (at least
annually). In October 2008, the FASB issued FSP FAS 157-3 which clarifies the application of SFAS 157 in a market that is not active and provides an
example to illustrate key considerations in determining the fair value of a financial asset when the market for that financial asset is not active. SFAS 157
becomes effective for all nonfinancial assets and liabilities for periods beginning after November 15, 2008, which will be the Company’s first quarter of
fiscal 2009. The Company has adopted SFAS 157 for financial assets and liabilities recognized at fair value on a recurring basis. The partial adoption of
SFAS 157 for financial assets and liabilities did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash
flows. See Note 5 for information on related disclosures regarding fair value measurements.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Asset

The Company accounts for goodwill in accordance with SFAS No. 142 (SFAS 142), “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” Goodwill is not amortized
but is reviewed for impairment annually or more frequently if an event occurs or circumstances change that would more likely than not reduce the fair
value of a reporting unit below its carrying amount. The provisions of SFAS 142 require that a two-step, fair value based test be performed to assess
goodwill for impairment. In the first step, the fair value of each reporting unit is compared with its carrying value, including goodwill. If the fair value
exceeds the carrying value, goodwill is not impaired and no further testing is performed. The second step is performed if the carrying value exceeds the fair
value. The second step requires an allocation of fair value to the individual assets and liabilities using a purchase price allocation in order to determine the
implied fair value of goodwill. If the implied fair value of goodwill is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognized. The Company
estimates the fair value of the LSV reporting unit primarily based upon an earnings multiple approach. This approach requires an estimate of future
expected cash flows from the LSV reporting unit which involves significant assumptions by management.

SFAS 142 also requires that intangible assets with definite lives be amortized over their estimated useful life and reviewed for impairment in accordance
with SFAS No. 144 (SFAS 144), “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” The Company reviews long-lived assets and
identifiable definite-lived intangible assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of these assets
may not be recoverable. For purposes of recognizing and measuring an impairment loss, a long-lived asset shall be grouped with other assets and liabilities
at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely independent. It is impossible to distinguish between the cash flows generated by goodwill
and intangible assets and, therefore, the impairment analysis of the Other Intangible Asset are grouped with all of the other assets of LSV, including
Goodwill. To date, the Company has not recognized any impairment loss for any of its Goodwill or Other Intangible Asset.
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The Company is amortizing its intangible assets on a straight-line basis over eight and a half to ten years (See Notes 2 and 3).

Income Taxes

The Company applies the asset and liability approach to account for income taxes pursuant to SFAS No. 109 (SFAS 109), “Accounting for Income Taxes.”
Under SFAS 109, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial
statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax
rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The components of the
deferred tax assets and liabilities are individually classified as current and non-current based on their characteristics.

The Company adopted FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes - an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109” (FIN
48), effective January 1, 2007. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in financial statements and requires the impact of
a tax position to be recognized in the financial statements if that position is more likely than not of being sustained by the taxing authority. The adoption of
FIN 48 did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial position or results of operations (See Note 13).

Foreign Currency Translation

The assets and liabilities and results of operations of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries are measured using the foreign subsidiary’s local currency as the
functional currency. Assets and liabilities have been translated into U.S. dollars using the rates of exchange at the balance sheet dates. The results of
operations have been translated into U.S. dollars at average exchange rates prevailing during the period. The resulting translation gain and loss adjustments
are recorded as a separate component of comprehensive income.

Transaction gains and losses that arise from exchange rate fluctuations are included in the results of operations in the periods in which they occur, and are
immaterial for each of the years in the three year period ended December 31, 2008.

Earnings Per Common Share

The Company calculates earnings per common share in accordance with SFAS No. 128, “Earnings per Share.” Basic earnings per common share is
computed by dividing net income available to common shareholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted earnings per common share is computed by dividing net income available to common shareholders by the combination of the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding and the dilutive potential common shares, such as stock options, outstanding during the period. The calculations of
basic and diluted earnings per share for 2008, 2007, and 2006 are:

 
   For the Year ended December 31, 2008
   Net Income

(Numerator)
  Shares

(Denominator)
  Per-Share

Amount       
Basic earnings per common share   $ 139,254  192,057  $ 0.73
Dilutive effect of stock options    —    3,176  

         

Diluted earnings per common share   $ 139,254  195,233  $ 0.71
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   For the Year ended December 31, 2007
   Net Income

(Numerator)
  Shares

(Denominator)
  Per-Share

Amount       
Basic earnings per common share   $ 259,809  196,120  $ 1.32
Dilutive effect of stock options    —    6,111  

         

Diluted earnings per common share   $ 259,809  202,231  $ 1.28

   For the Year ended December 31, 2006
   Income

(Numerator)
  Shares

(Denominator)
  Per-Share

Amount       
Basic earnings per common share   $ 236,990  197,364  $ 1.20
Dilutive effect of stock options    —    5,902  

         

Diluted earnings per common share   $ 236,990  203,266  $ 1.17

Employee stock options to purchase approximately 13,654,000, 6,099,000, and 3,574,000 shares of common stock, with an average exercise price per share
of $23.26, $29.63, and $29.43, were outstanding during 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively, but not included in the computation of diluted earnings per
common share because the option’s exercise price was greater than the average market price of the Company’s common stock and the effect on diluted
earnings per common share would have been anti-dilutive (See Note 10).

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock based compensation in accordance with SFAS No. 123(R) (SFAS 123(R), “Share-Based Payment.” Stock-based
compensation cost is measured at the grant date based on the fair value of the award and is recognized as expense over the requisite service period, which is
the vesting period. The Company elected the modified-prospective method, under which prior periods are not restated for comparative purposes. The
valuation provisions of SFAS 123(R) apply to new grants and to grants that were outstanding as of the effective date and are subsequently modified.
Estimated compensation for grants that were outstanding as of the effective date will be recognized over the remaining service period.

The Company uses historical data to estimate pre-vesting forfeitures and record stock-based compensation expense only for those awards that are expected
to vest. Stock-based compensation is amortized over the requisite service periods of the awards, which are generally the vesting periods. The amount of
stock-based compensation expense that is recognized in a given period is dependent upon management’s estimate of when the vesting targets are expected
to be achieved. If this estimate proves to be inaccurate, the remaining amount of stock-based compensation expense could be accelerated, spread out over a
longer period, or reversed (See Note 10).

Comprehensive Income

SFAS No. 130, “Reporting Comprehensive Income,” establishes standards for the reporting and presentation of comprehensive income and its components.
Comprehensive income consists of net income and other gains and losses affecting shareholders’ equity that are excluded from net income. For the
Company, comprehensive income includes unrealized gains and losses on available for sale securities and foreign currency translation. The Company
presents comprehensive income in its Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income. Components of Accumulated other
comprehensive income consisted of:

 
December 31,   2008   2007
Foreign currency translation   $ (9,787) $9,174
Unrealized (losses) gains on available for sale securities, net of income tax benefit (expense) of $933 and $(481)    (1,524)  816

    
 

   

Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income, net   $(11,311) $9,990
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Statements of Cash Flows

The following non-cash activities are excluded from the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the year ended December 31, 2006: LSV Employee
Group purchased a percentage of LSV from two existing partners for a total purchase price of $92,000. LSV Employee Group contributed $9,200 and
borrowed the remaining $82,800 (See Note 2).

New Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007) (SFAS 141R), “Business Combinations,” which replaces SFAS No.141, “Business
Combinations.” SFAS 141R will change how to account for business acquisitions. SFAS 141R requires the assets acquired, the liabilities assumed and any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree at the acquisition date to be measured at their fair values as of that date, with limited exceptions. SFAS 141R makes
various other amendments intended to provide additional guidance or to confirm existing guidance. SFAS 141R will become effective for the Company
beginning in the first quarter of 2009. Early adoption is not permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact SFAS 141R will have on its
consolidated financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160 (SFAS 160), “Noncontrolling Interest in Consolidated Financial Statements, an amendment of
Accounting Research Bulletin No.51.” SFAS 160 establishes accounting and reporting standards that require the ownership interests in subsidiaries not
held by the parent to be clearly identified, labeled and presented in the consolidated statement of financial position within equity, but separate from the
parent’s equity. This statement also requires the amount of consolidated net income attributable to the parent and to the non-controlling interest to be
clearly identified and presented on the face of the consolidated statement of income. Changes in a parent’s ownership interest while the parent retains its
controlling financial interest must be accounted for consistently, and when a subsidiary is deconsolidated, any retained non-controlling equity investment in
the former subsidiary must be initially measured at fair value. The gain or loss on the deconsolidation of the subsidiary is measured using the fair value of
any non-controlling equity investment. SFAS 160 also requires entities to provide sufficient disclosures that clearly identify and distinguish between the
interests of the parent and the interests of the non-controlling owners. SFAS 160 will become effective for the Company beginning in the first quarter of
2009. Early adoption is not permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact SFAS 160 will have on its consolidated financial statements but it
does not believe it will have a significant impact upon adoption.

In March 2008, the FASB issued FASB Statement No. 161 (SFAS 161), “Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.” SFAS 161
requires companies with derivative instruments to disclose information that should enable financial-statement users to understand how and why a company
uses derivative instruments, how derivative instruments and related hedged items are accounted for under FASB Statement No. 133 “Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” and how derivative instruments and related hedged items affect a company’s financial position, financial
performance and cash flows. SFAS 161 will become effective for Company beginning in the first quarter of 2009. The Company is currently evaluating the
impact SFAS 161 will have on its consolidated financial statements but it does not believe it will have a significant impact upon adoption.

In April 2008, the FASB issued FSP 142-3 (FSP 142-3), “Determination of the Useful Life of Intangible Assets.” FSP 142-3 amends the factors that should
be considered in developing renewal or extension assumptions used to determine the useful life of a recognized intangible asset under FASB Statement
No. 142 (SFAS 142), “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” The intent of this new guidance is to improve the consistency between the useful life of a
recognized intangible asset under SFAS 142 and the period of expected cash flows used to measure the fair value of the asset under other accounting
pronouncements. FSP 142-3 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2008. The
Company is currently evaluating the impact, if any, that FSP 142-3 will have on its consolidated financial statements but it does not believe it will have a
significant impact upon adoption.
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In October 2008, the FASB issued FSP FAS 157-3 (FSP FAS 157-3), “Determining the Fair Value of a Financial Asset When the Market for That Asset Is
Not Active.” FSP FAS 157-3 clarifies the application of SFAS 157 in a market that is not active and provides an example to illustrate key considerations in
determining the fair value of a financial instrument when the market for that financial asset is not active. FSP 157-3 was effective upon issuance, including
prior periods for which financial statements have not been issued. The adoption of FSP FAS 157-3 did not have a material impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

In December 2008, the FASB issued FSP FAS 140-4 and FIN 46(R)-8 (FSP 140-4 and FIN 46R-8), “Disclosures by Public Entities (Enterprises) about
Transfers of Financial Assets and Interests in Variable Interest Entities.” FSP 140-4 and FIN 46R-8 requires additional disclosures related to variable
interest entities in accordance with SFAS 140 and FIN 46R. These disclosures include significant judgments and assumptions, restrictions on assets, risks
and the affects on financial position, financial performance and cash flows. This FSP became effective for the first reporting period ending after
December 15, 2008. The Company adopted FSP 140-4 and FIN 46R-8 as of December 31, 2008. Disclosures required by FSP 140-4 and FIN 46R-8 are
included in the section titled “Variable Interest Entities” of this Note. The adoption of this FSP did not have any financial impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to current year presentation.

Note 2 – Consolidation of LSV and LSV Employee Group

The Company has an investment in the general partnership LSV, a registered investment advisor that provides investment advisory services to institutions,
including pension plans and investment companies. LSV is currently an investment sub-advisor for a number of SEI-sponsored mutual funds. The
Company’s total partnership interest in LSV was approximately 43 percent during 2008 and 2007. LSV Employee Group is owned by several current
employees of LSV and was formed in January 2006 for the sole purpose of owning a partnership interest in LSV. The Company does not own any interest
in LSV Employee Group.

In January 2006, two partners of LSV, excluding the Company, sold in the aggregate an eight percent interest in LSV to LSV Employee Group. The
Company entered into a Guaranty Agreement with LSV Employee Group, Bank of America, N.A. (formerly LaSalle Bank National Association) as
administrative agent (the Agent), and certain other lenders in order to facilitate the acquisition of certain partnership interests of LSV by LSV Employee
Group. LSV Employee Group obtained financing from the Agent and certain other lenders in the form of a term loan pursuant to the terms of a Credit
Agreement (see LSV Employee Group Term Loan below).

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Guaranty Agreement, the Company has agreed to provide an unsecured guaranty to the lenders of all obligations
of LSV Employee Group under the Credit Agreement. In the event of default by LSV Employee Group, the lenders have the right to seek payment from the
Company of all obligations of LSV Employee Group under the Credit Agreement. As recourse for such payment, the Company will be subrogated to the
rights of the lenders under the Credit Agreement and the Guaranty Agreement, including the security interest in the pledged interests transferred to LSV
Employee Group.

Under FIN 46, LSV Employee Group meets the definition of a variable interest entity and the Company is the primary beneficiary. As a result of this
transaction, the Company has a controlling financial interest in LSV through its direct ownership of LSV and guaranty of LSV Employee Group’s debt.
The Company therefore consolidates the assets, liabilities and operations of LSV and LSV Employee Group in its Consolidated Financial Statements. The
Company’s percentage of direct ownership in LSV was unchanged (approximately 43 percent) as a result of this transaction. The amount of ownership of
the other existing partners (approximately 57 percent) of LSV is included in Minority interest. Assuming no other changes in the Company’s relationship
with LSV and LSV Employee Group, the Company would no longer be required to consolidate the assets, liabilities and operations of LSV and LSV
Employee Group after the LSV Employee Group Term Loan is paid in full. Additionally, the Company may not be required to consolidate LSV if the
Company’s percentage of direct ownership in LSV decreases to certain levels.
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The Company determined that $72,220 of the $92,000 purchase price related to identifiable intangible assets and the remaining $19,780 was goodwill. The
identifiable intangible assets have an estimated life of ten years and are amortized on a straight-line basis. The Company recognized $7,222 in amortization
expense in 2008, 2007 and 2006, which is reflected in Depreciation and amortization expense on the accompanying Consolidated Statement of Operations.

 
   2008   2007  
Intangible asset, at cost   $ 72,220  $ 72,220 
Accumulated amortization    (21,666)  (14,444)

    
 

   
 

Net book value   $ 50,554  $ 57,776 

Amortization expense associated with the assets of LSV Employee Group was eliminated through Minority interest and had no impact on net income. The
estimated amortization expense related to the intangible assets for each year from 2009 through 2015 is $7,222.

LSV Employee Group Term Loan

In order to finance a portion of the purchase price, LSV Employee Group obtained financing from Bank of America, N.A. (formerly LaSalle Bank National
Association) and certain other lenders in the form of a term loan pursuant to the terms of a Credit Agreement. The principal amount of the term loan is
$82,800. The principal amount and interest of the term loan are to be paid in quarterly installments. The total outstanding principal balance of the term loan
must be paid in full by January 2011. LSV Employee Group may prepay the term loan in whole or in part at any time without penalty. The term loan
contains various covenants, none of which negatively affect the Company’s liquidity or capital resources. LSV Employee Group was in compliance with all
covenants during 2008.

As of December 31, 2008, the remaining unpaid principal balance of the term loan was $31,532, of which $7,200 is classified as current and included in
Current portion of long-term debt and the remaining $24,332 is included in Long-term debt on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. LSV
Employee Group made principal payments totaling $20,439 and $19,667 during 2008 and 2007, respectively. The average rates applied to the loan
throughout 2008, 2007 and 2006 were 4.08 percent, 6.19 percent and 5.99 percent, respectively. Interest expense for 2008, 2007 and 2006 on the
Consolidated Statements of Operations includes $2,285, $3,762 and $4,429, respectively, in interest costs associated with the borrowings of LSV Employee
Group which was eliminated through Minority interest and had no impact on net income.

LSV Employee Group made a principal payment of $3,846 in January 2009. The remaining principal balance of the term loan at January 31, 2009 was
$27,686. The Company currently has no obligation of payment relating to the term loan of LSV Employee Group.

The book value of LSV Employee Group’s long-term debt is considered to be representative of its fair value based upon an estimation using borrowing
rates currently available for bank loans with similar terms and maturities.

The aggregate maturities of the LSV Employee Group’s long-term debt are scheduled to occur as follows: $7,200 in 2009, $6,400 in 2010 and $17,932 in
2011. These amounts do not include the principal payment of $3,846 made by LSV Employee Group in January 2009.

LSV Employee Group entered into two interest rate swap agreements to convert its floating rate long-term debt to fixed rate debt. These swaps have a total
notional value of $30,465. Payments are made every 90 days and the termination dates of the swaps are March 2009 and January 2011. The net effect from
the interest rate swaps on the Company’s earnings was minimal.

Note 3 – Goodwill and Other Intangible Asset

In June 2003, the Company purchased an additional percentage ownership in LSV. The total purchase price was allocated to LSV’s net tangible and
intangible assets based upon their estimated fair values at the date of purchase. The excess purchase price over the value of the net tangible and identifiable
intangible assets was recorded as goodwill. The total amount of goodwill from this transaction amounted to $3,062 and is included on the accompanying
Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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The Company identified an intangible asset related to customer contracts that met the contractual-legal criterion for recognition apart from goodwill. The
fair value of the intangible asset was determined to be $3,821 with a definite life of eight and a half years. The identified intangible asset is amortized on a
straight-line basis. The Company recognized $437 of amortization expense during 2008 and 2007, which is reflected in Depreciation and amortization
expense on the accompanying Consolidated Statement of Operations.

 
   2008   2007  
Intangible asset, at cost   $ 3,821  $ 3,821 
Accumulated amortization    (1,857)  (1,420)

    
 

   
 

Net book value   $ 1,964  $ 2,401 

The estimated amortization expense related to the intangible asset for each year from 2009 through 2012 is $437 and $216 in 2013.

Note 4 – Composition of Certain Financial Statement Captions:

Receivables

Receivables on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets consist of:
 

   2008   2007  
Trade receivables   $ 49,656  $ 49,852 
Fees earned, not billed    130,341   186,157 
Other receivables    2,504   3,934 

    
 

   
 

   182,501   239,943 
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts    (2,656)  (3,032)

    
 

   
 

Receivables, net   $179,845  $ 236,911 

Fees earned, not billed represents receivables earned but unbilled and results from timing differences between services provided and contractual billing
schedules. These billing schedules generally provide for fees to be billed on a quarterly basis.

Receivables from regulated investment companies on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets primarily represent fees receivable for distribution,
investment advisory, and administration services to various regulated investment companies sponsored by SEI (See Note 15).

Receivables of LSV included with Receivables on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets consist of:
   2008   2007  
Trade receivables   $14,117  $14,881 
Fees earned, not billed    43,975   77,632 
Other receivables    385   275 

    
 

   
 

   58,477   92,788 
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts    (1,169)  (777)

    
 

   
 

LSV Receivables, net   $57,308  $92,011 
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Property and Equipment

Property and Equipment on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets consists of:
 

   2008   2007  
Buildings   $ 131,321  $ 128,296 
Equipment    63,952   62,272 
Land    9,695   9,548 
Purchased software    58,846   43,580 
Furniture and fixtures    18,141   19,603 
Leasehold improvements    5,288   6,357 
Construction in progress    3,121   451 

    
 

   
 

   290,364   270,107 
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization    (142,240)  (126,591)

    
 

   
 

Property and Equipment, net   $ 148,124  $ 143,516 

Depreciation and amortization expense related to property and equipment for 2008, 2007, and 2006 was $21,980, $19,547, and $17,032, respectively.

Other Assets

Other assets consist of long-term prepaid expenses, deposits and various other assets. Amortization expense for certain other assets for 2008, 2007, and
2006 was $340, $250 and $242, respectively.

Accrued Liabilities

Accrued Liabilities on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets consist of:
 

   2008   2007
Accrued employee compensation   $ 35,425  $ 74,509
Accrued employee benefits and other personnel    8,012   8,819
Accrued consulting, outsourcing and professional fees    15,055   19,709
Accrued distribution fees    14,228   16,040
Accrued brokerage fees    14,001   7,005
Accrued other commissions and fees    15,537   22,890
Accrued dividend payable    15,297   13,607
Other accrued liabilities    17,221   24,323

        

Accrued liabilities   $134,776  $186,902

Note 5 – Fair Value Measurements

SFAS 157 defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most
advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. SFAS 157 also establishes a
fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair
value. The standard describes three levels of inputs that may be used by the Company to measure fair value:

Level 1 – Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities without adjustment. The Company’s Level 1 assets primarily include investments
in mutual funds sponsored by SEI and LSV that are quoted daily.
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Level 2 – Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets, quoted prices in markets that are not active, or other inputs
that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities. The Company’s Level 2
assets primarily include securities issued by the Government National Mortgage Association with quoted prices that are traded less frequently than
exchange-traded instruments. The value of these assets is determined using a pricing model with inputs that are observable in the market or can be derived
principally from or corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3 – Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities. Level 3
assets and liabilities include financial instruments whose value is determined using pricing models, or similar techniques, as well as instruments for which
the determination of fair value requires significant judgment by management. The Company’s Level 3 financial assets include SIV securities (See Notes 6
and 7). The Company elected the fair value option under SFAS 159 to value these securities. The Company’s Level 3 financial liabilities include the
Capital Support Agreements which are considered derivative financial instruments (See Note 7).

The fair value of an asset or liability may include inputs from more than one level in the fair value hierarchy. The lowest level of significant inputs used to
value the asset or liability determines which level the asset or liability is classified in its entirety.

The underlying collateral of the SIV securities is mainly comprised of asset-backed securities and collateralized debt obligations. Recent liquidity issues
surrounding collateralized debt obligations and asset backed-securities has greatly affected the fair value of SIV securities. Given the lack of any reliable
market data on the SIV securities owned by the Company or held by SEI-sponsored money market funds, the fair value of these SIV securities is
determined using a net asset value approach which considers the value of the underlying collateral. The Company utilizes external pricing services that
incorporate market data, where available, or through the use of matrix pricing or other acceptable measures. The valuation methodology used by these
service providers considers various characteristics of the underlying collateral including, but not limited to, the issuer, collateral attributes, prepayment
speeds, and credit ratings. The underlying collateral that lack any market data are grouped by sector and valued using the most recent quoted price, which
may be longer than one year, and adjusting that price by the percentage change in the respective sector using relative benchmarks. Prices for the SIV
securities as well as the underlying collateral are subject to internal reviews that consider broker quotes, current market observations and other analyses to
verify the fair value. In the event a market transaction does exist, management evaluates the circumstances surrounding the transaction in order to assess if
the price used represents the fair value according to the guidance in SFAS 157. In management’s opinion, the price of SIV securities used in recent
transactions were from distressed sales and did not represent the implied fair value of the SIV securities held by the Company or by the SEI-sponsored
money market funds.

The fair value of certain financial assets and liabilities of the Company was determined using the following inputs at December 31, 2008:
 
   Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using

   Total   

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets

for Identical
Assets

(Level 1)   

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs

(Level 2)   

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3)

Assets         
Equity available-for-sale securities   $ 17,747  $ 17,747  $ —    $ —  
Fixed-income available-for-sale securities    57,633   —     57,633   —  
Trading securities issued by SIVs    5,713   —     —     5,713
Other trading securities    5,600   3,903   —     1,697

                

  $ 86,693  $ 21,650  $ 57,633  $ 7,410
Liabilities         
Capital Support Agreements   $173,983  $ —    $ —    $ 173,983

                

  $173,983  $ —    $ —    $ 173,983
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The table below presents a reconciliation for all assets and liabilities of the Company measured at fair value on a recurring basis using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3) for the period from January 1, 2008 to December 31, 2008:

 

   
Trading Securities

Issued by SIVs   
Other Trading

Securities   
Capital Support

Agreements  
Balance, January 1, 2008   $ —    $ —    $ (25,122)
Purchases, issuances and settlements, net    15,034   1,971   —   
Total gains (losses) (realized/unrealized):     
Included in earnings    (9,321)  (274)  (148,861)
Included in other comprehensive income    —     —     —   
Transfers in and out of Level 3    —     —     —   

    
 

   
 

   
 

    
Balance, December 31, 2008   $ 5,713  $ 1,697  $ (173,983)

The $9,321 loss recognized in earnings relates to the unrealized losses of securities issued by SIVs during 2008 and is reflected in Net loss from
investments on the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations (See Notes 6 and 7).

The $148,861 loss recognized in earnings relates to the change in fair value of the Capital Support Agreements during 2008 and is reflected in Net loss
from investments on the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations (See Note 7).

Note 6 – Marketable Securities and Derivative Instruments:

Investments Available For Sale

Investments available for sale of the Company’s non-broker-dealer subsidiaries classified as non-current assets consist of:
 

 

  For the Year ended December 31, 2008

  Cost   

Gross
Unrealized

Gains   

Gross
Unrealized

(Losses)   
Fair

Value
SEI-sponsored mutual funds   $18,739  $ —    $ (3,759) $14,980
Other mutual funds    3,336   —     (569)  2,767
Debt securities    55,762   1,871   —     57,633

            
 

   

  $77,837  $ 1,871  $ (4,328) $75,380

   For the Year Ended December 31, 2007

   Cost   

Gross
Unrealized

Gains   

Gross
Unrealized

(Losses)   
Fair

Value
SEI-sponsored mutual funds   $34,213  $ 306  $ (935) $33,584
LSV-sponsored mutual funds    6,781   1,608   —     8,389
Other mutual funds    4,055   62   —     4,117
Debt securities    30,823   256   —     31,079

            
 

   

  $75,872  $ 2,232  $ (935) $77,169

Net unrealized holding losses were $1,524 (net of income tax benefit of $933) at December 31, 2008. Net unrealized holding gains were $816 (net of
income tax expense of $481) at December 31, 2007. These unrealized gains and losses are reported as separate components of Accumulated other
comprehensive income on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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The Company recognized gross realized gains from available-for-sale securities of $1,806, $860 and $2,302 in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively, and
gross realized losses of $88 in 2007. There were no realized losses from available-for-sale securities in 2008 and 2006.

The Company has investments in two SEI-sponsored mutual funds which primarily invest in fixed-income securities, including debt securities issued by
municipalities and mortgage-backed securities. The market value of these investments has steadily decreased since the initial purchase in 2007. In August
2008, management concluded that the earnings potential and near term prospects of some of the issuers of the underlying securities held in the funds are
uncertain and that it was unlikely the investments will fully recover from a loss position in the foreseeable future. Due to these factors, the Company
recorded an impairment charge of $1,961 during the three months ended September 30, 2008 and classified this charge as an Other-than-temporary decline
in market value. Subsequently, the market value of these securities declined an additional $3,347 by December 31, 2008. Management did not record an
other-than-temporary impairment charge at December 31, 2008 due to its assessment of several factors including the volatility in the capital markets, the
short duration of time since the impairment charge recorded in August 2008 and the Company’s ability and intent to hold onto these securities for a
sufficient period to allow for a recovery.

In 2006, the Company wrote down an investment in an SEI-sponsored mutual fund to its fair market value since the investment had been in an unrealized
loss position for longer than one year. The write-down amounted to $1,979 and was due to a decline in the fair value which was considered to be other-
than-temporary. The write-down is included in Net loss from investments on the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations.

The Company has investments included in Other mutual funds that have been in an unrealized loss position for a period of less than one year. These mutual
funds primarily invest in a diversified mix of equity and fixed-income securities. The cost basis of these investments was $3,290 with a fair value of $2,721
and a gross unrealized loss of $569. Management did not record an other-than-temporary impairment charge at December 31, 2008 due to its assessment
regarding the correlation of the decline in market value of these investments to the recent events in the capital markets and the Company’s ability and intent
to hold onto these securities for a sufficient duration to allow for a recovery.

Derivatives held by the Company were in the form of equity contracts for the purpose of hedging market risk of certain available for sale securities and
held only for the purpose of hedging such risk and not for speculation. The Company no longer owns any derivative financial instruments to hedge market
risk of available for sale securities. Net loss from investments on the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations includes net gains (losses) of
$676, $(1,089) and $(1,521) in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively, from changes in the fair value of derivative instruments.

The Company’s debt securities are issued by the Government National Mortgage Association and are backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S.
government. These securities were purchased to satisfy applicable regulatory requirements of SPTC and have maturity dates which range from 2033 to
2037.

Trading Securities

Trading securities of the Company consist of:
 

 

  For the Year ended December 31, 2008

  Cost   

Gross
Unrealized

Gains   

Gross
Unrealized

(Losses)   
Fair

Value
SIV securities   $15,034  $ —    $ (9,321) $ 5,713
LSV-sponsored mutual funds    4,000   —     (97)  3,903
Other securities    1,971   —     (274)  1,697

            
 

   

  $21,005  $ —    $ (9,692) $11,313

The Company has elected the fair value option under SFAS 159 for all of its trading securities and the amount on the accompanying Consolidated Balance
Sheet represents the fair value of all trading securities. Unrealized gains and losses from the change in fair value of these securities are recognized in Net
loss from investments on the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations.
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SIV securities relates to the Gryphon Notes purchased by the Company from the SEI Daily Income Trust Money Market Fund in September 2008. The
cash purchase price was $15,321 and the Company has since received cash distributions from these notes totaling $287 (See Note 7).

The Company has an investment related to the startup of a mutual fund sponsored by LSV. This is a U.S. dollar denominated fund that invests primarily in
securities of Canadian and Australian companies as well as various other global securities. The underlying securities held by the fund are translated into
U.S. dollars within the fund. The Company has purchased equity and currency futures contracts as part of an economic hedging strategy to minimize its
exposure to price and currency risk inherent with this investment. The equity futures contracts had a notional value of $4,054 and are expected to hedge the
price risk associated with movements of certain Canadian, Australian and global indices. The Company also purchased currency futures contracts with a
notional value of $2,715 that are expected to hedge the currency risk associated with movements of the U.S. dollar against the Canadian and Australian
dollars since the underlying securities of the fund are predominately denominated in those currencies. The fair value of the futures contracts are netted
against the fair value of the investment in the LSV-sponsored fund.

Securities Owned

At December 31, 2007, the Company’s broker-dealer subsidiary, SIDCO, had investments in U.S. Treasury securities reflected as Securities owned on the
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. Due to specialized accounting practices applicable to investments by broker-dealers, the securities are
reported at fair value and changes in fair value are recorded in current period earnings. Net loss from investments on the accompanying Consolidated
Statements of Operations includes net gains of $503 and $362 in 2007 and 2006, respectively, from changes in the fair value of the securities. The fair
value of the securities was $16,777 at December 31, 2007. All Securities owned at December 31, 2007 matured in 2008.

Note 7 – Capital Support Agreements:

In 2007, the Company entered into Capital Support Agreements with the SEI Daily Income Trust Prime Obligation Fund (the SDIT PO Fund), the SEI
Daily Income Trust Money Market Fund (the SDIT MM Fund), and the SEI Liquid Asset Trust Prime Obligation Fund (each a Fund or, together, the
Funds). The Company is the advisor to the Funds. The sub-advisor to the Funds is Columbia Management, which is the primary investment management
division of Bank of America Corporation. Various clients of the Company are investors in the Funds. SDIT PO Fund is rated AAA and Aaa by Standards &
Poor’s Corporation (S&P) and Moody’s Investor Services Inc. (Moody’s), respectively, and the SDIT MM Fund is rated Aaa by Moody’s. The SLAT PO
Fund is not rated by S&P or Moody’s.

Among other money market instruments, the Funds hold senior notes issued by SIVs. SIVs issue commercial paper and other debt securities and use the
proceeds to purchase bonds and other long-term debt instruments that are used to collateralize the obligations of the vehicle. The senior notes are
collateralized by residential mortgage-backed securities, commercial mortgage-backed securities, corporate collateralized debt obligations and
collateralized debt obligations of asset-backed securities. Some of the SIVs ceased making payments on their outstanding notes on the scheduled maturity
dates.

In October 2007, S&P stated that it would place any mutual fund that had an AAA rating and owned certain SIVs on credit watch with negative
implications unless the fund was provided credit support having an A-1 short-term rating by S&P. Although the Company was not obligated to provide the
credit support required by S&P, in order to avoid a credit watch by S&P on the SDIT PO Fund, and to address the needs of our customers who require an
S&P AAA rating of the SDIT PO Fund, the Company entered into the Capital Support Agreements to satisfy S&P’s requirement. The Company entered
into similar agreements with the SDIT MM and SLAT PO Funds.

Since the time the Company entered into the Capital Support Agreements in late 2007, significant illiquidity issues in the credit markets persisted causing
the market values of the collateral underlying the SIV securities to decline. This triggered ratings downgrades on the SIV securities from the principal
rating agencies which required the Company to post additional capital support to the SDIT PO Fund in order for it to maintain its AAA rating by S&P. In
late 2008, the Company amended the Capital Support Agreements with the SDIT PO Fund and the SLAT PO Fund. The Company also amended its credit
facility to increase the aggregate amount available for borrowings up to $300.0 million (See Note 8).

On September 30, 2008, the Company purchased the Gryphon (formerly Cheyne) notes directly from the SDIT MM Fund. The Gryphon notes represented
the last remaining SIV securities held by the Fund. The cash purchase price paid to the Fund of $15,321 was equal to the amortized cost of the Gryphon
notes. As
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of December 31, 2008, the fair value of the Gryphon notes was $5,713. The total loss recognized by the Company through December 31, 2008 was $9,321.
The Gryphon notes were received by the SDIT MM Fund in exchange for the Cheyne notes through a restructuring in July 2008. The Company has
received cash distributions on the Gryphon notes since its purchase of the notes in September 2008. The Company’s Capital Support Agreement with the
SDIT MM fund was allowed to lapse after the purchase of the Gryphon Notes.

On November 5, 2008, the Company amended the Capital Support Agreement that was entered into on November 8, 2007 with the SDIT PO Fund. The
Amended and Restated Capital Support Agreement (the SDIT PO Amended Agreement) requires the Company to provide additional support to the Fund.
The SDIT PO Amended Agreement provides that if the Fund realizes payments or sales proceeds from the ultimate disposition of any of the specified SIV
securities which are less than its amortized cost, the Company will be required to provide capital to the Fund equal to the amount by which the amortized
cost of the specified SIV security exceeds the amount realized from the sale or other disposition of the SIV securities. Also, the Company must maintain
collateral in the form of a letter of credit and/or a segregated cash account equal to the difference between the amortized cost value and the market value of
the specified SIV securities plus an amount equal to ten percent of the market value of the specified SIV securities. The SDIT PO Amended Agreement is
scheduled to expire on November 6, 2009.

On November 28, 2008, the Company amended the Capital Support Agreement that was entered into on December 3, 2007 with the SLAT PO Fund. The
Amended and Restated Capital Support Agreement (the SLAT PO Amended Agreement) requires the Company to commit capital to the Fund subject to an
aggregate limit of $30.0 million if the Fund realizes payments or sales proceeds from the ultimate disposition of any specified SIV securities held by the
Fund which are less than the amortized cost of the specified SIV securities. Upon the sale or other disposition of the SIV securities, the amount of required
capital commitment would be the least of the following amounts: (i) the amount, if any, by which the amortized cost of the SIV securities exceeds the
amount realized from the sale or other disposition of the SIV securities; (ii) the amount, if any, necessary to restore the net asset value per share of the Fund
to $0.9950, or (iii) the remaining amount of the aggregate limit of the Capital Support Agreement applicable to the Fund, taking into account all prior
contributions. Under the SLAT PO Amended Agreement, the Company must maintain collateral in the form of a letter of credit and/or segregated cash
account equal to the aggregate limit of committed capital. The SLAT PO Amended Agreement is also scheduled to expire on November 6, 2009.

In the event the Company is required to commit capital to either Fund, the Company will not receive any consideration from the Fund, in the form of shares
of the Fund or any other form, for the contributed capital. If the fair value of the SIV securities is less than its amortized cost (and in the case of the SLAT
PO Fund, the aggregate net asset value of the SLAT PO Fund is less than $0.9950), then, even though the loss has not been realized through the sale or
other disposition of the SIV securities, the Company will be obligated to commit the required amount of capital for the amount that the fair value of the
SIV securities are less than its amortized cost (or in the case of the SLAT PO Fund, the net asset value is at least $.9950). However, in this case, the
Company would not be required to pay the capital contribution to the Funds.

The following table summarizes our obligations from the Amended Capital Support Agreements as of December 31, 2008.
 
         For the Year 2008   Cumulative

   
Par Value of

Securities   
Support
Amount   

Gross
Charge   

After-Tax
Charge   

Gross
Charge   

After-Tax
Charge

Capital Support Agreement (1)   $ 257,737  $ 257,737  $ 121,885  $ 75,447  $ 147,007  $ 90,997
Capital Support Agreement (2)    68,109   30,000   26,976   16,698   26,976   16,698

                        

Total   $ 325,846  $ 287,737  $ 148,861  $ 92,145  $ 173,983  $ 107,695
 

(1) Pertains to SDIT PO Fund
 

(2) Pertains to SLAT PO Fund

As of December 31, 2008, the amount of the Company’s obligation to commit capital to the Funds was $173,983, but this amount was not required to be
paid since the Funds did not realize any loss from the sale of the SIV securities. The amount of the Company’s obligations regarding the Amended Capital
Support Agreements is reflected in Net loss from investments on the Consolidated Statements of Operations.
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The obligations under the Amended Capital Support Agreements are secured by letters of credit of a third party bank rated A-1 by S&P. The letters of
credit were issued under the Company’s existing credit facility that provides for borrowings up to $300,000 (See Note 8).

All SIV securities that remain on the books of the two Funds covered by the Amended Capital Support Agreements are in technical default. The Funds
currently hold five SIV securities, three of which have already restructured. Gryphon is the largest SIV holding. The next largest SIV security held by the
Funds is Stanfield Victoria. Stanfield Victoria is currently in receivership. The ultimate outcome of the restructuring is currently unknown. According to the
terms of the Amended Capital Support Agreements, the Company is required to purchase any SIV securities held by the Funds which have not completed
restructuring by April 1, 2009.

The Amended Capital Support Agreements are considered derivative contracts in accordance with applicable accounting guidance and are categorized as
Level 3 liabilities as specified by SFAS 157 (see Note 5). These Level 3 liabilities comprise 53 percent of the Company’s total current liabilities at
December 31, 2008. The fair value of the derivative contracts approximates the value of the Company’s actual obligation at December 31, 2008. The value
of the Amended Capital Support Agreements will be determined at least quarterly. In the event payments are not required to be paid to the Funds, such
expense may be reversed in a subsequent period.

As of February 20, 2009, the amount which would be accrued for the Company’s contribution obligations under the Amended Capital Support Agreements
was $178,309. Based upon this valuation and assuming no other changes in the portfolio assets through March 31, 2009, an additional non-cash expense of
$4,326 would be recorded in the three months ended March 31, 2009.

The Company’s future obligation under the Amended Capital Support Agreements is affected by a number of factors including, but not limited to,
prevailing conditions in the credit markets as they impact the value of the SIV securities owned by the Funds, the creditworthiness of the SIV securities and
the overall asset level of the SLAT PO Fund,. A change in the net asset value of the SLAT PO Fund is dependent upon net investments or redemptions in
the Fund and the net asset value of the portfolio assets of the Funds. Changes in these amounts, including changes in portfolio assets resulting from mark-
to-market adjustments, will affect the per share net asset value of the Funds. The fair market value of the SIV securities is derived from current market
prices or, in the event no market price exists, from external valuation sources (See Note 5).

Note 8 - Lines of Credit:

On July 25, 2007 (the Closing Date), the Company entered into a five-year $200,000 Credit Agreement (the Credit Facility). The Credit Facility became
available on the Closing Date and terminates in July 2012. At termination, any aggregate principal amount of loans outstanding under the Credit Facility
becomes payable in full. Any borrowings made under the Credit Facility will accrue interest at 0.45 percent above the London Interbank Offer Rate
(“LIBOR”). There is also a commitment fee equal to 0.09 percent per annum on the daily unused portion of the facility. The Credit Facility contains
various covenants, none of which negatively affect the Company’s liquidity or capital resources. Both the interest rate and commitment fee prices may
increase if the Company’s leverage ratio reaches certain levels.

The Credit Facility was amended several times throughout 2008. The primary changes to the Credit Facility included: 1) an increase of $100.0 million in
the total aggregate borrowing amount to $300.0 million with an option for an additional increase of $100.0 million to $400.0 million under certain
conditions; 2) an allowance for the incurrence of the contingent obligation represented by the Amended Capital Support Agreements (See Note 7); 3) the
exclusion of purchases of SIV securities held by SDIT PO and SLAT PO of up to $346.0 million and purchases of GNMA securities to satisfy applicable
regulatory requirements of SPTC, the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, of up to $100.0 million from the calculation of certain investments; and 4) an
increase in the allowable leverage ratio for the additional contingent obligations required under the Amended Capital Support Agreements. The availability
of the Credit Facility is subject to compliance with certain covenants set forth in the agreement.

As of December 31, 2008, the Company’s ability to borrow from the Credit Facility is not limited by any covenant of the agreement. In management’s
opinion, the leverage ratio is the most restrictive of all of the covenants contained in the Credit Facility. The leverage ratio is calculated as consolidated
indebtedness
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divided by earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization and other items as defined by the covenant during the last four quarters (EBITDA).
The amount of consolidated indebtedness according to the terms of the covenant includes the capital commitment under the Amended Capital Support
Agreements and the outstanding debt of LSV Employee Group. The Company must maintain at all times prior to and including September 30, 2009, a ratio
of consolidated indebtedness of not more than 2.25 times the amount of EBITDA, at all times from October 1, 2009 through and including December 31,
2009, not more than 2.00 times EBITDA, and at all times thereafter, not more than 1.75 times EBITDA. As of December 31, 2008, the Company’s leverage
ratio is 1.10 times EBITDA.

Through the Credit Facility, the Company issued letters of credit of a third party bank to secure the existing obligations of the Company under the
Amended Capital Support Agreements. As of December 31, 2008, the Company has a total of $190,000 in outstanding letters of credit. The letters of credit
have a term of one year and contain a fronting fee of 0.125 percent per annum on the face amount of each letter of credit which is payable quarterly in
arrears. In addition, a participation fee ranging from 0.45 percent to 0.75 percent, depending upon the Company’s leverage ratio, is payable quarterly in
arrears on the face amount of each letter of credit. The participation fee may increase if the Company’s leverage ratio reaches certain levels. As the letters
of credit remain outstanding, the amount available under the Credit Facility will be reduced by the face amount of the letters of credit. Therefore, as of
December 31, 2008, $190,000 of the Credit Facility was committed and only the remaining $110,000 was unrestricted and available for other purposes as
determined by the Company.

In January 2009, the Company issued letters of credit of a third party bank for $5,000 with a term of one year. As of February 20, 2009, $195,000 of the
Credit Facility is committed and only the remaining $105,000 is unrestricted and may be used for other purposes as determined by the Company.

The Company had no borrowings under the Credit Facility and was in compliance with all covenants during 2008. The Company incurred $1,019, $350,
and $306 in commitment fees relating to all lines of credit during 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively, and is reflected in Interest expense on the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations.

The Company’s Canadian subsidiary has a credit facility agreement (the Canadian Credit Facility) for the purpose of facilitating the settlement of mutual
fund transactions. The Canadian Credit Facility has no stated expiration date. The amount of the facility is generally limited to $2,000 Canadian dollars or
the equivalent amount in U.S. dollars. The Canadian Credit Facility does not contain any covenants which restrict the liquidity or capital resources of the
Company. The Company had no borrowings under the Canadian Credit Facility at December 31, 2008. The Company was in compliance with all covenants
since the inception of the agreement through December 31, 2008.

Note 9 - Long-term Debt:

In February 1997, the Company signed a Note Purchase Agreement authorizing the issuance and sale of $20,000 7.20 percent Senior Notes, Series A, and
$15,000 7.27 percent Senior Notes, Series B (collectively, the Notes), in a private offering with certain financial institutions. The Note Purchase
Agreement, which was subsequently amended, contains various covenants. Principal payments on the Notes are made annually from the date of issuance
while interest payments are made semi-annually. The Company made its scheduled payment of $4,000 in February 2007 which included the final payment
for the Series A Senior Notes. In August 2007, the Company made a voluntary principal pre-payment of $5,000 and a make-whole payment of $293 for the
Series B Notes. With these payments, all amounts outstanding relating to the Notes were extinguished.

Interest expense relating to the Notes was $512 and $725 for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Long-term debt as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets consists entirely of the borrowings of LSV
Employee Group (See Note 2).
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Note 10 - Shareholders’ Equity:

Stock-Based Compensation

On April 3, 2007, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the 2007 Equity Compensation Plan (the 2007 Plan), which was also approved by the
shareholders of the Company on May 23, 2007. The 2007 Plan became effective June 1, 2007 and provides for the grant of incentive stock options, non-
qualified stock options and stock appreciation rights of up to 20 million shares of common stock of the Company, subject to adjustment for stock splits,
reclassifications, mergers and other events. Permitted grantees under the 2007 Plan include employees, non-employee directors and consultants who
perform services for the Company. The plan is administered by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company. There were no
grants of incentive stock options or stock appreciation rights made under the 2007 Plan.

Effective June 1, 2007, the Company’s 1998 Equity Compensation Plan (the 1998 Plan) was terminated as a result of the approval of the 2007 Plan. No
options are available for grant under the 1998 Plan and any grants outstanding under the 1998 Plan continue in effect under the terms of the grant and the
applicable plan. All of the Company’s equity compensation plans are administered by the Company’s Compensation Committee.

All outstanding stock options have performance based vesting provisions that tie the vesting of stock options to the Company’s financial performance. The
Company’s stock options vest at a rate of 50 percent when a specified diluted earning per share target is achieved, and the remaining 50 percent when a
second, higher specified diluted earnings per share target is achieved. Stock options granted prior to 2006 fully vest after seven years from the date of grant.
Beginning in 2006, the seven year vesting trigger was eliminated and, as a result, options do not vest due to the passage of time but solely as a result of
achievement of the financial vesting targets. Earnings per share targets are calculated exclusive of stock-based compensation expense, net of tax. The
diluted earnings per share targets are established at time of grant and are measured annually on December 31. The amount of stock-based compensation
expense is based upon management’s estimate of when the earnings per share targets may be achieved. If management’s estimate of the attainment of the
earnings per share targets proves to be inaccurate, the remaining amount of stock-based compensation expense could be accelerated, spread out over a
longer period, or reversed. This may cause volatility in the recognition of stock-based compensation expense in future periods and could materially affect
the Company’s net income and net income per share.

The Company uses the Black-Scholes option pricing model to determine the fair value of stock options. The determination of the fair value of stock options
on the date of grant using an option-pricing model is affected by the price of the Company’s common stock as well as other variables. These variables
include expected stock price volatility over the term of the awards, actual and projected employee stock exercise behaviors, risk-free interest rate and
expected dividends. The Company primarily uses historical data to estimate the variables used in the option-pricing model except expected volatility. The
Company uses a combination of historical and implied volatility in accordance with Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107, “Share-Based Payment.” SFAS
123(R) also requires the Company to estimate forfeitures at the time of grant and revise those estimates in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ
from those estimates. The Company uses historical data to estimate pre-vesting forfeitures and record stock-based compensation expense only for those
awards that are expected to vest. Stock-based compensation is amortized over the requisite service periods of the awards, which are generally the vesting
periods. The amount of stock-based compensation expense that is recognized in a given period is dependent upon management’s estimate of when the
earnings per share targets are expected to be achieved. If this estimate proves to be inaccurate, the remaining amount of stock-based compensation expense
could be accelerated, spread out over a longer period, or reversed.

The weighted average fair value of the Company’s stock options granted during 2008, 2007 and 2006 were $7.35, $14.75 and $12.30, respectively, using
the following assumptions:

 
   2008   2007   2006  
Expected term (in years)   7.28  7.62  7.20 
Expected volatility   52.66% 36.79% 31.67%
Expected dividend yield   1.02% 0.43% 0.41%
Risk-free interest rate   2.27% 4.11% 4.64%
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The Company recognized stock-based compensation expense in its Consolidated Financial Statements in 2008, 2007 and 2006 as follows:
 
   2008   2007   2006  
Stock-based compensation expense   $16,010  $28,195  $24,811 
Less: Deferred tax benefit    (4,972)  (9,026)  (8,107)

    
 

   
 

   
 

Stock-based compensation expense, net of tax   $11,038  $19,169  $16,704 
Basic earnings per share   $ .06  $ .10  $ .08 
Diluted earnings per share   $ .06  $ .09  $ .08 

The Company reduced the amount of stock-based compensation expense recognized in 2008 by $6,023 due to a change in management’s estimate of when
certain vesting targets are expected to be achieved.

The Company accelerated the recognition of $1,740 and $9,024 in stock-based compensation expense in 2007 and 2006, respectively, due to changes in
management’s estimate of when certain vesting targets were expected to be achieved.

As of December 31, 2008, there was approximately $75,076 of unrecognized compensation cost remaining, adjusted for estimated forfeitures, related to
unvested employee stock options. The Company estimates that compensation cost will be recognized according to the following schedule:

 

Period

  Stock-Based
Compensation

Expense
  
  

2009   $ 20,478
2010    19,153
2011    11,613
2012    11,432
2013    5,106
2014    2,861
2015    2,861
2016    1,572

    

  $ 75,076
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This table presents certain information relating to the Company’s stock option plans for 2008, 2007, and 2006:
 

   Number of
Shares  

 Weighted
Avg. Price     

Balance as of December 31, 2005   32,556,000  $ 14.96
Granted   3,574,000   29.46
Exercised   (5,310,000)  7.94
Expired or canceled   (1,506,000)  17.88

   
 

 

Balance as of December 31, 2006   29,314,000  $ 17.85
Granted   2,753,000   32.43
Exercised   (3,513,000)  11.79
Expired or canceled   (787,000)  19.35

   
 

 

Balance as of December 31, 2007   27,767,000  $ 20.02
Granted   4,539,000   14.65
Exercised   (2,454,000)  10.44
Expired or canceled   (969,000)  22.92

   
 

 

Balance as of December 31, 2008   28,883,000  $ 19.90
Exercisable as of December 31, 2008   13,245,000  $ 18.41
Available for future grant as of December 31, 2008   12,943,000   —  

As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, there were 13,245,000 and 15,779,000 shares exercisable, respectively. The expiration dates for options outstanding at
December 31, 2008 range from February 9, 2009 to December 16, 2018 with a weighted average remaining contractual life of 6.2 years.

Upon exercise of stock options, the Company will issue new shares of its common shares. The Company does not hold any shares in treasury. The total
intrinsic value of options exercised during 2008 and 2007 was $24,515 and $71,604, respectively. The total options outstanding and exercisable as of
December 31, 2008 had no intrinsic value due to the fact that the weighted average exercise price exceeded the market value of the Company’s common
stock. The total intrinsic value for options outstanding and options exercisable is calculated as the difference between the market value of the Company’s
common stock as of December 31, 2008 and the exercise price of the shares. The market value of the Company’s common stock as of December 31, 2008
was $15.71 as reported by the Nasdaq Stock Market, LLC. The Company estimates that approximately 1,615,000 shares outstanding and unvested with an
intrinsic value of $1,615 at December 31, 2008 will vest in 2009. Also, there are approximately 1,739,000 shares exercisable with an intrinsic value of
$10,262 that will expire by December 31, 2009.
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This table summarizes information relating to all options outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2008:
 

   
Options Outstanding
at December 31, 2008   

Options Exercisable
at December 31, 2008

Range of
Exercise
Prices

(Per Share)

  

Number
of

Shares

  Weighted
Average
Exercise

Price
(Per Share)

  Weighted
Average

Remaining
Contractual

Life
(Years)

  

Number
Of

Shares

  Weighted
Average
Exercise

Price
(Per Share)

  Weighted
Average

Remaining
Contractual

Life
(Years)

            

            

            
$7.57 -$14.62   6,369,000  $ 13.23  7.42   1,833,000  $ 9.81  1.08
14.71 – 14.78   6,151,000   14.75  4.52   2,832,000   14.75  4.53
15.01 - 21.43   5,899,000   19.55  5.60   3,881,000   19.95  4.95
21.55 - 28.09   4,772,000   22.72  4.78   4,699,000   22.70  4.72
29.61 - 32.49   5,692,000   30.90  8.46   —     —    —  

              

  28,883,000      13,245,000    

The Company has elected the “short-cut” method to calculate the historical pool of windfall tax benefits as permitted by FASB Staff Position No. FAS
123(R)-3, “Transition Election Related to Accounting for the Tax Effects of Share-Based Payment Awards.” As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, there was
$133,836 and $126,364, respectively, available in the pool of windfall tax benefits.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company has an employee stock purchase plan that provides for offerings of common stock to eligible employees at a price equal to 85 percent of the
fair market value of the stock at the end of the stock purchase period, as defined. The Company has reserved 15,600,000 shares for issuance under this plan.
At December 31, 2008, 11,094,000 cumulative shares have been issued. Costs incurred by the Company related to the employee stock purchase plan were
immaterial in 2008, 2007and 2006.

Common Stock Buyback

The Board of Directors has authorized the purchase of the Company’s common stock on the open market or through private transactions of up to an
aggregate of $1,528,365. Through December 31, 2008, a total of 254,801,480 shares at an aggregate cost of $1,445,829 have been purchased and retired.
The Company purchased 5,777,645 shares at a cost of $129,634 during 2008.

The Company immediately retires its common stock when purchased. Upon retirement, the Company reduces Capital in excess of par value for the average
capital per share outstanding and the remainder is charged against Retained earnings. If the Company reduces its Retained earnings to zero, any subsequent
purchases of common stock will be charged entirely to Capital in excess of par value.

Rights Agreement

On December 16, 2008, the Company’s Board of Directors declared a dividend distribution pursuant to a Rights Agreement (the Rights Agreement) which
became effective on January 6, 2009. The purpose of the Rights Agreement is to deter coercive or unfair takeover tactics and to prevent a person or group
(an Acquiring Person) from acquiring control of the Company without offering a fair price to all shareholders. Under the Rights Agreement, all common
shareholders receive one Right for each common share outstanding. Each Right entitles the registered holder to purchase from the Company a unit
consisting of one twenty-thousandths of a share of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Shares, $.05 par value per share, or a combination of securities
and assets of equivalent value, at a purchase price of $150.00 per unit, subject to adjustment. The Rights will become exercisable and trade separately from
the common stock ten days following a public announcement that an Acquiring Person has beneficial ownership of more than 20 percent of the outstanding
common stock of the Company or the commencement of a tender or exchange offer that would result in an Acquiring Person owning 20 percent or more of
the outstanding common stock of the Company. Upon exercise, holders, other than an Acquiring Person, will have the right to purchase the common stock
of the Company equal to twice the value of the exercise price of the Rights. In lieu of requiring payment of the purchase price upon exercise of the Rights
following certain events, the Company may permit the holders simply to surrender the Rights, in which
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event they will be entitled to receive common shares and other property, as the case may be, with a value of 50 percent of what could be purchased by
payment of the full purchase price. The Rights, which do not have voting rights, will expire on January 6, 2019, and may be redeemed by the Company any
time until ten days following the announcement of an Acquiring Person at a price of $.01 per Right.

Stock Dividend

On May 23, 2007, the Board of Directors approved a two-for-one stock split of the Company’s $.01 par value common stock, effected in the form of a
stock dividend which was paid on June 21, 2007 to shareholders of record on June 11, 2007. The Company issued 98,155 shares of common stock as a
result of the stock dividend. The par value of the stock remained unchanged. Accordingly, a total of $982 was reclassified from Retained earnings to
Common stock. All per-share amounts have been adjusted to reflect the stock dividend.

Cash Dividends

On May 20, 2008, the Board of Directors declared a cash dividend of $.08 per share on the Company’s common stock, which was paid on June 20, 2008, to
shareholders of record on June 17, 2008. On December 16, 2008, the Board of Directors declared a cash dividend of $.08 per share on the Company’s
common stock, which was paid on January 22, 2009, to shareholders of record on January 6, 2009.

The cash dividends declared in 2008, 2007, and 2006 were $30,636, $27,409, and $23,726, respectively. The Board of Directors has indicated its intention
to declare future cash dividends on a semiannual basis.

Note 11 - Employee Benefit Plan:

The Company has a tax-qualified defined contribution plan (the Plan). The Plan provides retirement benefits, including provisions for early retirement and
disability benefits, as well as a tax-deferred savings feature. After satisfying certain requirements, participants are vested in employer contributions at the
time the contributions are made. All Company contributions are discretionary and are made from available profits. The Company contributed $4,844,
$4,574, and $4,164 to the Plan in 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively.

Note 12 - Commitments and Contingencies:

The Company leases certain of its facilities, data processing equipment, and software under non-cancelable operating leases, some which contain escalation
clauses for increased taxes and operating expenses. The Company has entered into maintenance agreements primarily for its data processing equipment.
Rent expense was $21,535, $20,757, and $17,977 in 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively.

The aggregate noncancellable minimum commitments at December 31, 2008, other than those related to the lines of credit and long-term debt, are:
 

2009   $11,778
2010    7,981
2011    4,303
2012    2,441
2013 and thereafter    11,750

    

  $38,253

In November 2008, the Company amended the Capital Support Agreements with the SDIT PO Fund and the SLAT PO Fund. These amended agreements
provide that if either of the Funds realize payments or sales proceeds from the ultimate disposition of specified SIV securities which are less than its
amortized cost, the Company will be required to provide capital to the Fund equal to the amount by which the amortized cost of the specified SIV security
exceeds the amount realized from the sale or other disposition of the SIV securities (See Note 7).

In the ordinary course of business, the Company from time to time enters into contracts containing indemnification obligations of the Company. These
obligations may require the Company to make payments to another party upon the occurrence of certain events including the failure by the Company to
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meet its performance obligations under the contract. These contractual indemnification provisions are often standard contractual terms of the nature
customarily found in the type of contracts entered into by the Company. In many cases, there are no stated or notional amounts included in the
indemnification provisions. There are no amounts reflected on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 related to these
indemnifications.

In the normal course of business, the Company is party to various claims and legal proceedings. On September 30, 2004, SIDCO was named as a defendant
in a putative consolidated amended class action complaint filed in the United States District Court for the District of Maryland titled “Stephen Carey v.
Pilgrim Baxter & Associates, LTD, et. al.” This complaint was purportedly made on behalf of all persons that purchased or held PBHG mutual funds during
the period from November 1, 1998 to November 13, 2003 and related generally to various market timing practices allegedly permitted by the PBHG
Funds. The complaint alleged that SIDCO was the named distributor/underwriter from November 1998 until July 2001 for various PBHG funds in which
market timing allegedly occurred during that period. In 2006, the plaintiffs submitted a proposed form of order dismissing SIDCO from the action, but the
Court has not yet acted on the proposed order. The Company had not made any provision relating to this legal proceeding.

Note 13 - Income Taxes:

The federal and state and foreign income tax provision is summarized as follows:
 
Year Ended December 31,   2008   2007   2006  
Current     

Federal   $104,984  $129,790  $ 97,832 
State    9,023   10,377   7,068 
Foreign    6,440   9,144   4,346 

    
 

   
 

   
 

   120,447   149,311   109,246 
    

 
   

 
   

 

Deferred, including current deferred     
Federal    (37,180)  (2,622)  12,767 
State    2,453   3,042   (247)

    
 

   
 

   
 

   (34,727)  420   12,520 
    

 
   

 
   

 

Total income taxes   $ 85,720  $149,731  $121,766 

Annual tax provisions include amounts considered sufficient to pay assessments that may result from examination of prior year tax returns; however, the
amount ultimately paid upon resolution of issues raised may differ materially from the amount accrued. The examination and the resolution process may
last longer than one year.

The effective income tax rate differs from the federal income tax statutory rate due to the following:
 
Year Ended December 31,   2008    2007    2006  
Statutory rate   35.0%  35.0%  35.0%
State taxes, net of Federal tax benefit   3.3   2.1   1.5 
Foreign tax expense and tax rate differential   0.7   (0.3)   0.1 
Research and development tax credit   (1.3)   (0.8)   (0.9)
Valuation allowance on capital losses, PA loss carryforwards and other, net   (0.2)   0.1   (1.6)
Other, net   0.6   0.5   (0.2)

   
 

   
 

   
 

  38.1%  36.6%  33.9%

Undistributed earnings of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries amounted to approximately $53,119 at December 31, 2008. Those earnings are considered to
be indefinitely reinvested and, accordingly, no U.S. federal and state income taxes have been provided thereon. Upon distribution of those earnings, in the
form of dividends or otherwise, the Company would be subject to both U.S. income taxes, subject to
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an adjustment for foreign tax credits, and withholding taxes payable to the various foreign countries. Determination of the amount of unrecognized deferred
U.S. income tax liability is not practicable because of the complexities associated with its hypothetical calculation, including the availability, or lack
thereof, of foreign tax credits to reduce a portion of the U.S. liability.

Deferred income taxes for 2008, 2007, and 2006 reflect the impact of temporary differences between the amount of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and such amounts as measured by tax laws and regulations. Principal items comprising the deferred income tax provision are:

 
Year Ended December 31,   2008   2007   2006  
Difference in financial reporting and income tax depreciation methods   $ 2,792  $ —    $ (562)
Reserves not currently deductible    2,800   536   989 
Reserves for Capital Support Agreements    (49,792)  (8,746)  —   
Capitalized software currently deductible for tax purposes, net of amortization    12,220   18,056   22,170 
State deferred income taxes    1,595   1,978   (161)
Revenue and expense recognized in different periods for financial reporting and income tax purposes    1,599   (309)  (276)
Stock-based compensation expense    (4,567)  (8,640)  (8,518)
Other, net    (1,374)  (2,455)  (1,122)

    
 

   
 

   
 

  $(34,727) $ 420  $12,520 

The net deferred income tax liability is comprised of:
 

Year Ended December 31,   2008   2007  
Current deferred income taxes:    

Gross assets   $ 92,369  $ 17,310 
Gross liabilities    —     —   

    
 

   
 

   92,369   17,310 
     

 

Valuation allowance    (7,539)  —   
    

 
   

 

   84,830   17,310 
    

 
   

 

Long-term deferred income taxes:    
Gross assets    11,545   50,852 
Gross liabilities    (109,734)  (111,137)

    
 

   
 

   (98,189)  (60,285)
Valuation allowance    (6,359)  (13,315)

    
 

   
 

   (104,548)  (73,600)
    

 
   

 

Net deferred income tax liability   $ (19,718) $ (56,290)

The valuation allowances against deferred tax assets at December 31, 2008 and 2007 are related to state net operating losses from certain domestic
subsidiaries. Certain state tax statutes significantly limit the utilization of net operating losses for domestic subsidiaries. Furthermore, these net operating
losses cannot be used to offset the net income of other subsidiaries. As of December 31, 2007, the Company had capital loss carryforward in the amount of
$8,101 of which $1,413 was scheduled to expire at December 31, 2008 and the remaining $6,688 will expire in 2012. During 2008, the Company utilized
$795 of the capital loss carryforward which expired on December 31, 2008. Management will employ tax planning strategies to utilize the remaining
capital loss carryforward expiring in 2012.
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The tax effect of significant temporary differences representing deferred tax assets (liabilities) is:
 

Year Ended December 31,   2008   2007  
Difference in financial reporting and income tax depreciation methods   $ (11,722) $ (8,276)
Reserves not currently deductible    1,784   1,532 
Reserves for Capital Support Agreements    72,884   9,060 
Valuation allowance on SIV-related deferred tax asset    (7,539)  —   
Capitalized software currently deductible for tax purposes, net of amortization    (117,753)  (102,885)
State deferred income taxes    3,257   2,765 
Revenue and expense recognized in different periods for financial reporting and income tax purposes    1,668   3,155 
Unrealized holding loss (gain) on investments    934   (481)
Stock-based compensation expense    26,112   20,952 
State net operating loss carryforward    11,545   19,281 
Valuation allowance on deferred tax assets    (6,359)  (8,432)
Federal benefit of state tax deduction for uncertain tax positions    2,720   2,475 
Capital loss, net of valuation allowance    2,400   1,536 
Foreign tax credit    —     7,317 
Valuation allowance on foreign tax credit    —     (4,884)
Other, net    351   595 

    
 

   
 

Net deferred income tax liability   $ (19,718) $ (56,290)

The Company recognizes tax liabilities in accordance with FIN 48 and adjusts these liabilities when management’s judgment changes as a result of the
evaluation of new information not previously available. Due to the complexity of some of these uncertainties, the ultimate resolution may result in a
payment that is materially different than from our current estimate of the tax liabilities. The Company’s total unrecognized tax benefit, not including
interest and penalties, as of December 31, 2008 was $13,453, of which $13,071 would affect the effective tax rate if the Company were to recognize the tax
benefit. The amount of gross FIN 48 liability of $11,723 which is expected to be paid within one year is included in Current liabilities while the remaining
amount of $4,067 is included in Other long-term liabilities on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. During the year ended December 31, 2008,
the Company has not recognized any material increase or decrease in the tax liability for unrecognized tax benefits as a result of the implementation of FIN
48.

The Company files a consolidated federal income tax return and separate income tax returns with various states. Certain subsidiaries of the Company file
tax returns in foreign jurisdictions. The Company is no longer subject to U.S. federal income tax examination for years before 2008 and is no longer subject
to state, local or foreign income tax examinations by authorities for years before 2000.
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefit is as follows:
 

   2008   2007  
Balance as of January 1   $13,329  $11,275 
Tax positions related to current year:    

Gross additions    1,288   2,463 
Gross reductions    —     —   

    
 

   
 

   1,288   2,463 
Tax positions related to prior years:    

Gross additions    468   651 
Gross reductions    (273)  (251)

    
 

   
 

   195   400 
Settlements    —     —   
Lapses on statute of limitations    (1,359)  (809)

    
 

   
 

Balance as of December 31   $13,453  $13,329 

The above reconciliation of the gross unrecognized tax benefit will differ from the amount which would affect the effective tax rate because of the
recognition of the federal and state tax benefits.

The Company classifies all interest and penalties as income tax expense. The Company has recorded $2,337 and $1,865 in liabilities for tax related interest
and penalties on its Consolidated Balance Sheets for December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

The Company estimates it will recognize $8,690 of unrecognized tax benefits within the next twelve months due to resolution of federal and state income
tax audits during the earlier part of 2009.

The Company includes its direct and indirect subsidiaries in its U.S. consolidated federal income tax return. The Company’s tax sharing allocation
agreement provides that any subsidiary having taxable income will pay a tax liability equivalent to what that subsidiary would have paid if it filed a
separate income tax return. If the separately calculated federal income tax provision for any subsidiary results in a tax loss, the current benefit resulting
from such loss, to the extent utilizable on a separate return basis, is accrued and paid to that subsidiary.

Note 14 - Business Segment Information:

The Company defines its business segments in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 131 (SFAS 131), “Disclosures about
Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information.” SFAS 131 establishes standards for the way public business enterprises report financial information
about business segments in financial statements. SFAS 131 also requires additional disclosures about products and services, geographic areas, and major
customers. The accounting policies of the reportable business segments are the same as those described in Note 1.

The Company’s reportable business segments are:

Private Banks – provides investment processing and investment management programs to banks and trust institutions worldwide and independent
wealth advisers located in the United Kingdom;

Investment Advisors – provides investment management programs to affluent investors through a network of independent registered investment
advisors, financial planners and other investment professionals in the United States;

Institutional Investors – provides investment management programs and administrative outsourcing solutions to retirement plan sponsors and not-
for-profit organizations worldwide;

Investment Managers – provides investment processing and operational outsourcing solutions to investment managers, fund companies and banking
institutions located in the United States and to investment managers worldwide of alternative asset classes such as hedge funds, fund of funds, and
private equity funds;
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Investments in New Businesses – provides investment management programs to ultra-high-net-worth families residing in the United States through
the SEI Wealth Network®; and

LSV Asset Management – is a registered investment advisor that provides investment advisory services to institutions, including pension plans and
investment companies.

In 2008, no single customer accounted for more than ten percent of revenues in any business segment. In 2007, one client accounted for approximately 11
percent of the revenues of the Private Banks segment.

The following tables highlight certain financial information about each of the Company’s business segments for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007,
and 2006:

 

2008   
Private
Banks   

Investment
Advisors   

Institutional
Investors   

Investment
Managers   

Investments
In New

Businesses   LSV   Total  
Revenues   $408,500  $223,164  $ 198,154  $147,968  $ 6,865  $263,268  $1,247,919 
Expenses (1)    326,661   122,231   112,866   101,078   15,795   164,783   843,414 

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Operating profit (loss)   $ 81,839  $100,933  $ 85,288  $ 46,890  $ (8,930) $ 98,485  $ 404,505 
Profit margin    20%  45%  43%  32%  N/A   37%  32%

2007   
Private
Banks   

Investment
Advisors   

Institutional
Investors   

Investment
Managers   

Investments
In New

Businesses   LSV   Total  
Revenues   $413,922  $259,288  $ 199,593  $143,375  $ 7,205  $345,645  $1,369,028 
Expenses (1)    330,923   124,942   121,365   101,401   19,670   213,926   912,227 

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Operating profit (loss)   $ 82,999  $134,346  $ 78,228  $ 41,974  $ (12,465) $131,719  $ 456,801 
Profit margin    20%  52%  39%  29%  N/A   38%  33%

2006   
Private
Banks   

Investment
Advisors   

Institutional
Investors   

Investment
Managers   

Investments
In New

Businesses   LSV   Total  
Revenues   $367,449  $225,716  $ 164,962  $ 118,964  $ 7,537  $291,121  $1,175,749 
Expenses (1)    279,089   111,907   106,377   90,799   22,891   178,727   789,790 

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Operating profit (loss)   $ 88,360  $ 113,809  $ 58,585  $ 28,165  $ (15,354) $ 112,394  $ 385,959 
Profit margin    24%  50%  36%  24%  N/A   39%  33%
 

(1) For the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, LSV includes $135,251, 181,591 and $153,381, respectively, of minority interest of the other
partners of LSV.
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A reconciliation of the total reported for the business segments to income from operations in the Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended
December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006 is as follows:

 
Year Ended December 31,   2008   2007   2006  
Total operating profit from segments above   $404,505  $456,801  $385,959 
Corporate overhead expenses    (38,955)  (42,045)  (38,842)
Minority interest reflected in segments    138,079   186,500   158,615 
LSV Employee Group expenses (2)    (7,280)  (7,281)  (7,281)

    
 

   
 

   
 

Income from operations   $496,349  $593,975  $498,451 
 

(2) Includes $7,222 in 2008, 2007 and 2006 of amortization expense related to intangible assets. The amortization is offset through Minority interest since the
Company does not have any ownership interest in LSV Employee Group (See Note 2).

The following tables provide additional information for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006 as required by SFAS 131 pertaining to our
business segments:

 

    Capital Expenditures   
Depreciation and

Amortization
Year Ended December 31,   2008   2007   2006   2008   2007   2006
Private Banks   $48,467  $57,874  $ 59,917  $27,131  $ 19,683  $ 13,811
Investment Advisors    17,005   21,148   21,345   6,527   4,716   3,001
Institutional Investors    4,434   4,792   10,461   1,681   1,628   1,241
Investment Managers    5,467   6,531   6,553   2,180   1,742   1,946
Investments in New Businesses    1,166   1,078   1,508   422   427   303
LSV    156   1,062   210   819   883   686

                        

Total from business segments   $76,695  $92,485  $ 99,994  $38,760  $ 29,079  $ 20,988
LSV Employee Group    —     —     —     7,280   7,281   7,272
Corporate Overhead (3) (A)    7,184   1,834   6,128   919   776   887

                        

  $83,879  $94,319  $106,122  $46,959  $ 37,136  $ 29,147
 

(A) Includes an Out of period adjustment related to capitalized interest for $5,777 in 2008 (See Note 1).
 
    Stock-Based Compensation
Year Ended December 31,   2008   2007   2006
Private Banks   $ 5,840  $10,015  $ 8,845
Investment Advisors    2,519   4,623   4,158
Institutional Investors    2,422   4,321   3,776
Investment Managers    1,862   3,353   2,838
Investments in New Businesses    1,081   2,259   2,301
LSV    —     —     —  
Corporate Overhead (3)    2,286   3,624   2,893

            

  $16,010  $28,195  $ 24,811
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   Total Assets
   2008   2007
Private Banks   $ 421,728  $ 407,524
Investment Advisors    109,887   107,112
Institutional Investors    67,230   78,930
Investment Managers    95,654   83,582
Investments in New Businesses    8,759   10,435
LSV    120,142   176,054

        

Total from business segments   $ 823,400  $ 863,637
LSV Employee Group    70,339   77,561
Corporate Overhead (3) (4)    447,976   311,167

        

  $ 1,341,715  $ 1,252,365
 

(3) Corporate overhead expenses primarily consist of corporate units such as executive management, accounting, regulatory compliance, corporate marketing
and other general administrative costs not directly associated with a reportable business segment for internal financial reporting purposes.

 

(4) Unallocated assets primarily consist of cash and cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and certain other shared services assets.

The following table presents revenues based on the location of the use of the products or services:
 
For the Year Ended December 31,   2008   2007   2006
United States   $1,103,727  $1,200,899  $ 1,042,511
International operations    144,192   168,129   133,238

            

  $1,247,919  $1,369,028  $ 1,175,749

The following table presents assets based on their location:
 

   2008   2007
United States   $ 1,205,400  $ 1,085,733
International operations    136,315   166,632

        

  $ 1,341,715  $ 1,252,365

Note 15 - Related Party Transactions:

The Company, either by itself or through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, is a party to Investment Advisory and Administration Agreements with regulated
investment companies (RICs) and other investment products which are administered by the Company. These investment products are offered to clients of
the Company and its subsidiaries. Under the Investment Advisory and Administration Agreements, the Company receives a fee for providing investment
advisory, administrative, and accounting services. The investment advisory and administration fee is a fixed percentage, referred to as basis points, of the
average daily net assets, subject to certain limitations. Investment advisory and administration fees received by the Company totaled $425,136, $478,623,
and $391,104, in 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively. The Company is also a party to various agreements with several RICs which are advised and/or
administered by the Company. The Company receives a fee for providing shareholder, administrative and distribution services pursuant to the provisions of
various Rule 12b-1 Plans adopted by the RICs. These fees totaled $50,689, $64,967, and $57,335 in 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively. A
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portion of the transaction costs incurred by the RICs for securities transactions are directed to the Company’s broker-dealer subsidiary in its capacity as an
introducing broker-dealer. The Company recognized $2,891, $1,515, and $2,419 in commissions during 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively.

Note 16 - Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited):
 
    For the Three Months Ended  
2008   March 31   June 30   Sept. 30   Dec. 31(1)  
Revenues   $333,908  $329,523  $316,086  $268,402 
Income before income taxes   $ 77,807  $ 73,385  $ 54,305  $ 19,477 
Net income   $ 48,946  $ 46,164  $ 34,495  $ 9,649 
Basic earnings per share   $ .25  $ .24  $ .18  $ .05 
Diluted earnings per share   $ .25  $ .24  $ .18  $ .05 
Effective income tax rate    37.1%  37.1%  36.5%  50.5%

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Total SIV-related charges   $ 25,796  $ 27,300  $ 40,793  $ 64,293 
Diluted earnings per share (2)   $ .08  $ .09  $ .13  $ .20 
 

(1) Includes an Out of period adjustment related to capitalized interest for $5,777 (See Note 1).
 

(2) Attributable to SIV-related charges (See Note 7).

Our effective tax rate in the fourth quarter of 2008 was affected by a higher than usual state tax rate. The tax benefit associated with the deduction for the
SIV-related losses is uncertain due to net operating loss carryforward limitations by Pennsylvania state tax law.

Total SIV-related charges include charges incurred by the Company from Capital Support Agreements with SEI-sponsored money market funds and
securities issued by SIVs purchased from SEI-sponsored money market funds (See Note 7).

 
    For the Three Months Ended  
2007   March 31   June 30   Sept. 30   Dec. 31  
Revenues   $322,725  $343,258  $349,636  $353,409 
Income before income taxes   $100,919  $ 112,102  $ 111,727  $ 84,792 
Net income   $ 63,377  $ 69,501  $ 73,299  $ 53,632 
Basic earnings per share   $ .32  $ .35  $ .38  $ .28 
Diluted earnings per share   $ .31  $ .34  $ .37  $ .27 
Effective income tax rate    37.2%  38.0%  34.4%  36.8%

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Total SIV-related non-cash charges   $ —    $ —    $ —    $ 25,122 
Diluted earnings per share (1)   $ —    $ —    $ —    $ .08 
 

(1) Attributable to SIV-related charges (See Note 7).

Total SIV-related charges include charges incurred by the Company from Capital Support Agreements with SEI-sponsored money market funds and
securities issued by SIVs purchased from SEI-sponsored money market funds (See Note 7).
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SEI INVESTMENTS COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE II - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS AND RESERVES

FOR THE THREE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008, 2007 AND 2006
 
       Additions       

Description   

Balance at
Beginning

of Year   

Charged to
Costs and
Expenses   

Charged
to Other
Accounts  (Deductions)  

Balance
at End
of Year

Allowance for doubtful accounts:          
2008   $ 3,032  $ —    $ —    $ (376) $ 2,656
2007    2,730   302   —     —     3,032
2006    1,520   1,210   —     —     2,730

Deferred income tax valuation allowance:          
2008   $ 13,315  $ —    $ 6,821  $ (6,239) $13,897
2007    10,393   —     5,208   (2,286)  13,315
2006    9,862   —     6,375   (5,844)  10,393
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None.
 
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we conducted an
evaluation of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures, as such term is defined under Rule 13a-15(e) promulgated under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act), as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered by this annual report to
provide reasonable assurance that the information required to be disclosed by us in reports filed under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized, and
reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures
designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by an issuer in the reports that it files or submits under the Act is accumulated and communicated to
the issuer’s management including its principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, as appropriate to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rule
13a-15(f). Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we conducted
an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on our evaluation under the framework in Internal Control – Integrated
Framework, our management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2008.

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008 has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent
registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which is included herein.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

No change in our internal control over financial reporting occurred during the quarter ended December 31, 2008 that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
 
Item 9B. Other Information.

None.
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PART III
 
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

Identification of Directors

Information with respect to the members of the Board of Directors of the Company is set forth under the caption “Election of Directors” in the Company’s
definitive proxy statement to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A, which information is incorporated herein by reference.

Identification of Executive Officers

The Board of Directors of the Company has determined that the Company’s executive officers within the meaning of Rule 3b-7 promulgated under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, are as follows:

ALFRED P. WEST, JR., 66, has been the Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer of the Company since its inception in 1968. Mr. West
was President from June 1979 to August 1990.

KATHY C. HEILIG, 50, has been an employee of the Company since November 1987. Ms. Heilig has been Chief Accounting Officer and Controller since May
1999. Ms. Heilig was Treasurer from May 1997 to May 2005.

N. JEFFREY KLAUDER, 56, has been Executive Vice President and General Counsel of the Company since August 2004. Prior to May 2000 and from
September 2003 until August 2004, Mr. Klauder was a partner of Morgan Lewis & Bockius, LLP, a law firm, and from May 2000 until September 2003,
Mr. Klauder was Managing Director and General Counsel of Safeguard Scientifics, Inc., an information technology and life sciences company.

EDWARD D. LOUGHLIN, 58, has been an employee of the Company since September 1979. Mr. Loughlin has been an Executive Vice President since May
1993 and a Senior Vice President since January 1988.

DENNIS J. MCGONIGLE, 48, has been an employee of the Company since August 1985. Mr. McGonigle has been the Chief Financial Officer since December
2002 and an Executive Vice President since July 1996 and a Senior Vice President since May 1995.

STEPHEN G. MEYER, 44, has been an employee of the Company since November 1992. Mr. Meyer has been an Executive Vice President since December 2006
and a Senior Vice President since December 2005.

JOSEPH P. UJOBAI, 47, has been an employee of the Company since May 1998. Mr. Ujobai has been an Executive Vice President since May 2003 and a Senior
Vice President since January 2001.

WAYNE M. WITHROW, 53, has been an employee of the Company since January 1990. Mr. Withrow has been an Executive Vice President since March 2000
and a Senior Vice President since January 1994. Mr. Withrow was Chief Information Officer from March 2000 to May 2002.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Information with respect to the Section 16(a) compliance of the directors and executive officers of the Company is set forth under the caption “Section 16(a)
Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in the Company’s definitive proxy statement to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A, which information is
incorporated herein by reference.

Code of Conduct

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct applicable to all of its employees, including its executive officers, as well as a Code of Ethics for Senior Financial
Officers. The Code of Conduct and the Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Officers is posted on our website, www.seic.com under the Corporate Governance
section.
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Item 11. Executive Compensation.

Information required by this item is set forth under the caption “Executive Compensation” in the Company’s definitive proxy statement to be filed pursuant to
Regulation 14A, which information is incorporated herein by reference.
 
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.

Information required by this item is set forth under the caption “Ownership of Shares” in the Company’s definitive proxy statement to be filed pursuant to
Regulation 14A, which information is incorporated herein by reference.

The following table provides information regarding the aggregate number of securities to be issued under all of our equity compensation plans upon exercise of
outstanding options, warrants, and other rights and their weighted-average exercise price as of December 31, 2008. Material features of each of the plans reflected
in the table are described below.
 

   

Number of
securities to be

issued upon
exercise of

outstanding options,
warrants and rights

(a)   

Weighted –average
exercise price of

outstanding options,
warrants and rights

(b)   

Number of securities
remaining available for
future issuance under
equity compensation

plans (excluding
securities reflected in

column (a))
(c)

Equity compensation plans approved by security holders (1)   28,883,144  $ 19.90  12,943,275
Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders   —     —    —  

          

Total   28,883,144  $ 19.90  12,943,275
 

(1) Consists of: (i) the 2007 Equity Compensation Plan, and (ii) the Amended and Restated 1998 Equity Compensation Plan.

The 2007 Equity Compensation Plan:

On April 3, 2007, the Board of Directors adopted the 2007 Equity Compensation Plan (the 2007 Plan), and the Company’s shareholders approved the adoption of
the 2007 Plan on May 23, 2007. The 2007 Plan provides for grants of stock options (incentive stock options and nonqualified stock options) and stock
appreciation rights (SARs) to all employees (including employees who are also directors) of the Company or its subsidiaries, consultants and advisors who
perform valuable services to the Company or its subsidiaries and members of the Board of Directors who are not employees of the Company. The Company has
not granted any incentive stock options or stock appreciation rights under the 2007 Plan.

The 2007 Plan is administered and interpreted by the Compensation Committee; however, the Board of Directors or its delegate will make grants under the 2007
Plan to non-employee directors. The Compensation Committee has the authority to (i) determine the individuals to whom grants will be made under the 2007
Plan, (ii) determine the type, size and terms of the grants, (iii) determine the time when grants will be made and the duration of any applicable exercise or
restriction period, including the exercisability and the acceleration of exercisability, (iv) amend the terms of any previously issued grant, (v) adopt guidelines
separate for the 2007 Plan that set forth the specific terms and conditions for grants under the 2007 Plan, and (vi) deal with any other matters arising under the
2007 Plan.

Options granted under the 2007 Plan may be “incentive stock options,” which are intended to qualify within the meaning of Section 422 of the Internal Revenue
Code, and “nonqualified stock options” which are not intended to so qualify. Options are granted under the 2007 Plan with an exercise price equal to or greater
than the fair market value of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant and the term of may not exceed ten years from the date of grant. The vesting
period for options commences on the date of grant, or upon the achievement of such vesting
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requirements, and ends on such date as is determined in each case by the Compensation Committee, in its sole discretion, which is specified in the grant letter.
Options may be exercised only while the participant is actively employed by or actively providing service to the Company unless the Compensation Committee
provides for a period after such employment or service in which the option may be exercised.

The Compensation Committee may grant SARs to anyone eligible to participate in the 2007 Plan. Upon exercise of a SAR, the participant will receive an amount
equal to the excess of the fair market value of the Company’s common stock on the date of exercise over the base amount set forth in the grant letter. Such
payment to the participant will be in cash, in shares of common stock, or in a combination of cash and shares of common stock. The Compensation Committee
will determine the period when SARs vest and become exercisable, the base amount of the SARs, and whether SARs will be granted in connection with, or
independently of, any options. SARs may be exercised only while the participant is actively employed by or actively providing service to the Company unless the
Compensation Committee provides for a period after such employment or service in which the option may be exercised.

If there is any change in the number or kind of shares of common stock outstanding by reason of a stock dividend, spin-off, recapitalization, stock split, or
combination or exchange of shares, by reason of a merger, reorganization or consolidation, by reason of a recapitalization or change in par value or by reason of
any other extraordinary or unusual event affecting the outstanding common stock as a class without the Company’s receipt of consideration, or if the value of
outstanding shares of common stock is substantially reduced as a result of a spin-off or the Company’s payment of an extraordinary dividend or distribution, the
maximum number of shares of common stock available for issuance under the 2007 Plan, the maximum number of shares of common stock which any individual
may receive pursuant to grants in any year, the kind and number of shares covered by outstanding grants, the kind and number of shares issued and to be issued
under the 2007 Plan, and the price per share or the applicable market value of such grants shall be appropriately adjusted by the Compensation Committee, in
such manner as the Compensation Committee deems appropriate, to reflect any increase or decrease in the number of, or change in the kind or value of, the issued
shares of common stock to preclude, to the extent practicable, the enlargement or dilution of rights and benefits under the 2007 Plan and such outstanding grants.

In the event of a change in control, the Compensation Committee may take any of the following actions with respect to outstanding grants: (i) determine that
outstanding options and SARs will be fully exercisable as of the date of the change in control or at such other time as the Compensation Committee determines,
(ii) require that participants surrender their options and SARs in exchange for payment by the Company, in cash or shares of common stock as determined by the
Compensation Committee, in an amount equal to the amount by which the then-fair market value subject to the participant’s unexercised options and SARs
exceeds the exercise price of the option or the base amount of the SAR, as applicable, (iii) after giving participants the opportunity to exercise their options and
SARs, the Compensation Committee may terminate any or all unexercised options and SARs at such time as the Compensation Committee determines
appropriate, or (iv) determine that grants that remain outstanding after the change in control will be converted to similar grants of the surviving corporation.

The Board of Directors may amend or terminate the 2007 Plan at any time, subject to shareholder approval. No grants may be issued under the 2007 Plan after
June 1, 2017.

As of December 31, 2008, options to acquire 7,056,725 shares were outstanding under the 2007 Plan, out of a total of 20,000,000 shares of common stock
reserved for issuance under the 2007 Plan. A total of 12,943,275 shares of common stock remain available for issuance under the 2007 Plan for future grants.

The 1998 Equity Compensation Plan:

On May 21, 1998, the Board of Directors adopted the 1998 Equity Compensation Plan (the 1998 Plan), and the Company’s shareholders approved the adoption of
the 1998 Plan. The Board of Directors had made certain amendments to the 1998 Plan after its adoption that did not require shareholder approval. The 1998 Plan
was most recently amended and restated in May 2003. The 1998 Plan provided for grants of stock options (incentive stock options and nonqualified stock
options), stock appreciation rights, restricted stock and performance units to all employees (including employees who were also directors) of the Company or its
subsidiaries, consultants and advisors who performed valuable services to the Company or its subsidiaries and members of the Board of Directors who were not
employees of the Company. The Company did not grant any incentive stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock or performance units under the
1998 Plan. The 1998 Plan was terminated by the Board of Directors in April 2007, and no further options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock and
performance units may be granted. However, options granted under the 1998 Plan prior to its termination continue in effect under the terms of the grant and the
1998 Plan.
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All options that were granted under the 1998 Plan to employees and consultants were granted at the fair market value of the Company’s common stock on the
date of grant, become exercisable ratably upon the attainment of specific diluted earnings per share targets or in their entirety after seven years from the date of
grant (for grants prior to 2006), and expire ten years from the date of grant.

The 1998 Plan provided that non-employee members of the Board of Directors would receive automatic grants of nonqualified stock options. Each non-employee
director who first became a member of the Board of Directors after the effective date of the 1998 Plan, but before the termination of the 1998 Plan, received a
non-qualified stock option to purchase 8,000 shares. In addition, each non-employee director received a non-qualified stock option to purchase 4,000 shares
pursuant to the 1998 Plan. The exercise prices for these options were equal to the fair market value of the Company’s stock on the date of grant, the term is ten
years from the date of grant, and the options became exercisable ratably over the first four anniversaries of the date of grant (unless otherwise determined by the
Compensation Committee).

If the Company is consolidated or merged into another corporation, each optionee with an outstanding option under the 1998 Plan will receive, upon exercise of
the option, the same consideration as other shareholders of the Company received in connection with the transaction. If all or substantially all of the assets of the
Company are sold or exchanged (other than by merger or consolidation), each optionee will have the right to exercise the option in full within ten days after the
Compensation Committee provides notice of the right to exercise the option, and any portion of the option not exercised will lapse.

As of December 31, 2008, options to acquire 21,826,419 shares were outstanding under the 1998 Plan, out of a total of 40,444,000 shares of common stock
reserved for issuance under the 1998 Plan.
 
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

Information required by this item is set forth under the captions “Election of Directors,” “Executive Compensation,” and “Director Compensation” in the
Company’s definitive proxy statement to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A, which information is incorporated herein by reference.
 
Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

Information required by this item is set forth under the caption “Ratification or Appointment of Independent Public Accountants” in the Company’s definitive
proxy statement to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A, which information is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV
 
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.
 
1 and 2.

  

Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedules. The following is a list of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries and supplementary data filed as part of Item 8 hereof:   

  Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm   
  Consolidated Balance Sheets — December 31, 2008 and 2007   
  Consolidated Statements of Operations — For the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006   
  Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income — For the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006   
  Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows — For the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006   
  Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements   
  Schedule II — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves – For the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006   

  

All other schedules are omitted because they are not applicable, or not required, or because the required information is included in the Consolidated
Financial Statements or notes thereto.   

3.
  

Exhibits, Including Those Incorporated by Reference. The exhibits to this Report are listed on the accompanying index to exhibits and are
incorporated herein by reference or are filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.   
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf
by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
 

  SEI INVESTMENTS COMPANY

Date  February 25, 2009   By  /s/ Dennis J. McGonigle
    Dennis J. McGonigle
    Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and
in the capacities and on dates indicated.
 

Date  February 25, 2009   By  /s/ Alfred P. West, Jr.
    Alfred P. West, Jr.
    Chairman of the Board,
    Chief Executive Officer,
    and Director

Date  February 25, 2009   By  /s/ Carmen V. Romeo
    Carmen V. Romeo
    Director

Date  February 25, 2009   By  /s/ Richard B. Lieb
    Richard B. Lieb
    Director

Date  February 25, 2009   By  /s/ William M. Doran
    William M. Doran
    Director

Date  February 25, 2009   By  /s/ Henry H. Porter, Jr.
    Henry H. Porter, Jr.
    Director

Date  February 25, 2009   By  /s/ Kathryn M. McCarthy
    Kathryn M. McCarthy
    Director

Date  February 25, 2009   By  /s/ Sarah W. Blumenstein
    Sarah W. Blumenstein
    Director
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EXHIBIT INDEX

The following is a list of exhibits filed as part of this annual report on Form 10-K. For exhibits incorporated by reference, the location of the exhibit in the
previous filing is indicated in parentheses.
 

3.1   
  

Articles of Incorporation of the Registrant as amended on January 21, 1983. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1982.)

3.1.2
  

Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of the Registrant, dated May 21, 1992. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 3.1.2 to the Registrant’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1992.)

3.1.3
  

Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of the Registrant, dated May 26, 1994. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 3.1.3 to the Registrant’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1994.)

3.1.4
  

Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of the Registrant, dated November 21, 1996. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 3.1.4 to the Registrant’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1996.)

3.1.5
  

Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of the Registrant, dated February 14, 2001. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 3.1.4 to the Registrant’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000.)

3.2      Amended and Restated By-Laws. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 3.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 6, 2009.)

4.1    
  

Rights Agreement dated January 6, 2009. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated January
6, 2009.)

4.2    

  

Statement with Respect to Shares of a Domestic Corporation amending the designations of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Shares as a
series of the Series Preferred Stock of the Company, dated January 6, 2009. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated January 6, 2009.)

  

Note: Exhibits 10.4 through 10.11 constitute the management contracts and executive compensatory plans or arrangements in which certain of the
directors and executive officers of the Registrant participate.

10.4      
  

1998 Equity Compensation Plan, Amended and Restated as of April 8, 2003. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 99.1 to the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No. 333-111224) filed December 16, 2003.)

10.4.1  
  

Amendment 2006-1 to the 1998 Equity Compensation Plan, Amended and Restated as of April 8, 2003. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit
10.4.1 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006.)

10.5     
  

Employee Stock Purchase Plan as Amended and Restated on May 20, 2008. (Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form
8-K dated May 20, 2008.)

10.6     
  

SEI Capital Accumulation Plan. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 99(e) to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No. 333-
41343) filed December 2, 1997.)

10.9     
  

Employment Agreement, dated June 25, 2004, between N. Jeffrey Klauder and the Registrant. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.9 to the
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006.)

10.10     2007 Equity Compensation Plan. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.10 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 11, 2007.)

10.11   
  

Amended and Restated Employee Stock Purchase Plan. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.11 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K
dated May 20, 2008.)

10.21   

  

Guaranty and Collateral Agreement, dated as of January 24, 2006 by and among SEI Investments Company, LSV Employee Group, LLC, the
Grantors party thereto and LaSalle Bank National Association as Administrative Agent (including the underlying Credit Agreement dated as of
January 24, 2006 by and among LSV Employee Group, LLC, LSV Asset Management, the Lenders party thereto and LaSalle Bank National
Association as Administrative Agent to which the Guaranty and Collateral Agreement relates). (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.1 to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 30, 2006.)

10.22   

  

Credit Facility, dated January 14, 2003 between Royal Bank of Canada and SEI Investments Canada Company, a subsidiary of SEI Investments
Company. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.22 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2005.)
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10.22.1

 

First Amendment, dated June 15, 2005 to Credit Facility, dated January 14, 2003 between Royal Bank of Canada and SEI Investments Canada
Company, a subsidiary of SEI Investments Company. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.22.1 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005.)

10.22.2

 

Second Amendment, dated February 20, 2006 to Credit Facility, dated January 14, 2003 between Royal Bank of Canada and SEI Investments
Canada Company, a subsidiary of SEI Investments Company. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.22.2 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005.)

10.23   

 

$200,000 Credit Agreement, dated July 25, 2007, among SEI Investments Company, the Lenders Party thereto, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.,
Wachovia Bank, National Association, Bank of America, N.A., Manufacturers and Traders Trust Company and PNC Bank, National Association.
(Incorporated by reference to exhibit 99.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 24, 2007.)

10.23.1
 

First Amendment, dated November 7, 2007, to $200,000 Credit Agreement, dated July 25, 2007. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.3 to the
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2007.)

10.23.2
 

Second Amendment, dated March 19, 2008, to $200,000 Credit Agreement, dated July 25, 2007. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.23.2 to
the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 19, 2008.)

10.23.3
 

Third Amendment, dated November 5, 2008, to $200,000 Credit Agreement, dated July 25, 2007. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.23.3 to
the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2008.)

10.23.4
 

Fourth Amendment, dated November 26, 2008, to $200,000 Credit Agreement, dated July 25, 2007. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.23.4
to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 26, 2008.)

10.26   
 

Letter of Credit, dated November 7, 2007 in favor of SEI Daily Income Trust Prime Obligation Fund. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.4
to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2007.)

10.28   
 

Letter of Credit, dated February 14, 2008 in favor of SEI Daily Income Trust Prime Obligation Fund. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.28
to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 15, 2008.)

10.30   
 

Letter of Credit, dated December 3, 2007 in favor of SEI Liquid Asset Trust Prime Obligation Fund. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.30
to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2008.)

10.31   
 

Letter of Credit, dated February 14, 2008 in favor of SEI Liquid Asset Trust Prime Obligation Fund. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.31
to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2008.)

10.32   

 

Amended and Restated Capital Support Agreement, dated November 5, 2008, between SEI Investments Company and SEI Daily Income Trust
for and on behalf of its Prime Obligation Fund. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.32 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2008.)

10.33   
 

Letter of Credit, dated November 7, 2008 in favor of SEI Daily Income Trust Prime Obligation Fund. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.33
to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2008.)

10.34   

 

Amended and Restated Capital Support Agreement, dated November 28, 2008, between SEI Investments Company and SEI Liquid Asset Trust
for and on behalf of its Prime Obligation Fund. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.23.4 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K
dated November 26, 2008.)

10.35*  Letter of Credit, dated November 12, 2008 in favor of SEI Liquid Asset Trust Prime Obligation Fund.

10.36*  Letter of Credit, dated November 28, 2008 in favor of SEI Liquid Asset Trust Prime Obligation Fund.

10.37*  Letter of Credit, dated December 4, 2008 in favor of SEI Daily Income Trust Prime Obligation Fund.

10.38*  Letter of Credit, dated January 29, 2009 in favor of SEI Daily Income Trust Prime Obligation Fund.

14        
 

Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Officers. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 14 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2003.)

21*       Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

23.1*      Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

23.2      
 

Consent of Independent Accountants. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 23.2 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2005.)

31.1*    Rule 13a-15(e)/15d-15(e) Certification of Chief Executive Officer.

31.2*    Rule 13a-15(e)/15d-15(e) Certification of Chief Financial Officer.

32*       Section 1350 Certifications.

99        
 

Miscellaneous exhibit. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 99.1 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2003.)

99.1     
 

Financial Statements of LSV Asset Management. (Incorporated by reference to exhibit 99.1 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005.)

 

* Filed herewith as an exhibit to this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Exhibit 10.35

JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.
c/o JPMorgan Treasury Services
Global Trade Services
10420 Highland Manor Drive
Tampa, FL 33610

NOV 12, 2008
OUR L/C NO.: TPTS-690475

 
TO:  APPLICANT:
SEI LIQUID ASSET TRUST PRIME  SEI INVESTMENTS COMPANY
OBLIGATION FUND  1 FREEDOM VALLEY DRIVE
ATTN: TIM BART0  OAKS, PA 19456
1 FREEDOM VALLEY DRIVE  
OAKS, PA 19456  

WE HAVE ESTABLISHED OUR IRREVOCABLE STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT IN YOUR FAVOR AS DETAILED HEREIN SUBJECT TO ISP98
 
DOCUMENTARY CREDIT NUMBER:   TPTS-690475

FURTHER IDENTIFICATION:   ISSUE

DATE OF ISSUE:   NOVEMBER 12, 2008

BENEFICIARY:   SEI LIQUID ASSET TRUST PRIME
  OBLIGATION FUND
  ATTN: TIM BART0
  1 FREEDOM VALLEY DRIVE
  OAKS, PA 19456

APPLICANT:   SEI INVESTMENTS COMPANY
  1 FREEDOM VALLEY DRIVE
  OAKS, PA 19456

DATE AND PLACE OF EXPIRY:   DECEMBER 2, 2009
  AT OUR COUNTER

DOCUMENTARY CREDIT AMOUNT:   USD22,000,000.00

AVAILABLE WITH:   JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A.
  BY PAYMENT

IT IS A CONDITION OF THIS LETTER OF CREDIT THAT IT SHALL BE AUTOMATICALLY EXTENDED WITHOUT AMENDMENT FOR
ADDITIONAL 12 MONTH PERIODS FROM THE
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JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.
c/o JPMorgan Treasury Services
Global Trade Services
10420 Highland Manor Drive
Tampa, FL 33610

NOV 12, 2008
OUR L/C NO.: TPTS-690475

 
PRESENT OR EACH FUTURE EXPIRATION DATE, UNLESS AT LEAST 30 DAYS PRIOR TO THE CURRENT EXPIRY DATE WE SEND NOTICE IN
WRITING TO YOU VIA SWIFT, OR HAND DELIVERY AT THE ABOVE ADDRESS, THAT WE ELECT NOT TO AUTOMATICALLY EXTEND THIS
LETTER OF CREDIT FOR ANY ADDITIONAL PERIOD. UPON SUCH NOTICE TO YOU, YOU MAY DRAW ON US AT SIGHT FOR AN AMOUNT
NOT TO EXCEED THE BALANCE REMAINING IN THIS LETTER OF CREDIT WITHIN THE THEN-APPLICABLE EXPIRY DATE, BY YOUR SWIFT
OR PRESENTATION OF YOUR DRAFT AND DATED STATEMENT PURPORTEDLY SIGNED BY ONE OF YOUR OFFICIALS READING AS
FOLLOWS:

QUOTE

THE AMOUNT OF THIS DRAWING USD                      UNDER JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A. LETTER OF CREDIT NUMBER TPTS-690475
REPRESENTS FUNDS DUE US AS WE HAVE RECEIVED NOTICE FROM JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A. OF THEIR DECISION NOT TO
AUTOMATICALLY EXTEND LETTER OF CREDIT NUMBER TPTS-690475 AND THE UNDERLYING OBLIGATION REMAINS OUTSTANDING.

UNQUOTE

IN THE EVENT THIS LETTER OF CREDIT IS SUBSEQUENTLY AMENDED BY US TO RESCIND A NOTICE OF NON-EXTENSION AND TO
EXTEND THE EXPIRY DATE HEREOF TO A FUTURE DATE, SUCH EXTENSION SHALL BE FOR THAT SINGLE PERIOD ONLY AND THIS LETTER
OF CREDIT WILL NOT BE SUBJECT TO ANY FUTURE AUTOMATIC EXTENSIONS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

ADDITIONAL DETAILS:

THIS LETTER OF CREDIT IS AVAILABLE WITH JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A. AGAINST PRESENTATION OF YOUR DRAFT AT SIGHT DRAWN
ON JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A., WHEN ACCOMPANIED BY THE DOCUMENT INDICATED HEREIN.

BENEFICIARY’S DATED STATEMENT PURPORTEDLY SIGNED BY ONE OF ITS AUTHORIZED OFFICIALS READING AS FOLLOWS:

“THE AMOUNT OF THIS DRAWING USD                      UNDER JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A. LETTER OF CREDIT NO. TPTS-690475
REPRESENTS FUNDS DUE US AS SEI INVESTMENTS COMPANY HAS FAILED TO PAY A REQUIRED CONTRIBUTION AMOUNT AS REQUIRED
BY THE CAPITAL SUPPORT AGREEMENT BETWEEN SEI INVESTMENTS COMPANY AND SEI LIQUID ASSET TRUST PRIME OBLIGATION
FUND.”

WE HEREBY ENGAGE WITH YOU THAT DRAFTS DRAWN UNDER AND IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS
LETTER OF CREDIT WILL BE DULY HONORED.
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JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.
c/o JPMorgan Treasury Services
Global Trade Services
10420 Highland Manor Drive
Tampa, FL 33610

NOV 12, 2008
OUR L/C NO.: TPTS-690475

 
ALL CORRESPONDENCE AND ANY DRAWINGS HEREUNDER ARE TO BE DIRECTED TO JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A., C/O JPMORGAN
TREASURY SERVICES, ATTN: STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT DEPT., 4TH FL., 10420 HIGHLAND MANOR DRIVE, TAMPA, FLORIDA 33610.
CUSTOMER INQUIRY NUMBER IS 1-800-634-1969 CHOOSE OPTION 1. E-MAIL ADDRESS IS: GTS.CLIENT.SERVICES@JPMCHASE.COM. PLEASE
HAVE OUR REFERENCE NUMBER AVAILABLE WHEN YOU CONTACT US.

THE NUMBER AND THE DATE OF OUR CREDIT AND THE NAME OF OUR BANK MUST BE QUOTED ON ALL DOCUMENTS REQUIRED.

EXCEPT AS FAR AS OTHERWISE EXPRESSLY STATED HEREIN, THIS LETTER OF CREDIT IS SUBJECT TO THE INTERNATIONAL STANDBY
PRACTICES (“ISP98”), INTERNATIONAL CHAMBER OF COMMERCE PUBLICATION NO. 590.

THIS LETTER OF CREDIT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK,
WITHOUT REGARD TO PRINCIPLES OF CONFLICT OF LAWS.
 

/s/ Jon P. Pierson
AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE

Jon P. Pierson
Assistant Vice President

 
  



JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.
c/o JPMorgan Treasury Services
Global Trade Services
10420 Highland Manor Drive
Tampa, FL 33610

BILL
 
L/C NO.  TRANS. NO.  BILL NO.  DATE
TPTS-690475  0001  TPTS690475194568  NOV 12, 2008

TO:
SEI INVESTMENTS COMPANY
1 FREEDOM VALLEY DRIVE
OAKS, PA 19456
 
BENEFICIARY: SEI LIQUID ASSET TRUST PRIME

WE AWAIT YOUR PAYMENT AS PER DETAILS HEREIN:
 
      AMOUNT
ISSUANCE FEE   USD  500.00

  TOTAL USD  500.00
 
L/C NO.  TRANS. NO.  BILL NO.  DATE
TPTS-690475  0001  TPTS690475194568  NOVEMBER 12, 2008

ALL INQUIRIES REGARDING THIS TRANSACTION MAY BE DIRECTED TO OUR CLIENT SERVICE GROUP AT THE FOLLOWING TELEPHONE
NUMBER OR E-MAIL ADDRESS: l-800-634-1969 OR GTS.CLIENT.SERVICES@JPMCHASE.COM

PAYMENT IS DUE UPON RECEIPT.

PAYMENT INSTRUCTIONS: (PLEASE SELECT ONE AND PROVIDE APPROPRIATE INFORMATION)
 
        DEBIT THE FOLLOWING JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A. ACCOUNT FOR THE TOTAL AMOUNT DUE.

DDA #                                                                                    
AUTHORIZED APPROVER’S INITIALS                         .

********* COPY *********
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JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.
c/o JPMorgan Treasury Services
Global Trade Services
10420 Highland Manor Drive
Tampa, FL 33610

BILL
 
L/C NO.  TRANS. NO.  BILL NO.  DATE
TPTS-690475  0001  TPTS690475194568  NOV 12, 2008

TO:
SEI INVESTMENTS COMPANY
1 FREEDOM VALLEY DRIVE
OAKS, PA 19456
 
BENEFICIARY: SEI LIQUID ASSET TRUST PRIME
 

        DEBIT OUR ACCOUNT NO.                     , HELD WITH                      ABA ROUTING NUMBER                     .

WE HAVE CONTACTED THE INSTITUTION WITH AUTHORIZATION, FOR THE TOTAL AMOUNT DUE.

AUTHORIZED APPROVER’S INITIALS                     .

FOR FUTURE TRANSACTIONS PLEASE FORWARD A DEBIT AUTHORIZATION FORM TO US FOR COMPLETION.
 

        ENCLOSED IS A CHECK IN THE AMOUNT OF $                     FOR THE TOTAL AMOUNT DUE TO:
JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A.
SBLC GROUP
21591 NETWORK PLACE
CHICAGO, ILLINOIS 60673-1215

 

        A WIRE TRANSFER PAYMENT HAS BEEN MADE TO JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A. ABA 021000021, A/C 324331754 QUOTING THE L/C
AND BILL NUMBER(S) FOR THE TOTAL AMOUNT DUE.

*** FAX COMPLETED FORM TO 312-954-3140 ***

********* COPY *********
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Exhibit 10.36

JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.
c/o JPMorgan Treasury Services
Global Trade Services
10420 Highland Manor Drive
Tampa, FL 33610

NOV 28, 2008
OUR L/C NO.: TPTS-703798

 
TO:  APPLICANT:
SEI LIQUID ASSET TRUST PRIME  SEI INVESTMENTS COMPANY
OBLIGATION FUND  1 FREEDOM VALLEY DRIVE
ATTN: TIM BARTO  OAKS, PA 19456
1 FREEDOM VALLEY DRIVE  
OAKS, PA 19456  

WE HAVE ESTABLISHED OUR IRREVOCABLE STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT IN YOUR FAVOR AS DETAILED HEREIN SUBJECT TO ISP98
 
DOCUMENTARY CREDIT NUMBER:   TPTS-703798

FURTHER IDENTIFICATION:   ISSUE

DATE OF ISSUE:   NOVEMBER 28, 2008

BENEFICIARY:   SEI LIQUID ASSET TRUST PRIME
  OBLIGATION FUND
  ATTN: TIM BARTO
  1 FREEDOM VALLEY DRIVE
  OAKS, PA 19456

APPLICANT:   SEI INVESTMENTS COMPANY
  1 FREEDOM VALLEY DRIVE
  OAKS, PA 19456

DATE AND PLACE OF EXPIRY:   NOVEMBER 28, 2009
  AT OUR COUNTER

DOCUMENTARY CREDIT AMOUNT:   USD5,000,000.00

AVAILABLE WITH:   JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A.
  BY PAYMENT

IT IS A CONDITION OF THIS LETTER OF CREDIT THAT IT SHALL BE AUTOMATICALLY
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JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.
c/o JPMorgan Treasury Services
Global Trade Services
10420 Highland Manor Drive
Tampa, FL 33610

NOV 28, 2008
OUR L/C NO.: TPTS-703798

 
EXTENDED WITHOUT AMENDMENT FOR ADDITIONAL 12 MONTH PERIODS FROM THE PRESENT OR EACH FUTURE EXPIRATION DATE,
UNLESS AT LEAST 30 DAYS PRIOR TO THE CURRENT EXPIRY DATE WE SEND NOTICE IN WRITING TO YOU VIA SWIFT, OR HAND
DELIVERY AT THE ABOVE ADDRESS, THAT WE ELECT NOT TO AUTOMATICALLY EXTEND THIS LETTER OF CREDIT FOR ANY
ADDITIONAL PERIOD. UPON SUCH NOTICE TO YOU, YOU MAY DRAW ON US AT SIGHT FOR AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED THE BALANCE
REMAINING IN THIS LETTER OF CREDIT WITHIN THE THEN-APPLICABLE EXPIRY DATE, BY YOUR SWIFT OR PRESENTATION OF YOUR
DRAFT AND DATED STATEMENT PURPORTEDLY SIGNED BY ONE OF YOUR OFFICIALS READING AS FOLLOWS:

QUOTE

THE AMOUNT OF THIS DRAWING USD                      UNDER JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A. LETTER OF CREDIT NUMBER TPTS-703798
REPRESENTS FUNDS DUE US AS WE HAVE RECEIVED NOTICE FROM JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A. OF THEIR DECISION NOT TO
AUTOMATICALLY EXTEND LETTER OF CREDIT NUMBER TPTS-703798 AND THE UNDERLYING OBLIGATION REMAINS OUTSTANDING.

UNQUOTE

IN THE EVENT THIS LETTER OF CREDIT IS SUBSEQUENTLY AMENDED BY US TO RESCIND A NOTICE OF NON-EXTENSION AND TO
EXTEND THE EXPIRY DATE HEREOF TO A FUTURE DATE, SUCH EXTENSION SHALL BE FOR THAT SINGLE PERIOD ONLY AND THIS LETTER
OF CREDIT WILL NOT BE SUBJECT TO ANY FUTURE AUTOMATIC EXTENSIONS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

ADDITIONAL DETAILS:

THIS LETTER OF CREDIT IS AVAILABLE WITH JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A. AGAINST PRESENTATION OF YOUR DRAFT AT SIGHT DRAWN
ON JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A., WHEN ACCOMPANIED BY THE DOCUMENTS INDICATED HEREIN.

BENEFICIARY’S DATED STATEMENT PURPORTEDLY SIGNED BY ONE OF ITS OFFICIALS READING AS FOLLOWS:

“THE AMOUNT OF THIS DRAWING, USD                     , UNDER JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A. LETTER OF CREDIT NO. TPTS-703798
REPRESENTS FUNDS DUE US AS SEI INVESTMENTS COMPANY HAS FAILED TO PAY A REQUIRED CONTRIBUTION AMOUNT AS REQUIRED
BY THE CAPITAL SUPPORT AGREEMENT BETWEEN SEI INVESTMENTS COMPANY AND SEI LIQUID ASSET TRUST PRIME OBLIGATION
FUND.”
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JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.
c/o JPMorgan Treasury Services
Global Trade Services
10420 Highland Manor Drive
Tampa, FL 33610

NOV 28, 2008
OUR L/C NO.: TPTS-703798

 
ALL CORRESPONDENCE AND ANY DRAWINGS HEREUNDER ARE TO BE DIRECTED TO JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A. C/O JPMORGAN
TREASURY SERVICES, STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT DEPT. 4TH FL. 10420 HIGHLAND MANOR DRIVE, TAMPA, FLORIDA 33610. CUSTOMER
INQUIRY NUMBER IS 1-800-634-1969 CHOOSE OPTION 1. E-MAIL ADDRESS IS: GTS.CLIENT.SERVICES@JPMCHASE.COM. PLEASE HAVE OUR
REFERENCE NUMBER AVAILABLE WHEN YOU CONTACT US.

WE HEREBY AGREE WITH YOU THAT DRAFTS DRAWN UNDER AND IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS
LETTER OF CREDIT WILL BE DULY HONORED.

THE NUMBER AND THE DATE OF OUR CREDIT AND THE NAME OF OUR BANK MUST BE QUOTED ON ALL DRAFTS REQUIRED.

EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED HEREIN, THE LETTER OF CREDIT IS SUBJECT TO THE INTERNATIONAL STANDBY PRACTICES (1998),
INTERNATIONAL CHAMBER OF COMMERCE PUBLICATION NO. 590.

THIS LETTER OF CREDIT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK,
WITHOUT REGARD TO PRINCIPLES OF CONFLICT OF LAWS.
 

/s/ HENRY AVELINO
AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE

HENRY AVELINO
ASSISTANT VICE PRESIDENT
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Exhibit 10.37

JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.
c/o JPMorgan Treasury Services
Global Trade Services
10420 Highland Manor Drive
Tampa, FL 33610

DEC 4, 2008
OUR L/C NO.: TPTS-707379

 
TO:  APPLICANT:
SEI DAILY INCOME TRUST PRIME  SEI INVESTMENTS COMPANY
OBLIGATION FUND  1 FREEDOM VALLEY DRIVE
ATTN: TIM BARTO  OAKS, PA 19456
1 FREEDOM VALLEY DRIVE  
OAKS, PA 19456  

WE HAVE ESTABLISHED OUR IRREVOCABLE STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT IN YOUR FAVOR AS DETAILED HEREIN SUBJECT TO ISP98
 
DOCUMENTARY CREDIT NUMBER:   TPTS-707379

FURTHER IDENTIFICATION:   ISSUE

DATE OF ISSUE:   DECEMBER 4, 2008

BENEFICIARY:   SEI DAILY INCOME TRUST PRIME
  OBLIGATION FUND
  ATTN: TIM BARTO
  1 FREEDOM VALLEY DRIVE
  OAKS, PA 19456

APPLICANT:   SEI INVESTMENTS COMPANY
  1 FREEDOM VALLEY DRIVE
  OAKS, PA 19456

DATE AND PLACE OF EXPIRY:   DECEMBER 2, 2009
  AT OUR COUNTER

DOCUMENTARY CREDIT AMOUNT:   USD10,000,000.00

AVAILABLE WITH:   JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A.
  BY PAYMENT

IT IS A CONDITION OF THIS LETTER OF CREDIT THAT IT SHALL BE AUTOMATICALLY EXTENDED WITHOUT AMENDMENT FOR
ADDITIONAL 12 MONTH PERIODS FROM THE
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JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.
c/o JPMorgan Treasury Services
Global Trade Services
10420 Highland Manor Drive
Tampa, FL 33610

DEC 4, 2008
OUR L/C NO.: TPTS-707379

 
PRESENT OR EACH FUTURE EXPIRATION DATE, UNLESS AT LEAST 30 DAYS PRIOR TO THE CURRENT EXPIRY DATE WE SEND NOTICE IN
WRITING TO YOU VIA SWIFT, OR HAND DELIVERY AT THE ABOVE ADDRESS, THAT WE ELECT NOT TO AUTOMATICALLY EXTEND THIS
LETTER OF CREDIT FOR ANY ADDITIONAL PERIOD. UPON SUCH NOTICE TO YOU, YOU MAY DRAW ON US AT SIGHT FOR AN AMOUNT
NOT TO EXCEED THE BALANCE REMAINING IN THIS LETTER OF CREDIT WITHIN THE THEN-APPLICABLE EXPIRY DATE, BY YOUR SWIFT
OR PRESENTATION OF YOUR DRAFT AND DATED STATEMENT PURPORTEDLY SIGNED BY ONE OF YOUR OFFICIALS READING AS
FOLLOWS:

QUOTE

THE AMOUNT OF THIS DRAWING USD                      UNDER JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A. LETTER OF CREDIT NUMBER TPTS-707379
REPRESENTS FUNDS DUE US AS WE HAVE RECEIVED NOTICE FROM JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A. OF THEIR DECISION NOT TO
AUTOMATICALLY EXTEND LETTER OF CREDIT NUMBER TPTS-707379 AND THE UNDERLYING OBLIGATION REMAINS OUTSTANDING.

UNQUOTE

IN THE EVENT THIS LETTER OF CREDIT IS SUBSEQUENTLY AMENDED BY US TO RESCIND A NOTICE OF NON-EXTENSION AND TO
EXTEND THE EXPIRY DATE HEREOF TO A FUTURE DATE, SUCH EXTENSION SHALL BE FOR THAT SINGLE PERIOD ONLY AND THIS LETTER
OF CREDIT WILL NOT BE SUBJECT TO ANY FUTURE AUTOMATIC EXTENSIONS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

ADDITIONAL DETAILS:

THIS LETTER OF CREDIT IS AVAILABLE WITH JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N-A. AGAINST PRESENTATION OF YOUR DRAFT AT SIGHT DRAWN
ON JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A., WHEN ACCOMPANIED BY THE DOCUMENT INDICATED HEREIN.

BENEFICIARY’S DATED STATEMENT PURPORTEDLY SIGNED BY ONE OF ITS AUTHORIZED OFFICIALS READING AS FOLLOWS:

“THE AMOUNT OF THIS DRAWING USD                      UNDER JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A. LETTER OF CREDIT NO. TPTS-707379
REPRESENTS FUNDS DUE US AS SEI INVESTMENTS COMPANY HAS FAILED TO PAY A REQUIRED CONTRIBUTION AMOUNT AS REQUIRED
BY THE CAPITAL SUPPORT AGREEMENT BETWEEN SEI INVESTMENTS COMPANY AND SEI DAILY INCOME TRUST PRIME OBLIGATION
FUND.”

ALL CORRESPONDENCE AND ANY DRAWINGS HEREUNDER ARE TO BE DIRECTED TO JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A., C/O JPMORGAN
TREASURY SERVICES, ATTN: STANDBY
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JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.
c/o JPMorgan Treasury Services
Global Trade Services
10420 Highland Manor Drive
Tampa, FL 33610

DEC 4, 2008
OUR L/C NO.: TPTS-707379

 
LETTER OF CREDIT DEPT., 4TH FL., 10420 HIGHLAND MANOR DRIVE, TAMPA, FLORIDA 33610. CUSTOMER INQUIRY NUMBER IS 1-800-634-
1969 CHOOSE OPTION 1. E-MAIL ADDRESS IS: GTS.CLIENT.SERVICES@JPMCHASE.COM. PLEASE HAVE OUR REFERENCE NUMBER
AVAILABLE WHEN YOU CONTACT US.

WE HEREBY ENGAGE WITH YOU THAT DRAFTS DRAWN UNDER AND IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS
LETTER OF CREDIT WILL BE DULY HONORED.

EXCEPT AS FAR AS OTHERWISE EXPRESSLY STATED HEREIN, THIS LETTER OF CREDIT IS SUBJECT TO THE INTERNATIONAL STANDBY
PRACTICES (“ISP98”), INTERNATIONAL CHAMBER OF COMMERCE PUBLICATION NO. 590.

THE NUMBER AND THE DATE OF OUR CREDIT AND THE NAME OF OUR BANK MUST BE QUOTED ON ALL DRAFTS REQUIRED.

THIS LETTER OF CREDIT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK,
WITHOUT REGARD TO PRINCIPLES OF CONFLICT OF LAWS.
 

/s/ HENRY AVELINO
AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE

HENRY AVELINO
ASSISTANT VICE PRESIDENT
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JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.
c/o JPMorgan Treasury Services
Global Trade Services
10420 Highland Manor Drive
Tampa, FL 33610
 

     BILL
L/C NO.   TRANS. NO.  BILL NO.   DATE
TPTS-707379   0001  TPTS707379222735   DEC 4, 2008

TO:
SEI INVESTMENTS COMPANY
1 FREEDOM VALLEY DRIVE
OAKS, PA 19456

BENEFICIARY: SEI DAILY INCOME TRUST PRIME

WE AWAIT YOUR PAYMENT AS PER DETAILS HEREIN:
 
         AMOUNT
ISSUANCE FEE     USD  500.00

  TOTAL  USD  500.00
  
 
L/C NO.   TRANS. NO.  BILL NO.   DATE
TPTS-707379   0001  TPTS707379222735   DECEMBER 4, 2008

ALL INQUIRIES REGARDING THIS TRANSACTION MAY BE DIRECTED TO OUR CLIENT SERVICE GROUP AT THE FOLLOWING TELEPHONE
NUMBER OR E-MAIL ADDRESS: l-800-634-1969 OR GTS.CLIENT.SERVICES@JPMCHASE.COM

PAYMENT IS DUE UPON RECEIPT.

PAYMENT INSTRUCTIONS: (PLEASE SELECT ONE AND PROVIDE APPROPRIATE INFORMATION)
 
        DEBIT THE FOLLOWING JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A. ACCOUNT FOR THE TOTAL AMOUNT DUE.

DDA #                                                                              
AUTHORIZED APPROVER’S INITIALS                     .
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JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.
c/o JPMorgan Treasury Services
Global Trade Services
10420 Highland Manor Drive
Tampa, FL 33610
 

   BILL
L/C NO.  TRANS. NO.  BILL NO.  DATE
TPTS-707379  0001  TPTS707379222735  DEC 4, 2008

TO:
SEI INVESTMENTS COMPANY
1 FREEDOM VALLEY DRIVE
OAKS, PA 19456

BENEFICIARY: SEI DAILY INCOME TRUST PRIME
 

        DEBIT OUR ACCOUNT NO.                            , HELD WITH                      ABA ROUTING NUMBER                             .

WE HAVE CONTACTED THE INSTITUTION WITH AUTHORIZATION, FOR THE TOTAL AMOUNT DUE.

AUTHORIZED APPROVER’S INITIALS                     .

FOR FUTURE TRANSACTIONS PLEASE FORWARD A DEBIT AUTHORIZATION FORM TO US FOR COMPLETION.
 

        ENCLOSED IS A CHECK IN THE AMOUNT OF $              FOR THE TOTAL AMOUNT DUE TO:

JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A.
SBLC GROUP
21591 NETWORK PLACE
CHICAGO, ILLINOIS 60673-1215

 

        A WIRE TRANSFER PAYMENT HAS BEEN MADE TO JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A. ABA 021000021, A/C 324331754 QUOTING THE L/C
AND BILL NUMBER (S) FOR THE TOTAL AMOUNT DUE.

*** FAX COMPLETED FORM TO 312-954-3140 ***
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Exhibit 10.38

JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.
c/o JPMorgan Treasury Services
Global Trade Services
10420 Highland Manor Drive
Tampa, FL 33610

JAN 29, 2009
OUR L/C NO.: TPTS-728215

 
TO:  APPLICANT:
SEI DAILY INCOME TRUST PRIME
OBLIGATION FUND  

SEI INVESTMENTS COMPANY
1  FREEDOM VALLEY DRIVE
OAKS, PA 19456ATTN: TIM BARTO  

1  FREEDOM VALLEY DRIVE  
OAKS, PA 19456  

WE HAVE ESTABLISHED OUR IRREVOCABLE STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT IN YOUR FAVOR AS DETAILED HEREIN SUBJECT TO ISP98
 
DOCUMENTARY CREDIT NUMBER:   TPTS-728215

FURTHER IDENTIFICATION:   ISSUE

DATE OF ISSUE:   JANUARY 29, 2009

BENEFICIARY:   SEI DAILY INCOME TRUST PRIME
  OBLIGATION FUND
  ATTN: TIM BARTO
  1 FREEDOM VALLEY DRIVE
  OAKS, PA 19456

APPLICANT:   SEI INVESTMENTS COMPANY
  1 FREEDOM VALLEY DRIVE
  OAKS, PA 19456

DATE AND PLACE OF EXPIRY:   DECEMBER 2, 2009
  AT OUR COUNTER

DOCUMENTARY CREDIT AMOUNT:   USD5,000,000.00

AVAILABLE WITH:   JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A.
  BY PAYMENT

IT IS A CONDITION OF THIS LETTER OF CREDIT THAT IT SHALL BE AUTOMATICALLY EXTENDED WITHOUT AMENDMENT FOR
ADDITIONAL 12 MONTH PERIODS FROM THE
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JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.
c/o JPMorgan Treasury Services
Global Trade Services
10420 Highland Manor Drive
Tampa, FL 33610

JAN 29, 2009
OUR L/C NO.: TPTS-728215

 
PRESENT OR EACH FUTURE EXPIRATION DATE, UNLESS AT LEAST 30 DAYS PRIOR TO THE CURRENT EXPIRY DATE WE SEND NOTICE IN
WRITING TO YOU VIA SWIFT, OR HAND DELIVERY AT THE ABOVE ADDRESS, THAT WE ELECT NOT TO AUTOMATICALLY EXTEND THIS
LETTER OF CREDIT FOR ANY ADDITIONAL PERIOD. UPON SUCH NOTICE TO YOU, YOU MAY DRAW ON US AT SIGHT FOR AN AMOUNT
NOT TO EXCEED THE BALANCE REMAINING IN THIS LETTER OF CREDIT WITHIN THE THEN-APPLICABLE EXPIRY DATE, BY YOUR SWIFT
OR PRESENTATION OF YOUR DRAFT AND DATED STATEMENT PURPORTEDLY SIGNED BY ONE OF YOUR OFFICIALS READING AS
FOLLOWS:

QUOTE

THE AMOUNT OF THIS DRAWING USD                      UNDER JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A. LETTER OF CREDIT NUMBER TPTS-728215
REPRESENTS FUNDS DUE US AS WE HAVE RECEIVED NOTICE FROM JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A. OF THEIR DECISION NOT TO
AUTOMATICALLY EXTEND LETTER OF CREDIT NUMBER TPTS-728215 AND THE UNDERLYING OBLIGATION REMAINS OUTSTANDING.

UNQUOTE

IN THE EVENT THIS LETTER OF CREDIT IS SUBSEQUENTLY AMENDED BY US TO RESCIND A NOTICE OF NON-EXTENSION AND TO
EXTEND THE EXPIRY DATE HEREOF TO A FUTURE DATE, SUCH EXTENSION SHALL BE FOR THAT SINGLE PERIOD ONLY AND THIS LETTER
OF CREDIT WILL NOT BE SUBJECT TO ANY FUTURE AUTOMATIC EXTENSIONS UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

ADDITIONAL DETAILS:

THIS LETTER OF CREDIT IS AVAILABLE WITH JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A. AGAINST PRESENTATION OF YOUR DRAFT AT SIGHT DRAWN
ON JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A., WHEN ACCOMPANIED BY THE DOCUMENTS INDICATED HEREIN.

BENEFICIARY’S DATED STATEMENT PURPORTEDLY SIGNED BY ONE OF ITS OFFICIALS READING AS FOLLOWS:

“THE AMOUNT OF THIS DRAWING, USD                     , UNDER JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A. LETTER OF CREDIT NO. TPTS-728215
REPRESENTS FUNDS DUE US AS SEI INVESTMENTS COMPANY HAS FAILED TO PAY A REQUIRED CONTRIBUTION AMOUNT AS REQUIRED
BY THE CAPITAL SUPPORT AGREEMENT BETWEEN SEI INVESTMENTS COMPANY AND SEI DAILY INCOME TRUST PRIME OBLIGATION
FUND.”

ALL CORRESPONDENCE AND ANY DRAWINGS HEREUNDER ARE TO BE DIRECTED TO
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JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.
c/o JPMorgan Treasury Services
Global Trade Services
10420 Highland Manor Drive
Tampa, FL 33610

JAN 29, 2009
OUR L/C NO.: TPTS-728215

 
JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A. C/O JPMORGAN TREASURY SERVICES, STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT DEPT. 4TH FL. 10420 HIGHLAND
MANOR DRIVE, TAMPA, FLORIDA 33610. CUSTOMER INQUIRY NUMBER IS 1-800-634-1969 CHOOSE OPTION 1. E-MAIL ADDRESS IS:
GTS.CLIENT.SERVICES@JPMCHASE.COM. PLEASE HAVE OUR REFERENCE NUMBER AVAILABLE WHEN YOU CONTACT US.

WE HEREBY AGREE WITH YOU THAT DRAFTS DRAWN UNDER AND IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS
LETTER OF CREDIT WILL BE DULY HONORED.

THE NUMBER AND THE DATE OF OUR CREDIT AND THE NAME OF OUR BANK MUST BE QUOTED ON ALL DRAFTS REQUIRED.

EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED HEREIN, THE LETTER OF CREDIT IS SUBJECT TO THE INTERNATIONAL STANDBY PRACTICES (1998),
INTERNATIONAL CHAMBER OF COMMERCE PUBLICATION NO. 590.

THIS LETTER OF CREDIT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK,
WITHOUT REGARD TO PRINCIPLES OF CONFLICT OF LAWS.
 

/s/ Jon P. Pierson
AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE

Jon P. Pierson
Assistant Vice President
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Exhibit 21

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT
 

NAME   
JURISDICTION OF ORGANIZATION

OR INCORPORATION

SEI Investments Distribution Co.   Pennsylvania

SEI Investments Management Corporation   Delaware

SEI Investments Developments, Inc.   Delaware

SEI Investments Global Funds Services   Delaware

SEI Investments Management Corporation Delaware, LLC   Delaware

SEI Trust Company   Pennsylvania

SEI Funds, Inc.   Delaware

SEI Investments, Inc.   Delaware

SEI Global Investments Corporation   Delaware

SEI Investments Canada Company   Canada (Federal)

SEI Advanced Capital Management, Inc.   Delaware

SEI Global Capital Investments, Inc.   Delaware

SEI Investments Global (Cayman), Ltd.   Cayman Islands, B. W. I.

SEI Investments Global, Limited   Ireland

SEI Investments Global Fund Services, Ltd.   Ireland

SEI Global Holdings (Cayman) Inc.   Cayman Islands, B. W. I.

SEI Investments (South Africa) Limited   South Africa

SEI Primus Holding Corporation   Canada

SEI Investments Trustee & Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited   Ireland

SEI Private Trust Company   Pennsylvania

SEI Venture Capital Inc   Delaware

SEI Asset Korea Co., Ltd.   South Korea

SEI Investments Europe Limited   United Kingdom

SEI Investments – Unit Trust Management (UK) Ltd.   United Kingdom

Lartington Limited   Ireland

SEI Investments Global (Bermuda) Ltd.   Bermuda

SEI SIMC Holdings, LLC   Delaware

SIMC Subsidiary, LLC   Delaware

SEI Global Nominee Ltd.   United Kingdom

SEI Insurance Group, Inc.   Pennsylvania

SEI Global Services, Inc.   Delaware

SEI Franchise, Inc.   Delaware

SEI Investments (Asia), Limited   Hong Kong

SEI European Services Limited   United Kingdom

SEI Trustees Limited   United Kingdom

SEI Investment Strategies, LLC   Delaware

LSV Asset Management   Delaware

LSV Employee Group, LLC   Delaware

SEI Institutional Transfer Agent, Inc.   Delaware
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EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No. 2-73997, 2-89659, 333-41343, and 333-111224) of SEI
Investments Company of our report dated February 24, 2009 relating to the financial statements, financial statement schedule, and the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting, which appears in this Form 10-K.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
February 24, 2009
 

Page 94 of 97



EXHIBIT 31.1
RULE 13a-15(e)/15d-15(e)

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, Alfred P. West, Jr., certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of SEI Investments Company;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of
the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

 
Date: February 25, 2009

 /s/ Alfred P. West, Jr.
 Alfred P. West, Jr.
 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT 31.2
RULE 13a-15(e)/15d-15(e)

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

I, Dennis J. McGonigle, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of SEI Investments Company;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of
the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

 
Date: February 25, 2009

 /s/ Dennis J. McGonigle
 Dennis J. McGonigle
 Chief Financial Officer
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EXHIBIT 32

SECTION 1350 CERTIFICATIONS

I, Alfred P. West, Jr., Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, and Dennis J. McGonigle, Chief Financial Officer, of SEI Investments Company, a
Pennsylvania corporation (the “Company”), hereby certify that, to my knowledge:

(1) The Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the annual period ended December 31, 2008 (the “Form 10-K”) fully complies with the requirements
of Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Form 10-K fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
 
Date: February 25, 2009   Date: February 25, 2009

/s/ Alfred P. West, Jr.   /s/ Dennis J. McGonigle
Alfred P. West, Jr.   Dennis J. McGonigle
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer   Chief Financial Officer

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to the
Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.
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